
 

 

 

 
 

 

PLAN COMMISSION AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL BOARD ROOM 

25 E. STATE STREET 

TUESDAY, MAY 3, 2022 

7:00 PM 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES   
 

1. Approval of Plan Commission Minutes dated March 1, 2022   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

  

1. Petition #22-03: The petitioner, Phelan-JK/JB, Midwest, LLC, requests the following 

actions for the vacant properties generally located between Smoke Tree Plaza and 

Sullivan Road, east of Evergreen Drive in North Aurora, Illinois: 

a) Map Amendment to establish the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial 

Zoning District 

b) Special Use - Planned Unit Development with deviations to the Zoning Ordinance 

c) Preliminary Final Plat of Subdivision 

d) Site Plan Approval 

 

NEW BUSINESS  

 

1. Petition #22-03: The petitioner, Phelan-JK/JB, Midwest, LLC, requests the following 

actions for the vacant properties generally located between Smoke Tree Plaza and 

Sullivan Road, east of Evergreen Drive in North Aurora, Illinois: 

a) Map Amendment to establish the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial 

Zoning District 

b) Special Use - Planned Unit Development with deviations to the Zoning Ordinance 

c) Preliminary Final Plat of Subdivision 

d) Site Plan Approval 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS AND PROJECT UPDATES 

 

ADJOURNMENT   



 

1 

 

 VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

MARCH 1, 2022 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Mike Brackett called the meeting to order. 

 

ROLL CALL 

In attendance: Chairman Mike Brackett, Commissioners, Anna Tuohy, Aaron Anderson, Scott 

Branson, Alexander Negro, Richard Newell, and Doug Botkin  

  

Not in attendance: Mark Bozik and Tom Lenkart 

 

Staff in attendance: Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Community & Economic Development 

Director Mike Toth and Planner David Hansen 

  

Also in attendance: Kevin Drendel, Village Attorney 

   

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

1. Approval of Plan Commission Minutes dated February 1, 2022 

Motion for approval made by Commissioner Newell and seconded by Commissioner Branson. All 

in favor.  Motion approved. 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

1. Petition #22-02: The petitioner, Fiduciary Real Estate Development, Inc., requests the 

following actions in the R-4 General Residence District, Planned Unit Development for the 

vacant tract of land situated west of Orchard Road, south of West Mooseheart Road and 

east of Deerpath Road: 

a) Special Use - Planned Unit Development Amendment with deviations to the 

Planned Unit Development and Zoning Ordinance 

b) Preliminary Final Plat of Subdivision 

c) Site Plan Approval 

 

Chairman Mike Brackett called the public hearing to order.  

 

Chairman Brackett explained Mike Toth will introduce the petition, which will be followed by the 

petitioner’s presentation and public comments. The Plan Commission will then close the public 

hearing and discuss the petition amongst Commissioner’s and ask any questions they may have.  

 

Mike Toth introduced Petition #22-02, which is a 21.7 acre tract of land located east of Deerpath 

Rd, south of West Mooseheart Rd, and north of Orchard Rd. The developer will give a presentation 

and provide background on the project itself and then the Village will give their presentation and 

explain the developer’s request in more detail.  



 

2 

 

The petitioner, Tony DeRosa (Vice President for Fiduciary Real Estate Development, Inc.) 

presented their Seasons at North Aurora project. DeRosa gave a brief overview on the company, 

which is based out of Milwaukee, Wisconsin. DeRosa mentioned mixed-use and luxury multi-

family products are their specialty and have developed and owned up to 11,000 apartments in their 

history. DeRosa shared some completed projects that are similar to the Seasons at North Aurora 

concept, which included their first Seasons development, Seasons at Randall Road in West 

Dundee, which was completed a few years ago. That development was two phases, which 

consisted of 380 total apartments. DeRosa showed pictures of the completed project’s clubhouse, 

interior finishes, and overall site. DeRosa mentioned his other team members are here tonight 

include David Ferrell and Ashley Poull. AG Architecture is their design company and Manhard 

Consulting Engineering is their civil engineering firm.  

 

DeRosa presented their Seasons at North Aurora concept in greater detail, which includes 260 

apartment units (26 studio, 104 one bedroom, 104 two bedroom, and 26 three bedroom units). 

DeRosa mentioned it was a 21.7 acre site and the current zoning is R-4 General Residence District 

and the proposed multi-family development is a permitted use with a density of about 12 units per 

acre. DeRosa mentioned there is Connector Road that divides the two sites and the road is about 

$1 million to build and Fiduciary will be building it as part of the site development. Parcels to the 

south of the connector road are zoned B-2 General Business District for future commercial, but 

are not part of this development. DeRosa stated the area’s apartment occupancy is around 95% 

and there is a lack of newer multi-family housing in North Aurora. DeRosa added North Aurora 

has older rental housing stock, lack modern amenities and this development will target all age 

groups. Apartment prices would be $1,400 (studio) to $2,700 (3 bedroom). The development will 

have a condo and townhome type feel with garages and private entry’s, maintenance free living 

with attached/detached garages, oversized windows, balconies, open concept floor plans, walk in 

closets, in unit washer/dryer and stainless steel appliances. It will also have a clubhouse, 

walkability connections throughout the site and on-site management team. DeRosa showed images 

of the proposed development, which included the clubhouse, outdoor areas, interior gathering 

areas, and exterior elevations. DeRosa mentioned the east-west connector road would divide the 

40 acres of parcels with multi-family permitted on north side and commercial on both ends and 

the first developer to build on site must build the connector road. DeRosa added the parking 

screened to interior of development, there is a landscape buffer around perimeter, stormwater 

features on north side of development, trail/sidewalk connections throughout the site. Parking will 

be assigned by unit for both garages and exterior parking spaces. DeRosa showed a two-minute 

fly through 3-D presentation of what the site would look like.  

 

DeRosa outlined the PUD Ordinance development standards for apartment uses for the site, which 

included the following: building height be limited to three stories (development is two stories), 

apartments unit have individual access from exterior (each unit will have individual access from 

the exterior of the building), one parking space provided for each dwelling unit in an interior 

enclosed area (66% enclosed parking spaces per unit a total of 172 spaces); at least 25% of each 

apartment building covered in masonry (25.8% will be covered), and architectural monotony 

standards must be met ( DeRosa  mentioned cement siding, big windows, and lots of design to 

avoid monotony on the exterior). DeRosa shared some conclusions from preliminary traffic study, 

which included the development would not have a detrimental impact. Some traffic study details 

included Orchard Rd is estimated to increase 8% per day (60% of it would use Orchard to the south 



 

3 

 

via the connector road that comes out to .73 trips per minute). Deerpath Rd traffic would increase 

3% trips increase per day (15% of the traffic is estimated to go south on Deerpath Rd, which is 

about .18 trips per minute). DeRosa added current conditions as well as improvements as part of 

the development will help mitigate congestion and commercial development would have more 

traffic impact than residential one. DeRosa said Fiduciary is working with Kane County 

Department of Transportation on traffic improvements for Orchard Rd, which would include a 

southbound deceleration lane on Orchard Rd into the connector road and a dedicated northbound 

left turn lane into the connector road DeRosa showed the elevations for the clubhouse, floorplans 

and building exterior contrast. DeRosa added the current tax bill is around $600 tax bill, but would 

increase to about $800,000 a year after the development is completed. DeRosa continued and said 

this would help retailers in area that are struggling, that the development will hopefully be a 

catalyst to help commercial develop to the south in the future and that the development is highest 

and best use of property according to our research.   

 

Mike Toth presented slides regarding the Village’s codes, zoning designation, the current PUD, 

and the Annexation Agreement for the property. In 2012, the property was annexed and a PUD 

ordinance was approved, which established the B-2 General Business District for the properties 

north and south of the connector road area with area north of connector road having an R-4 General 

Residence District zoning designation which allows multi-family as a permitted use. The PUD 

established standards in 2012 and was amended in 2013 which had a few changes. One change 

was, in the 2012 PUD, both interior and exterior access was required, but the 2013 PUD only 

requires exterior access which the development is providing. Another change is that the 2012 PUD 

ordinance required 20% of the total units must include an interior enclosed parking space, while 

2013 PUD ordinance requires 100% of parking spaces (260 spaces) would need to be provided 

interior enclosed parking. 

 

Toth stated, if the site plan met all requirements of the PUD and Annexation Agreement, the site 

plan would only need to be submitted to the Plan Commission for review and could have been 

forwarded to the Village Board for approval without a need for a public hearing. Toth elaborated 

and said site plan reviews are required for any development to go to the Plan Commission for 

review and Village Board for approval. However in this PUD ordinance, once anyone submitted a 

site plan for the property it would come to the Plan Commission for review and developer would 

only be required to send notice to the adjacent property owners. No signs or newspaper listings 

would have been required if this would have happened. Site plan approval standards are included 

in the annexation agreement instead of the PUD, which means Village Board has final say over 

the site development standards. He added they are included in staff report for guidance tonight on 

Page 5. Another approval to be considered is the establishment of Lot 1 of Seasons at North Aurora 

subdivision and preliminary plat that has been submitted.  

 

Toth explained the reason why the public hearing was triggered, signs on the property and letters 

sent to property owners, etc. were because of Planned Unit Development and Zoning Ordinance 

amendments. First, the enclosed parking spaces deviation. They are providing 172 enclosed 

parking spaces, but they need 260 enclosed spaces to avoid it.  More garages on property could be 

a negative due to storage component. Second, is the plan submittal process deviation.  As long as 

the plan being submitted for permit review matches the plans approved by the Village Board they 

do not need to go through the final review process. Third, the landscape buffer along Orchard 



 

4 

 

Road. Kane County requires 170 feet of ROW and has jurisdiction for the Road. Upon review, 

Kane County requires another 15 feet into the buffer yard so the landscape buffer has been reduced 

to 35 feet instead of 50 feet allowable by code. This has been customary since the Orchard Acres 

development to the south of this proposed development, on northwest part of Oak St and Orchard 

Rd., also had same thing happen – the 50 foot buffer was reduced to a 35 feet setback. Given those 

deviations, staff has reviewed the site plan and is recommending approval with eight conditions 

upon approval, which are listed on the last page of the staff report.  

 

Chairman Mike Brackett opened the public hearing for public comment. Chairman Brackett 

mentioned no one signed up on the sheet, but anyone who would like to speak is free to do so in 

an orderly manner.  

 

Ann Snodgrass (1525 W. Mooseheart Rd.) had a few questions regarding how long the plan been 

under consideration, what is the time frame for the development, any traffic studies on Mooseheart 

Rd towards White Oak Dr, how will this impact the schools, and will a left turn be allowed on 

Orchard Rd. Toth mentioned the Village has been in contact with the Village for months and have 

a had a few meetings about the project both internal and external and the plan tonight was first 

seen about a month ago. Toth said the next step is to send it to the Village Board for further 

discussion with final consideration coming in April or May.  It would then have to go through 

permitting process if approved before site work could begin. DeRosa said the construction target 

date is mid to late summer with 20 months start to finish with the first building completed in 10 

months and one building finished every 30 days after commencement of construction. DeRosa 

said roughly 10 school age kids per 100 units is about the average they see so they would expect 

25-30 school age kids at the development. KOLA traffic consultant, Luay Aboona, said the 

intersection for Orchard Rd/White Oak and White Oak/W Mooseheart will be looked at as the 

traffic is further studied and the new access road will be a full intersection with a left and right turn 

out onto Orchard with stop sign control. DeRosa mentioned they are working with KDOT and that 

the development will not warrant a need for a traffic signal. Snodgrass asked if there will be any 

more meetings for residents to speak and asked about how the construction traffic routes will enter 

and exit during construction. DeRosa said they will work with the Village regarding access for the 

site. Steve Bosco mentioned tonight the Plan Commission will make a recommendation to the 

Village Board and next the Village Board would look at it at a Committee of a Whole (COW) 

meeting which is a public meeting where people can attend again. Bosco said there will be at least 

two COW meetings then will be a third meeting for approval is the likely route and residents can 

speak at each meeting. Meetings are held here at Village Hall and packets will be posted online. 

Public hearing notices are only for Plan Commission meeting and will not be updated on site. Toth 

added Village Board meetings are held 1st and 3rd Monday of the month and packets are posted 

online typically by Thursday afternoon prior to that meeting.  

 

Michelle Pitts (2041 Westover Rd.) has lived near Deerpath Rd for 42 years and had questions 

about the need for the multi-family housing in the area and didn’t want to bring certain type of 

people to town. She was also concerned about the environmental impact of marshland in Mirador 

since it floods every year and has a good amount of wildlife in that area. Toth mentioned there are 

IDNR reports that are submitted as part of the process. Bosco mentioned governments speak with 

acronyms a lot and explained what each of the following were: IGA stands for “intergovernmental 

agreement”, the IDNR is the “Illinois Department of Natural Resources” and PUD is a “Planned 



 

5 

 

Unit Development”. The petitioner questioned what type of people or demographics she was 

referring to. DeRosa mentioned demand for this type of development is stronger than 20 years ago 

and many people want to rent now due to maintenance free living. Retirees, young professional, 

and snowbirds will be attracted to this development. High quality of housing is as nice or nicer 

than brand new than single family home and average income 10-15% higher than income in the 

community as a whole. Rooftops drive retail and should help bring more retail to area and help 

maintain existing retail. 

 

Jared Placek, Engineer with Manhard Engineering, addressed stormwater concerns and explained 

there are two stormwater management ponds proposed on the development and the current 

conditions of the stormwater drain north into the Mirador pond. Currently the site is uncontained 

and unrestricted north into the area, which has been mentioned as a flooding concern. Part of the 

development stormwater detention basin would hold water for an extended period of time and 

allows water to slow down. As a result, it will increase amount of time the water heads north. As 

required by law, the development will improve the current conditions and in regards to IDNR 

species endangered in the area, not on the site, but in the area, include herons, but the development 

doesn’t show to have a negative impact on that and will continue to work with IDNR and other 

governmental agencies. Toth mentioned Village Engineer will review stormwater as well as need 

to follow the Kane County Stormwater Ordinance.   

 

Dan Carter (1516 W Mooseheart Rd.) had questions about the construction access points, village 

curfews in regards to the social aspects of the development, dumpster locations and wondered if 

there would be streetlights at connector road and Deerpath Rd. Toth shared there appears to be 

eight dumpsters on site and the two access points for the property are on the connector road. 

Dumpsters would have to follow code of 6-8ft of solid wall or fence with a gate and 6 foot concrete 

pad. Toth added construction access points will be determined as part of the engineering review 

and erosion control plan. Bosco stated that curfews generally apply to certain activities after a 

certain time, but the development would most likely be noise control complaints where a resident 

can call the police if there is excessive noise. DeRosa mentioned loud parties are not allowed on 

the weekend; clubhouse gatherings are mostly with family; speakers and pool-related activities are 

kept at a minimum as well. Carter asked if W Mooseheart Rd will be overflow parking and there 

will be no access to W Mooseheart Rd from the development. DeRosa said Fiduciary looked into 

going to W. Mooseheart Rd for access, but after review, traffic going to the connector road made 

the most sense for the area and creates more buffer green space for the site and the connector road 

would only have access to the site. DeRosa said the management company controls noise for the 

clubhouse activities and if residents are loud they can be cited. It could lead to a break in their 

lease if continued. DeRosa added that no parking is needed on W. Mooseheart Rd since the site 

has adequate amount of parking. Toth added two parking spaces per unit are required and the 

developer is providing 2.3 parking spaces per unit. Toth said he spoke with the Police Department 

regarding W. Mooseheart Rd and the road isn’t supposed to be parked on and cars would be towed 

if parked there. If it became an issue the Village can enact more specific prohibited parking, if 

needed.  

 

Steve Poss (832 Benson Ct.) asked what the benefit to the community is since it will add additional 

people and traffic to the surrounding areas. Kevin Drendel shared the Village does not own the 

property and must accept the proposal and process it accordingly. Drendel said the Village doesn’t 



 

6 

 

have the ability to just say no if it meets the requirements and outlined how the property owner has 

private property rights, which gives them opportunity to pursue a development how they see fit. 

The municipality has zoning controls the developer must follow, but the Village cannot deny a 

property outright because people don’t like it. Poss asked if this will impact property values. 

DeRosa added empirical research suggests multi-family adjacent to the single family homes does 

have a positive impact on property values. Multi-family tends to drive new businesses to the area 

as well. Toth added business owners tend to look for demographic details, including area income, 

as part of their research. Toth also added the Comprehensive Plan suggests a transition from single-

family to multi-family to commercial rather than a straight jump from commercial to single-family 

zoning. DeRosa added typically a desirable community has vibrant retail and business because of 

the people who spend money in that area. The more people spending more money, the more 

businesses stay open and property values tend to rise. 

 

Max S. (unknown address) asked if the public hearing process results in a vote or just lets residents 

know what is happening. Bosco explained this meeting takes input by the Plan Commission who 

is appointed by the Mayor and Village Board. The Plan Commission role is to hear the public 

input, staff report, developer presentation, and add any conditions they see fit. The Plan 

Commission then votes to approve or deny the project, but the vote is a recommendation not a 

final act. Bosco continued it will then go to the Mayor and Village Board, who are elected and 

they make the final decision to approve it or not. Max S. was concerned about the impact on nature 

and the number of kids it may add to the schools. He asked if the Village plans to expand the 

elementary and middle schools. Bosco said the school district is a different taxing body and would 

make that decision. Bosco mentioned the percentage of property taxes that go to the Village is   

5%-6% which would be around $50,000 while the schools would receive 60-70% of the property 

tax bill. Toth stated a land cash fee and school district impact fee is required for developments and 

it is paid at the time of the permit. Max S. asked if the east side of Orchard Rd. is part of the 

development. Toth said not at this time and not a lot of concepts have been submitted for that site. 

That property is zoned similar to these parcels where it’s mostly commercial property, but allows 

30-40% residential should a developer request it. Max S. mentioned more senior living in the area 

would be nice addition if possible.  

 

Dan Carter asked if the only reason we are here today is for the public hearing regarding the garage 

situation. Toth stated yes, mostly since the PUD deviation triggered the public notice and once that 

was opened then landscape buffer was added as a KDOT requirement upon their review. Toth said 

the developer could meet that code if they do 100% garages, but as mentioned before having too 

many garages could lead to parking spillover since the garages tend to be used for storage instead 

of parking. Drendel added in 2012 there was a public hearing for the zoning, annexation agreement 

and PUD and amended again in 2013, which also went through a hearing process so this is 

technically the third hearing process this property has gone through. Bosco explained properties 

are zoned throughout the community and each district has different standards of what can go in 

where. Staff works with the developer for a few months to get through what they are asking for so 

they can have all the details lined up for a meeting like this. We can’t notice a public hearing until 

we find what the change is about and a developer has submitted all the required information. 

 

Jacqueline S. (resident of Tanner Trails) had a few questions regarding ADA units on the property, 

minimum lease terms, how many three bedroom units there will be, what the maximum people is 



 

7 

 

allowed for gathering area in the clubhouse, environmental concerns for detention regarding pipe 

size and the depth of the pond. DeRosa mentioned ADA units will be available due to law and 2% 

of the units typically need to comply. Minimum lease terms are 6, but most leases are usually 12-

18 month leases. Toth stated occupancy limits are determine by the local code, which would be 

the North Aurora Fire Protection District. Jared Placek, Engineer from Manhard Engineering, 

shared the existing pipe on the south end of W Mooseheart Rd is 12 inches in diameter widens to 

21 inches as it travels north to the marsh area. The development would install a smaller pipe to 

keep the water in the detention basin as long as possible with the water levels in the ponds for       

two-year storm event reaching 2-3 feet and 100 year flood event reaching 5-6 feet with the capacity 

to handle 100 years storm events. Toth added there are 26 three-bedroom units on the plan. 

 

Ann Snodgrass had a few more questions regarding occupancy requirements and asked if the site 

could be voted down if there are enough residents that oppose it. DeRosa stated anyone who lives 

in the apartment is required to be on the lease and they track everyone who lives there including 

tenant vehicles. Toth stated again the fire district determines the number of occupants in a building. 

Drendel added that there are laws regarding defining a family and a municipality cannot make 

such determination in regards to those terms. Bosco said the Village can vote it down, but there is 

underlining zoning in place already so the developer could resubmit a site plan and it could be 

approved by the Village Board. Snodgrass mentioned she didn’t think a $1,400 monthly rent is 

luxury for a studio. She moved to North Aurora recently from a local community where projects 

like these have been turned down and developers don’t always follow through on what they offer. 

She prefers condo ownership instead of rental apartment units. Snodgrass asked about the 

development by Woodman’s and what is the rental rate and occupancy rate. Toth said The Springs 

are usually at 95% occupancy, which has 300 units over 18 acres.  

 

Hugo Cardenas (3S701 Deerpath Rd) mentioned he has Oak Trees on his property and believes 

some are 300 years old. He was wondering if developer could look into preserving the root 

structure. Cardenas was also concerned about the condition of the rental community after five 

years.  He added there is a potential for residents breaking into his vehicles. Cardenas also shared 

that the Spring Apartments are not his neighbors, but he can hear the music from his backyard so 

he was concerned how close the clubhouse was to his house. He also concern about the connector 

road being too close to the Oak Trees on his property. Cardenas mentioned when most people 

drink they get loud and happy and could cause noise issues. Cardenas said he would like the 

developer to look into the Oak Trees which are supposedly 300 years old as they are a key 

component of why he moved to the property in the first place. 

 

Matt Berger, (resident of Mirador) had a question regarding who is the property owner of this site 

and have there been any proposals in the past regarding single family homes on this site. Toth 

mentioned Stan Zepelak is the original property owner of site, but is unsure if developer has 

officially bought it. Toth stated the village has only a few phone calls for multi-family or 

commercial on this site, but nothing for single family homes since he started with the Village in 

2013.   

 

Chairman Mike Brackett closed the public hearing.  

 

 



 

8 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Petition #22-02: The petitioner, Fiduciary Real Estate Development, Inc., requests the 

following actions in the R-4 General Residence District, Planned Unit Development for the 

vacant tract of land situated west of Orchard Road, south of West Mooseheart Road and 

east of Deerpath Road: 

a) Special Use - Planned Unit Development Amendment with deviations to the 

Planned Unit Development and Zoning Ordinance 

b) Preliminary Final Plat of Subdivision 

c) Site Plan Approval 

 

Commissioner Doug Botkin thanked the staff and developer for providing a detailed presentation. 

Botkin mentioned the Comprehensive Plan calls for single-family housing in that location so the 

project complies with the zoning, but not necessarily the Comprehensive Plan. Deviating from the 

Comprehensive Plan is always a thing to look out for, but the plan tonight is legal and should be 

considered since the property is zoned that certain way. The main question is do we like the 

development and developer and so far I do and would vote yes. 

 

Commissioner Aaron Anderson thanked the residents for engaging in the process and asked if the 

renderings and fly through is what the plan is going to be and the impact on surrounding 

infrastructure. Commissioner Anderson mentioned multifamily developments are newer to North 

Aurora, but has been written on the wall for 15 years and has now made its way here. 

Commissioner Anderson questioned how the 20-30 school kid information was determined. 

DeRosa said 10 school age kids per 100 units is the average and that’s how they got that estimate. 

DeRosa encouraged staff and members to reach out to other communities about their other 

properties to get feedback how well those communities are doing and how their standards are being 

held up. DeRosa said he can provide tours of those communities if anyone was interested. DeRosa 

added the age range for the development is pretty much any age from 22 to 82. Commissioner 

Anderson asked how it was determined to locate the clubhouse adjacent to the single family 

residential housing. DeRosa said the landscape buffer makes it difficult to have the clubhouse 

anywhere else on site due to pavement and other accessory structures not allowed in the buffer 

area. DeRosa mentioned if they were allowed to encroach in the landscape setback it would be 

easier to move the clubhouse more east off the property line. DeRosa said they looked into having 

all three story buildings and adding 100 more apartments to the site to make it work, but prefer the 

less dense two-story plan you see here tonight. DeRosa added the site scale fits two-story more, 

but it appears to come down to the 1:1 garage unit’s provision.  

 

Chairman Brackett also agreed the clubhouse location pushed up next to the private property 

concerned him. Toth added the site’s primary access is pushed back 400-500 feet due to KDOT 

provisions, which is why the clubhouse is located where it is. The landscape plan shows adding 

fencing and evergreens along the adjacent property owner to the west, which allows more buffering 

and screening for both parties. Chairman Brackett mentioned he thought the clubhouse location is 

odd since it’s not centralized in the development to all the units.  

 

Commissioner Scott Branson shared there were homes here before Mirador and Tanner Trails were 

built so development does happen and changes the landscape. Commissioner Branson shared that 



 

9 

 

the three-bedroom apartments will probably be filled with more kids the developer is projecting, 

but rooftops drive retail and there are lots of new retail opportunities for the Village. Commissioner 

Branson mentioned he liked the residential plan for that area compared to having an industrial or 

commercial development next to the existing single family homes. Commissioner Branson also 

shared concerns regarding the clubhouse location and for the Oak Trees adjacent to the clubhouse 

area. 

 

Commissioner Anna Tuohy thanked the residents for coming out and sharing their perspectives, 

views and concerns. Commissioner Tuohy mentioned she lives in Tanner Trails and understands 

the traffic concerns for the development. She asked if there was only a fence/gate along the west 

side perimeter of the development or was it for the entire development. DeRosa said the only 

fencing on the site is along the west side of the clubhouse, which is anticipated to be a six foot 

wood board-on-board fence. Commissioner Tuohy asked how many residents would be on site if 

it was at 100% capacity. DeRosa shared it would be around 420 residents on site if occupancy was 

100%. Commissioner Tuohy also shared the concern about the clubhouse proximity to the property 

owner to the west. DeRosa said that concern is noted and will be looked into. Toth said looking 

into an alternative clubhouse locations can be added as a condition to the list of staff conditions, 

should the Plan Commission want to recommend approval.  

 

Multiple Commissioners asked about why the buffer dictates the location of the clubhouse and 

pool and why the clubhouse is so far away from other buildings. Toth shared KDOT requires a full 

access road to the connector road be 500 feet back from Orchard Road and the clubhouse likes to 

be the primary access point in most developments so possible tenants don’t need to drive through 

the entire site to get to the clubhouse. DeRosa shared many complexes don’t have the clubhouse 

centralized, but is the point closest to the main access point of the site. Commissioner Tuohy said 

the demand is here since apartments are full occupancy in most parts of the Village and people 

who want to move here can’t do that do to lack of inventory. Commissioner Tuohy also asked if 

there have been any crime increase in The Springs since this proposed development is a similar, 

but less dense apartment community. Bosco stated the Police Department pulled police calls to the 

Springs and are currently reviewing it. Chairman Brackett shared more density makes it appear 

there are more calls, but should be viewed propositionally compared to subdivisions with same 

amount of residents. DeRosa shared after five years, we do not lower our standards and have 

detailed credit, landlord references and criminal background checks. 

 

Commissioner Tuohy asked how much the average income may be for each unit type. DeRosa 

mentioned median income for the area is about $85,000 and with 30% going to rent on average 

you are looking between $50,000 incomes for studios to $90,000 for the three-bedroom units if 

not higher. Commissioner Tuohy also asked about the traffic concern and would like more 

information on intersections for Deerpath Rd/Oak St., W. Mooseheart Rd./Deerpath Rd., Tanner 

Rd./Deerpath Rd., W. Mooseheart Rd./ White Oak Dr., and Orchard Rd./White Oak Dr. as well as 

Orchard Rd. and Deerpath Rd. in regards to the connector road. DeRosa shared KDOT has 

jurisdiction of Orchard Rd., but it appears the Village will maintain the connector road once built. 

DeRosa shared stop light is not warranted at this point, but if Mango Creek (land to the east) is 

developed it would trigger the signalized intersection. Toth said the connector road was also added 

to relieve traffic on Deerpath Rd. to Orchard Rd. and vision triangle provisions will be taken into 

consideration at the time the intersections are developed.  



 

10 

 

 

Commissioner Alexander Negro mentioned he was also concerned with location of the clubhouse 

and asked who is responsible for paying for the stoplight. Toth shared he believes there is a shared 

cost between Village and Developer, but will check the Annexation Agreement.  

 

Commissioner Richard Newell thanked the residents for the community interest and taking time 

to be there. Commissioner Newell shared that current demographic trends in the United States 

show younger groups aren’t buying regardless of economic status and prefer to rent on many 

occasions. Commissioner Newell also mentioned the clubhouse location seemed weird, but 

understands why it was placed there. Commissioner Newell asked where the stormwater 

management goes. Jared Placek mentioned best management practices according to law will be 

utilized and make it naturalized way to make sure it doesn’t pollute anything downstream. 

Commissioner Newell also mentioned he had concerns about the traffic study as noted by 

Commissioner Tuohy. Commissioner Botkin mentioned although the clubhouse is close to 

property owner to the west, but if the developer moved it to the center, an apartment building with 

a balcony would most likely be next to the property owner and may be harder to screen and reduce 

noise.  

 

Chairman Brackett shared the main concerns he’s heard: traffic in regards to the signalization/stop 

sign on the connector road, the intersections for Deerpath Rd. and Orchard Rd., stormwater 

management and the location of the clubhouse area. Commissioner Tuohy would like the traffic 

study to be looked into more going forward. Toth stated clubhouse could be put in as a condition, 

stormwater would be addressed through permitting and engineering review and the traffic study 

would be reviewed by the Village engineer going forward and more detailed analysis will be done.  

 

Bosco mentioned there are several options to consider. One option would be to ask the developer 

to gather more information and come back, if that would help the Plan Commission make a 

recommendation. Another option would be to vote as-is or add conditions to forward this project 

onto the Village Board for review. DeRosa mentioned KDOT still has jurisdiction on some roads 

so they may require certain traffic criteria and will make the ultimate decision on those intersection 

improvements. Commissioner Tuohy said she was good with the eight conditions in the report as 

well as adding a traffic and clubhouse location condition to it. Commissioner Anderson said he 

was in favor to send it on to the Village Board if there is community interest in it. Toth said that 

he can work with the Village Attorney to draft the Plan Commission conditions in more detail. 

Toth said staff will provide draft minutes to Village Board for the upcoming COW meeting and 

outline the main comments and concerns mentioned tonight. Commissioner Botkin asked the 

clubhouse condition to state that the developer should examine alternate clubhouse locations and 

not state it is required to be moved. Bosco asked for clarification on the conditions regarding to 

traffic. Chairman Brackett said the condition was to turn left onto Orchard Rd. from the connector 

road and to further examine the site in regards to traffic flow on Deerpath Rd., W Mooseheart Rd., 

and White Oak Dr. Commissioner Negro asked if stop light language is needed to be included in 

the conditions and how fast the developer would be able to look into alternate options for the 

clubhouse location. Chairman Brackett mentioned the stoplight would be determined by Kane 

County as part as their review so it does not need to be included. Bosco said there is a formula 

they use to determine a stop sign vs. a signalized intersection. Toth shared the annexation 

agreement appears to indicate the stoplight cost on Orchard Rd. and connector road is tied to cost 



 

11 

 

sharing between the two development sites. DeRosa stated it would take about a week to modify 

the clubhouse location, but it would be ready in time for the Village Board meeting. Commissioner 

Anderson asked to add a condition looking into protecting the root structure for the Oak Trees on 

the property west of the development. Commissioner Tuohy said the IDNR requirement would 

apply to the site for wildlife so that would not need to be added as a condition. 

 

Motion for approval of Petition #22-02 with the following conditions approved above regarding 

clubhouse placement, root structures of the Oak Trees on the western perimeter of the development 

and look into the traffic study in greater detail with staff’s eight conditions was made by 

Commissioner Tuohy and seconded by Commissioner Newell. Vote: Botkin – Yes, Newell – Yes, 

Negro – Yes, Anderson – Yes, Tuohy –– Yes, Branson – Yes, Brackett – Yes.  Motion approved. 

 

Bosco mentioned there will be two to three more public meetings for public comment discuss the 

topic before it would be considered for approval by the Village Board. If anyone has any questions 

they can reach out to Village and more specifically myself and the Community Development 

Department.  

 

OLD BUSINESS – None 

 

PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS AND PROJECT UPDATES 

Toth mentioned the recreational vehicles item went to the Committee of the Whole meeting on 

February 21, 2022 and staff is working on finalizing the new ordinance to bring to the Village 

Board. Staff provided the Village Board with all the Plan Commission’s comments and decided to 

keep the time as Thursday 6pm to Monday noon and change the two week periods to April 1 -15 

and October 15 - 30. 

 

Toth shared that in 2020 Aurora Pack brought forward their full expansion plan and recently 

submitted building plans that were different than what was approved. This resulted in a minor 

change that needed to be approved by the Village Board. It was deemed a minor change since it 

met all the criteria for the PUD for the I-3 District, but changes were significant enough that Village 

Board needed to approve the altered site plan. Toth also shared permits are getting ready for the 

Orchard Acres development, which includes Starbucks and Taco Bell.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn made by Commissioner Anderson and seconded by Commissioner Botkin.  All 

in favor.  Motion approved. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Jessica Watkins 

Village Clerk 



 

 

STAFF REPORT TO THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: MIKE TOTH, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Meeting Date:  May 3, 2022 

 

Petition Number:  #22-03  

 

Petitioner:  Phelan-JK/JB, Midwest, LLC  

 

Location: The subject properties are generally 

located between Smoke Tree Plaza and Sullivan 

Road, east of Evergreen Drive. 

 

Property Index Numbers:  15-09-251-001, 

15-09-252-001,-002,-003,-004,-005,-006,-007 

& 15-09-201-033 

 

Development Size:  +28 acres  

 

Requests:  1) Map Amendment to establish the 

O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial 

Zoning District 2) Special Use - Planned Unit 

Development with deviations to the Zoning 

Ordinance 3) Site Plan Approval 4) Preliminary 

Final Plat of Subdivision 

 

Current Zoning: B-2 General Business District; 

E-R Estate Rural Residence District; O-R Office 

and Research District  

 

Current Land Use: Vacant Land 

 

Comprehensive Plan Designation:  ‘Office/Industrial’  

 

PROPOSAL 

Phelan-JK/JB, Midwest, LLC is proposing to construct two speculative industrial warehouse buildings 

totaling 429,610 square feet on the vacant +28 acres located between Smoke Tree Plaza and Sullivan 

Road east of Evergreen Drive. Access to the development will be provided via two full access drives – 

a new access point at Smoke Tree Plaza and the Fairview Drive entrance at Sullivan Road. The 

developers are labeling this project the ‘Park 88 Logistics Center.’  

 

BACKGROUND 

The development of the subject properties with industrial warehouse building(s) has been discussed 

for over a year. Original concept development plans were first introduced to staff in early 2021 by a 

different development group. After refining their original concept plans to improve access and internal 

site circulation, the updated concept plans including two industrial warehouse buildings (earlier plans 



Staff Report  

Petition #22-03 

Page 2 of 6 

 

included one large warehouse building) with a central access drive directly linking Sullivan Road and 

Smoke Tree Plaza, was created. Having two buildings with a central access drive and loading docks 

oriented towards the interior of the property was viewed as being the ideal plan as business activities 

would be confined to the center of the site, thus reducing any impact the business operations could 

have on surrounding properties.   

 

At the March 15, 2021 Committee of the Whole meeting, the Village Board first discussed the concept 

development plans. While the Village Board was generally supportive of the concept development 

plans, they did have concerns regarding the potential traffic impact, specifically truck traffic entering 

and exiting the property utilizing Smoke Tree Plaza from Route 31 at Lovedale Lane. Staff notes the 

access plan included as part of that concept plan discussion specified trucks using the Smoke Tree 

Plaza entrance and only passenger vehicles utilizing the Sullivan Road entrance.  

 

In order to provide the Village Board with specific information relative to their traffic concerns, the 

developer consulted with traffic engineers to perform a Preliminary Traffic Review. The intent of their 

review was to provide information on the estimated traffic to be generated by the development, a 

review of the proposed access and circulation system, and a review the truck routes to and from the 

development. At the June 21, 2021 Committee of the Whole meeting, the developer solicited feedback 

from the Village Board on the Preliminary Traffic Review that was prepared. According to the 

updated access plan, inbound truck traffic could enter the site from the south via Sullivan Road and 

exit to the north onto Smoke Tree Plaza. Passenger vehicles could also take access from either 

entrance to the site.  The Village Board seemed supportive of the use of the Smoke Tree Plaza 

entrance for truck traffic, but was skeptical of the use of Sullivan Road for trucks.  

 

Per a 2003 Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Aurora and the Village of North Aurora, 

the City of Aurora maintains jurisdiction of Sullivan Road, which is classified by the City of Aurora as 

a city truck route. The petitioner has met with the City of Aurora to discuss a full access point to the 

development at the Fairview Drive entrance. Such discussions are ongoing and will most likely require 

geometric improvements to allow full access in close proximity to the roundabout at Highland Ave.  

 

REQUESTED ACTIONS 

Map Amendment to establish the O-R-I Office, Research and 

Light Industrial Zoning District 

The development consists of eight (8) parcels. The petitioner is 

requesting a map amendment (“rezoning”) to change the zoning of 

Parcels #1-7 to the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial 

District. Parcels #1-6 currently comprise of properties located in 

the E-R Estate Rural District. The parcels are designated E-R 

District by default due to the elimination of the A – Agricultural 

District in 2013 when the Zoning Ordinance was updated.  Parcel 

#7 is currently located in the O-R Office Research District. The 

northernmost parcel adjacent to Smoke Tree Plaza (Parcel #8) is 

located in the B-2 General Business District and would be 

subdivided to allow a portion (Lot 2) to remain in the B-2 District 

in order ensure future commercial use of the property. The 

remainder of Parcel #8 would be rezoned to the O-R-I District. According to the Zoning Ordinance: 

The purpose of the O-R-I Office and Light Industrial Research District is to provide for the grouping 

of office, research and light industrial uses compatible in scope of services and methods of operation.  



Staff Report  

Petition #22-03 

Page 3 of 6 

 

Contiguous Zoning 

North: B-2 General Business District, South: O-R Office Research District, O-R-I Office Research 

Industrial District, and R-1 Single Family Residence District, East: B-2 General Business District,  

West: BNSF Railroad Right-of-Way and B-2 General Business District 

 

Comprehensive Plan Land Use Recommendations 

The Comprehensive Plan designates the subject properties as ‘Office/Industrial’, which is consistent 

with the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial District.  

 

The proposed development area is included as part of a subarea listed in the Comprehensive Plan’s 

Commercial and Industrial Areas Plan: This industrial area includes a large distribution facility and 

vacant land accessed by Smoketree Lane, Fairview Drive and Evergreen Drive. The Village should 

encourage key roadway improvements, landscaping treatments, and signage. Potential roadways 

improvements include extensions of Fairview Drive to Smoketree Lane, and Smoketree Lane west to 

provide access to additional industrial properties. Access to this area should be encouraged from 

Evergreen Drive.  

 

The specific parcels associated with the proposed development are also referenced in the 

Comprehensive Plan’s IL Route 31 South End Subarea Plan: There is a large area of undeveloped 

land, north of Sullivan Road west of the movie theatre. Recommended street improvements would open 

this entire area up for development. The Village should remain flexible with regard to potential new 

development for this site. While most areas of the Village have a clear land use preference, as 

designated on the Land Use Plan, a number of uses could be considered appropriate for these specific 

parcels. Proximity to the Interstate, commercial uses, and the Provena/Mercy Hospital Complex could 

all impact land use decisions. For these reasons different land uses and a more flexible approach to 

development should be considered. Regardless of the use, the primary goal for the Village should be to 

support high-quality, attractive, well-designed development. 

 

Special Use –Planned Unit Development with deviations 

Per Section 17.5.4 of the Zoning Ordinance, any nonresidential or multiple-family parcel or parcels of 

land two acres or more in size shall be required to be a planned unit development. The total site area 

for the proposed development is +28 acres and the use considered nonresidential. The following table 

illustrates the proposed bulk regulations and bulk regulations required of the O-R-I Office, Research 

and Light Industrial District:  

 

Bulk Regulations  Proposed  O-R-I District 

Lot Area, Minimum  29.42 acres (Post Subdivision) 2 acres  

Lot Width, Minimum  114.13 ft. (@ Sullivan Road)   

167.27 ft. (@ Smoke Tree Plaza) 

+1,245 ft. (Development Interior) 

150 ft.  

Building Height, Maximum  Building A = 45 ft.  

Building B = 43 ft.  

50 ft.  

Floor Area Ratio (FAR), 

Maximum  
n/a None  

Lot Coverage, Maximum  35%  60%  

 

 



Staff Report  

Petition #22-03 

Page 4 of 6 

 

Lot Width (Zoning Ordinance Deviation Required) 

The Zoning Ordinance defines Lot Width as the minimum horizontal distance between the side lot 

lines of a lot measured at the required front yard setback line. The front yard setback in the O-R-I 

District is 30 feet. While the actual size of the development area is considerably wide, the access point 

on Sullivan Road would be 114.13 feet in width where 150 feet is required per the O-R-I District. That 

portion of the property is not intended to accommodate a building, but rather the access drive that 

eventually leads to the development.  

 

Yard Regulations 

The configuration of the Park 88 Logistics Center boundaries are atypical in that there are no clearly-

defined front, rear and side yards. After review of the yard areas it does not appear that any deviations 

would be required. Section 17.2.4 of the Zoning Ordinance grants authority to the Community 

Development Director to receive, review and make decisions on zoning interpretations.  With respect 

to setback and yard dimensions required as part of the Park 88 Logistics Center, the Community 

Development Director has made the final determination:  

 

All setback and yard dimensions shall be governed by the Preliminary Site Plan, prepared by Pinnacle 

Engineering Group, dated April 6, 2022. In no event shall any improvements be constructed closer to 

the adjacent property line than what is included on the Preliminary Site Plan.  

 

Site Plan Approval  

Per Section 17.4.4(B) of the Zoning Ordinance, site plan review shall be required for each building 

permit application for multi-family, townhouse, commercial, and industrial development for which a 

site plan has not already been approved.  

 

After refining their original concept plans to improve access and internal site circulation, the updated 

plans now include two industrial warehouse buildings (earlier plans included one large warehouse 

building) with a central access drive directly linking Sullivan Road and Smoke Tree Plaza. Having two 

buildings with a central access drive and loading docks oriented towards the interior of the property 

was viewed as being the ideal plan as business activities would be confined to the center of the site, 

thus reducing any impact the business operations could have on surrounding properties.   

 

Preliminary Final Plat of Subdivision  

A Plat of Subdivision, known as the Final Plat of Subdivision Park 88 Logistics Center, is being 

proposed. Lot 1 of the Park 88 Logistics Center would consist of the entirety of the development and 

be 29.42 acres in area. As previously mentioned, Lot 2 would be created through the subdivision of 

Parcel #8 in order ensure future commercial use of the property and would be 1.2 acres in area. An 

access easement would be granted to Lot 2 in order to allow any future development to utilize the 

proposed access to the Park 88 Logistics Center, thus reducing the amount of curb cuts in that general 

area.  The additional land area included in the overall development can be attributed to the vacation of 

Fairview Drive. Fairview Drive is a north/south right-of-way that was once used as an access drive 

into the property from Sullivan Road.  As part of the vacation of Fairview Drive, the Village would no 

longer be responsible for the right-of-way, which is currently in a state of deterioration. Fairview 

Drive would essentially become the private access drive for the development.  

 

 

 

 



Staff Report  

Petition #22-03 

Page 5 of 6 

 

FINDINGS 

The Community Development Department finds that the information presented in Petition #22-03 

meets the Standards for Map Amendments, Specials Uses, Site Plan Review and Planned Unit 

Developments as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance. Based on the above considerations, Staff 

recommends the Plan Commission make the following motion recommending approval of Petition 

#22-03, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Any traffic improvements made on Sullivan Road adjacent to the development’s entrance shall 

be to the satisfaction of the Village of North Aurora and the City of Aurora.  

 

2. In no event shall any improvements be constructed closer to the adjacent property line than 

what is included on the Preliminary Site Plan, prepared by Pinnacle Engineering Group, dated 

April 6, 2022. 

 

3. The use of guardhouses and driveway gates shall be prohibited in order to allow on-site traffic 

to flow freely and prevent spillover onto adjacent streets and properties.  

 

4. Semi trucks shall be prohibited from parking or idling on the perimeter access drives, 

passenger vehicle parking lots, and passenger vehicle drive aisles.  

 

5. On-site management shall effectively monitor and regulate all on-site trucking activities in 

order to minimize any light, sound and odor emissions as well as any other performance 

standards per Section 12.5 of the Zoning Ordinance.  

  

6. The six (6) foot fence included in the residential buffer area located to the south of Building A 

shall be opaque.  

 

7. Any perimeter fencing shall be black, metallic, non-chain link construction and limited to eight 

(8) feet in height. 

 

8. All business activities shall be conducted completely within the confines of the buildings. 

 

9. The keeping of any goods, material, merchandise or equipment outside of the building(s) shall 

be prohibited.  

 

10. A photometric plan shall be approved by the Village prior to building permit issuance.  

 

11. Any tree of good quality larger than six inches in diameter when measured twelve (12) inches 

above the ground, which are not located within fifteen (15) feet of or within a building 

footprint, within the road footprint or in those areas listed Section 16.12.010.C.3.a of the 

Subdivision Ordinance, shall be tagged by the petitioner and evaluated by the Village for 

preservation.  

 

12. Quality trees and shrubs located along the perimeter of the development shall be preserved to 

the greatest extent possible to maintain natural landscape buffering.   

 

13. Construction traffic shall not impede on the ability of the Village and Fire Protection District to 

provide emergency services.  



Staff Report  

Petition #22-03 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

14. All dumpsters located on the subject property shall be screened per Section 14.11.A of the 

Zoning Ordinance.  

 

15. All ground-mounted and rooftop mechanicals shall be properly screened per the requirements 

of the Zoning Ordinance.  

 

16. All signage shall adhere to the requirements of the Sign Ordinance. 

 

17. A signage easement shall be included on Lot 2 and be large enough to accommodate the 

monument sign and required landscaped base.  

 

 

 

 





















































































































East Dundee, IL 60118 

RE: Smoketree/Sullivan Road
       Project Number(s): 2209264  
       County: Kane 

Dear Applicant:

Adam Rawe
Division of Ecosystems and Environment
217-785-5500

February 02, 2022

Leia Cooney
Pinnacle Engineering Group 
1051 E. Main St, Suite 217

This letter is in reference to the project you recently submitted for consultation. The natural resource 
review provided by EcoCAT identified protected resources that may be in the vicinity of the proposed 
action. The Department has evaluated this information and concluded that adverse effects are unlikely. 
Therefore, consultation under 17 Ill. Adm. Code Part 1075 is terminated.

This consultation is valid for two years unless new information becomes available that was not 
previously considered; the proposed action is modified; or additional species, essential habitat, or 
Natural Areas are identified in the vicinity. If the project has not been implemented within two years of 
the date of this letter, or any of the above listed conditions develop, a new consultation is necessary.

The natural resource review reflects the information existing in the Illinois Natural Heritage Database 
at the time of the project submittal, and should not be regarded as a final statement on the site being 
considered, nor should it be a substitute for detailed site surveys or field surveys required for 
environmental assessments. If additional protected resources are encountered during the project’s 
implementation, you must comply with the applicable statutes and regulations. Also, note that 
termination does not imply IDNR's authorization or endorsement of the proposed action.

Please contact me if you have questions regarding this review.

JB Pritzker, Governor

Colleen Callahan, Director



PROPOSED BUILDING A

263,682 SF

FF=692.00

PROPOSED BUILDING B

165,928 SF

FF=692.00

3
9
.
5
'

3
6

.
0

'

2
5

4
.
0

'

2
8

0
.
0

'

3
6

.
9

'

40.0'
128.7'

180.3'

30.0'

59.2'

6
1

.
0

'
2

8
0

.
0

'
6

0
.
0

'
7

0
.
0

'
5

5
.
0

'
6

1
.
0

'
3

2
0

.
0

'
6

0
.
0

'
7

0
.
0

'
5

5
.
0

'
1

0
5

.
8

'

30.0'

63.5'

42.5'
572.0'

40.0'

7

.
9

'

42.5'

126.3'

30.0'

806.0'42.5' 42.5'

64.9'

30.0'

1
6

.
0

'

1
7

.
0

'

1
1

0
.
9

'
3

6
.
0

'
3

8
.
9

'

3
8

.
9

'
3

6
.
0

'
3
9
.
3
'

8
6

.
0

'

62.6' 60.0'

8
6

.
2

'

66.4'

8
5
.
5
'

122.2'

8
5

.
0

'

5
2

.
0

'

52.0'

5
2

.
0

'

52.0'

NOTE:

OFFSITE SITE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

MAY BE NEEDED PENDING FINAL

APPROVAL WITH AURORA

STORMWATER FACILITY

S
T

O
R

M
W

A
T

E
R

 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

STORMWATER

FACILITY

LOT 2

1
8

.
5

'

2
4

.
0

'

1
8

.
5

'

1
8

.
5

'

2
4

.
0

'

1
8

.
5

'

LOT 1

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                   1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                      PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SMOKETREE - PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING DESIGN - SITE PLAN JOB NO. 2335.00-IL

N
O

R
T

H

SCALE: 1"=80

04/27/2022

SITE DATA

SITE AREA:

LOT 1: 1,281,906 SF

LOT 2: 53,479 SF

BUILDING A

BUILDING AREA: 263,682 SF

CAR PARKING REQUIRED:

OFFICE (10%)

(2 STALLS/1000 SF) x 26,368 SF = 53 STALLS

WAREHOUSE (90%)

(1 STALL/5,000 SF) x 237,314 SF = 47 STALLS

TOTAL REQUIRED = 100 STALLS

CAR PARKING PROPOSED:

PROPOSED: 214 STALLS

     INCLUDING 8 ADA STALLS

TRAILER PARKING PROPOSED:

PROPOSED: 47 STALLS

BUILDING B

BUILDING AREA: 165,928 SF

CAR PARKING REQUIRED:

OFFICE (10%)

(2 STALLS/1000 SF) X 16,593 SF = 33 STALLS

WAREHOUSE (90%)

(1 STALL/5,000 SF) X 149,335 SF = 30 STALLS

TOTAL REQUIRED = 63 STALLS

CAR PARKING PROPOSED:

PROPOSED: 170 STALLS

      INCLUDING 8 ADA STALLS

TRAILER PARKING PROPOSED:

PROPOSED: 47 STALLS

*NOTE: OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS WERE CREATED

USING THE WAREHOUSING, STORAGE, AND DISTRIBUTION FACILITY

UNDER THE MANUFACTURING, STORAGE, RESEARCH AND

TRANSPORTATION USES CATEGORY IN SECTION 13.13 OF THE

MUNICIPAL CODE.

STRIPING/SIGNAGE

LEGEND

4'' YELLOW LINE

4" YELLOW LINE DIAGONAL AT 45° SPACED 2' O.C.

YELLOW LETTERS OR SYMBOLS / PAVEMENT MARKINGS

WHITE 24" STOP BAR PAVEMENT MARKING

R1-1 STOP SIGN (30"x30")

NO TRUCK ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMOKE TREE PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SULLIVAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
17 EXTERIOR DOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
27 EXTERIOR DOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/27/2022 1:23 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL Preliminary  - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL Preliminary Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL Preliminary Engineering Exhibits.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B



W
W

W

W W

PROPOSED BUILDING A

263,682 SF

FF=692.00

PROPOSED BUILDING B

165,928 SF

FF=692.00

W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W

W W W W W W W

W W W W W W W W W W

W W W W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W

STORMWATER FACILITY

S
T

O
R

M
W

A
T

E
R

 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

STORMWATER

FACILITY

LOT 2

LOT 1

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                   1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                      PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SMOKETREE - PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING DESIGN - UTILITY PLAN JOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/27/2022

N
O

R
T

H

SCALE: 1"=80

LEGEND

CLEANOUT

FIRE HYDRANT

LIGHTING

SANITARY SEWER

STORM SEWER

WATER MAIN

FORCE MAIN

ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER

POWER POLE

STREET SIGN

GAS MAIN

TELEPHONE LINE

VALVE BOX

ELECTRICAL CABLE

OR PEDESTAL

SANITARY MANHOLE

STORM MANHOLE

CATCH BASIN

INLET

PRECAST FLARED END SECTION

VALVE VAULT

EXISTING PROPOSED

POWER POLE WITH LIGHT

GUY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMOKE TREE PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SULLIVAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
17 EXTERIOR DOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
27 EXTERIOR DOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/27/2022 1:24 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL Preliminary  - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL Preliminary Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL Preliminary Engineering Exhibits.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W



PROPOSED BUILDING A

263,682 SF

FF=692.00

PROPOSED BUILDING B

165,928 SF

FF=692.00

691.05
691.05 691.05

691.00

688.00

691.00

688.00

688.50R

689.00689.00
689.00

691.00

688.00

688.00

691.00

688.50

690.50

690.00

691.00

691.00

690.00R
696.00R

696.00R

689.00

690.00

690.50690.50

691.40

691.40

689.50

688.30R

690.00

690.00

689.00R

690.00

691.05 691.05 691.05 691.05 691.05 691.05 691.05

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.05 691.05 691.05 691.05 691.05

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

691.40

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
0
.
9
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
0
.
9
0

6
9
0
.
4
0

R
6
9
0
.
4
0

R

6
9
0
.
4
0

R

690.55R
690.55R

690.55R

690.55R

690.55R
690.55R

690.55R
690.55R

690.55R

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
0
.
1
0

R
6
9
0
.
1
0

R

6
9
0
.
1
0

R

690.50R 690.55R

690.55R

690.55R
690.55R

690.55R

690.55R

690.35R

6
9
0
.
1
0

R

6
9
0
.
1
0

R
6
9
0
.
1
0

R

6
9
0
.
9
0

6
9
0
.
9
0

690.35R

6
9
0
.
1
0

R
6
9
0
.
1
0

R

6
9
0
.
1
0

R

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
1
.
4
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
9
0
.
6
0

688.50R

689.00

688.50R

689.00

688.50R688.50R

689.00

688.50R

689.00

688.50R

689.00

688.50R

689.00
688.50R

689.00

688.50R

689.00

688.80R

690.35R

6
9
0
.
6
0

6
8
9
.
5
0

R

690.00R

693.00R

693.00R

691.20
690.20 693.20

696.20

690.50

689.50

689.50

689.90

STORMWATER FACILITY

S
T

O
R

M
W

A
T

E
R

 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

Y

STORMWATER

FACILITY

LOT 2

LOT 1

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                   1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                      PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SMOKETREE - PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING DESIGN - GRADING PLAN JOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/27/2022

N
O

R
T

H

SCALE: 1"=80

EASEMENT LINE

REVERSE PITCH CURB & GUTTER

DEPRESSED CURB

NORMAL WATER LEVEL (NWL)

HIGH WATER LEVEL (HWL)

FLOODPLAIN

FLOODWAY

WETLANDS

CONTOUR

SPOT ELEVATION

DIRECTION OF SURFACE FLOW

OVERFLOW RELIEF ROUTING

DITCH OR SWALE

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

CURB AND GUTTER

DIVERSION SWALE

PROPERTY LINE

LEGEND

EXISTING PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMOKE TREE PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SULLIVAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
17 EXTERIOR DOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
27 EXTERIOR DOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/27/2022 1:24 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL Preliminary  - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL Preliminary Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL Preliminary Engineering Exhibits.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
749

AutoCAD SHX Text
750.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
749



W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W

W W W W W W W

W W W W W W W W W W

W W W W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W

W W

1" = 80'0 160'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

N
O

R
T
H

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

SHEET L-2 SHEET L-3A

SHEET L-5A

SHEET L-4A
SHEET L-4B

SHEET L-5B

SM
O

KE
 T

R
EE

 P
LA

ZA

SU
LL

IV
AN

 R
O

AD

ST
O

R
M

W
AT

ER
 A

R
EA

ST
O

R
M

W
AT

ER
 A

R
EA

STORMWATER AREA

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                   1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                      PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SMOKETREE - PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE DESIGN - OVERVIEW PLAN (L-1) JOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/06/2022

PROPOSED 6'
HIGH FENCE

27
0'

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 B
U

FF
ER

PROPOSED LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

PROPOSED LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

PROPOSED LIGHTPOLE, TYP. PROPOSED LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

TURF

TURF

TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE QTY REMARKS

DECIDUOUS TREE 86
Acer rubrum `Red Sunset` Red Sunset Maple 2.5" Cal. 45` T x 33` W
Aesculus hippocastanum European Horsechestnut 2.5" Cal. 60` T x 50` W
Carya ovata Shagbark Hickory 2.5" Cal. 80` T x 40` W
Fagus sylvatica European Beech 2.5" Cal. 50` T x 45` W
Ginkgo biloba Maidenhair Tree 2.5" Cal. 50` T x 35` W
Liriodendron tulipifera Tulip Tree 2.5" Cal. 60` T x 40` W
Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak 2.5" Cal. 70` T x 60` W
Quercus macrocarpa Burr Oak 2.5" Cal. 70` T x 70` W
Ulmus x `New Horizon` New Horizon Elm 2.5" Cal. 35` T x 20` W

EVERGREEN TREE 20
Abies concolor White Fir 6` Ht. 40` T x 23` W
Juniperus virginiana `Glauca` Silver Eastern Red Cedar 6` Ht. 23` T x 9` W
Picea abies Norway Spruce 6` Ht. 60` T x 28` W
Picea glauca `Densata` Black Hills Spruce 6` Ht. 30` T x 15` W
Picea omorika Serbian Spruce 6` Ht. 55` T x 23` W
Pinus flexilis 'Vanderwolf's Pyramid' Vanderwolf's Pyramid Limber Pine 6` Ht. 50' T x 25' W

ORNAMENTAL TREE 8
Amelanchier x grandiflora `Princess Diana` Princess Diana Serviceberry 1.5" Cal. 18` T x 14` W
Cercis canadensis Eastern Redbud Multi-stem 8` Ht. 25` T x 25` W
Magnolia x `Butterflies` Butterflies Magnolia 1.5" Cal. 17` T x 12` W
Malus x `Royal Raindrops` Royal Raindrops Crabapple 1.5" Cal. 20` T x 15` W
Syringa reticulata 'Summer Storm' Summer Storm Tree Lilac 1.5" Cal. 17` T x 12` W

SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE QTY REMARKS

LARGE EVERGREEN SHRUB 12
Juniperus chinensis `Mint Julep` Mint Julep Juniper 3` Ht. 5` T x 7` W
Taxus x media `Hicksii` Hicks Yew 3` Ht. 10` T x 5` W
Thuja occidentalis `Holmstrup` Holmstrup Cedar 3` Ht. 14` T x 4` W
Tsuga canadensis 'Moon Frost' Moon Frost Eastern Hemlock 3` Ht. 6' T x 6' W

SMALL DECIDUOUS SHRUB 236
Aronia melanocarpa`Low Scape Mound` Low Scape Mound Chokeberry 18" Ht. 2` T x 2` W
Diervilla lonicera'Kodiak Orange' Kodiak Orange Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle 18" Ht. 3` T x 4` W
Hydrangea paniculata `Bobo` Bobo Hydrangea 18" Ht. 3` T x 4` W
Itea virginica 'Sprich' TM Little Henry Sweetspire 18" Ht. 3' T x 3' W
Physocarpus opulifolius `Nanus` Dwarf Ninebark 18" Ht. 3` T x 4` W
Syringa x 'SMSJBP7' TM Bloomerang Dark Purple Lilac 18" Ht. 4' T x 3' W

TALL ORNAMENTAL GRASS 219
Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Overdam' Overdam Feather Reed Grass 1 gal. 2' T x 2' W
Panicum virgatum `Heavy Metal` Blue Switch Grass 1 gal. 4` T x 3` W
Panicum virgatum `Northwind` Switch Grass 1 gal. 3' T x 2' W

SMALL EVERGREEN SHRUB 215
Juniperus sabina `Buffalo` Buffalo Juniper 5 gal. 1` T x 6` W
Juniperus squamata `Blue Star` Blue Star Juniper 18" Ht. 3` T x 4` W
Picea abies `Pumila` Dwarf Globe Spruce 18" Ht. 3` T x 6` W
Thuja occidentalis 'Bobozam' TM Mr. Bowling Ball Arborvitae 18" Ht. 3' T x 3' W
Thuja occidentalis 'Congabe' TM Fire Chief Arborvitae 18" Ht. 4' T x 4' W
Tsuga canadensis 'Gracilis' Gracilis Eastern Hemlock 18" Ht. 3' T x 5' W
Tsuga canadensis 'Jeddeloh' Jeddeloh Eastern Hemlock 18" Ht. 3' T X 4' W

SHORT ORNAMENTAL GRASS 211
Hakonechloa macra Japanese Forest Grass 1 gal.
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln' Hameln Fountain Grass 1 gal.
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Little Honey' Little Honey Dwarf Fountain Grass 1 gal.

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME QTY REMARKS
931 sf

Actaea simplex Snakeroot 24" W x 36" T
Alchemilla mollis `Thriller` Lady`s Mantle 18" T x 18" W
Allium x `Summer Beauty` Summer Beauty Allium 16" T x 22" W
Aster novae-angliae 'Purple Dome' Purple Dome New England Aster 18" T x 24" W
Astilbe x arendsii `Fanal` Fanal Astilbe 18" T x 12" W
Dianthus gratianopolitanus `Feuerhexe` Firewitch Cheddar Pink 4" T X 12" W
Gaillardia aristata 'Granada' Granada Blanket Flower 12" T x 14" W
Heuchera x `Midnight Rose` Midnight Rose Coral Bells 10" T x 16" W
Heuchera x `Obsidian` Obsidian Coral Bells 10" T x 16" W
Hosta fortunei `Patriot` Patriot Hosta 18" T x 30" W
Hosta x 'Rainforest Sunrise' Rainforest Sunrise Hosta 12" T x 18" W
Ligularia stenocephala `Little Rocket` Little Rocket Ligularia 48" T x 48" W
Nepeta x faassenii `Walkers Low` Walkers Low Catmint 24" T x 18" W
Sedum x 'Autumn Fire' Autumn Fire Sedum 24" T x 18" W
Tiarella x 'Crow Feather' Crow Feather Foamflower 12" T x 15" W

GROUND COVERS  QTY

TURF 303, 423 sf
-

CONCEPT PLANT SCHEDULE

SHEET L-3B

MONUMENT SIGN

MONUMENT SIGN

BLEND TURF THROUGH
LINE OF DISTURBANCE

BLEND TURF THROUGH
LINE OF DISTURBANCE

BLEND TURF THROUGH
LINE OF DISTURBANCE

BLEND TURF THROUGH
LINE OF DISTURBANCE

SHEET L-3C

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY & SIDEWALK EASEMENT PER DOC. 2011K068111

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT PER DOC. 2011K068111

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'x40' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. 2014K014227

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'x60' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT PER DOC. 2014K014227

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' COMED & GAS EASEMENT PER DOC. 918478

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARSH-LIKE VEGETATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:35 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:35 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg



W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W WW
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

N
O

R
T
H

1" = 20'0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

S
H

E
E

T L-3A

S
H

E
E

T L-2

TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

DECIDUOUS TREE
Acer rubrum `Red Sunset` Red Sunset Maple
Aesculus hippocastanum European Horsechestnut
Carya ovata Shagbark Hickory
Fagus sylvatica European Beech
Ginkgo biloba Maidenhair Tree
Liriodendron tulipifera Tulip Tree
Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak
Quercus macrocarpa Burr Oak
Ulmus x `New Horizon` New Horizon Elm

EVERGREEN TREE
Abies concolor White Fir
Juniperus virginiana `Glauca` Silver Eastern Red Cedar
Picea abies Norway Spruce
Picea glauca `Densata` Black Hills Spruce
Picea omorika Serbian Spruce
Pinus flexilis 'Vanderwolf's Pyramid' Vanderwolf's Pyramid Limber Pine

ORNAMENTAL TREE
Amelanchier x grandiflora `Princess Diana` Princess Diana Serviceberry
Cercis canadensis Eastern Redbud Multi-stem
Magnolia x `Butterflies` Butterflies Magnolia
Malus x `Royal Raindrops` Royal Raindrops Crabapple
Syringa reticulata 'Summer Storm' Summer Storm Tree Lilac

SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

LARGE EVERGREEN SHRUB
Juniperus chinensis `Mint Julep` Mint Julep Juniper
Taxus x media `Hicksii` Hicks Yew
Thuja occidentalis `Holmstrup` Holmstrup Cedar
Tsuga canadensis 'Moon Frost' Moon Frost Eastern Hemlock

SMALL DECIDUOUS SHRUB
Aronia melanocarpa`Low Scape Mound` Low Scape Mound Chokeberry
Diervilla lonicera'Kodiak Orange' Kodiak Orange Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle
Hydrangea paniculata `Bobo` Bobo Hydrangea
Itea virginica 'Sprich' TM Little Henry Sweetspire
Physocarpus opulifolius `Nanus` Dwarf Ninebark
Syringa x 'SMSJBP7' TM Bloomerang Dark Purple Lilac

TALL ORNAMENTAL GRASS
Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Overdam' Overdam Feather Reed Grass
Panicum virgatum `Heavy Metal` Blue Switch Grass
Panicum virgatum `Northwind` Switch Grass

SMALL EVERGREEN SHRUB
Juniperus sabina `Buffalo` Buffalo Juniper
Juniperus squamata `Blue Star` Blue Star Juniper
Picea abies `Pumila` Dwarf Globe Spruce
Thuja occidentalis 'Bobozam' TM Mr. Bowling Ball Arborvitae
Thuja occidentalis 'Congabe' TM Fire Chief Arborvitae
Tsuga canadensis 'Gracilis' Gracilis Eastern Hemlock
Tsuga canadensis 'Jeddeloh' Jeddeloh Eastern Hemlock

SHORT ORNAMENTAL GRASS
Hakonechloa macra Japanese Forest Grass
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln' Hameln Fountain Grass
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Little Honey' Little Honey Dwarf Fountain Grass

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

PERENNIALS
Actaea simplex Snakeroot
Alchemilla mollis `Thriller` Lady`s Mantle
Allium x `Summer Beauty` Summer Beauty Allium
Aster novae-angliae 'Purple Dome' Purple Dome New England Aster
Astilbe x arendsii `Fanal` Fanal Astilbe
Dianthus gratianopolitanus `Feuerhexe` Firewitch Cheddar Pink
Gaillardia aristata 'Granada' Granada Blanket Flower
Heuchera x `Midnight Rose` Midnight Rose Coral Bells
Heuchera x `Obsidian` Obsidian Coral Bells
Hosta fortunei `Patriot` Patriot Hosta
Hosta x 'Rainforest Sunrise' Rainforest Sunrise Hosta
Ligularia stenocephala `Little Rocket` Little Rocket Ligularia
Nepeta x faassenii `Walkers Low` Walkers Low Catmint
Sedum x 'Autumn Fire' Autumn Fire Sedum
Tiarella x 'Crow Feather' Crow Feather Foamflower

GROUND COVERS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

TURF
-

CONCEPT PLANT KEY

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                   1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                      PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SMOKETREE - PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE DESIGN - ENLARGEMENT (L-2) JOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/06/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:35 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:35 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg



W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W W W W

N
O

R
T
H

1" = 20'0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

S
H

E
E

T L-3A

S
H

E
E

T L-2

TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

DECIDUOUS TREE
Acer rubrum `Red Sunset` Red Sunset Maple
Aesculus hippocastanum European Horsechestnut
Carya ovata Shagbark Hickory
Fagus sylvatica European Beech
Ginkgo biloba Maidenhair Tree
Liriodendron tulipifera Tulip Tree
Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak
Quercus macrocarpa Burr Oak
Ulmus x `New Horizon` New Horizon Elm

EVERGREEN TREE
Abies concolor White Fir
Juniperus virginiana `Glauca` Silver Eastern Red Cedar
Picea abies Norway Spruce
Picea glauca `Densata` Black Hills Spruce
Picea omorika Serbian Spruce
Pinus flexilis 'Vanderwolf's Pyramid' Vanderwolf's Pyramid Limber Pine

ORNAMENTAL TREE
Amelanchier x grandiflora `Princess Diana` Princess Diana Serviceberry
Cercis canadensis Eastern Redbud Multi-stem
Magnolia x `Butterflies` Butterflies Magnolia
Malus x `Royal Raindrops` Royal Raindrops Crabapple
Syringa reticulata 'Summer Storm' Summer Storm Tree Lilac

SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

LARGE EVERGREEN SHRUB
Juniperus chinensis `Mint Julep` Mint Julep Juniper
Taxus x media `Hicksii` Hicks Yew
Thuja occidentalis `Holmstrup` Holmstrup Cedar
Tsuga canadensis 'Moon Frost' Moon Frost Eastern Hemlock

SMALL DECIDUOUS SHRUB
Aronia melanocarpa`Low Scape Mound` Low Scape Mound Chokeberry
Diervilla lonicera'Kodiak Orange' Kodiak Orange Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle
Hydrangea paniculata `Bobo` Bobo Hydrangea
Itea virginica 'Sprich' TM Little Henry Sweetspire
Physocarpus opulifolius `Nanus` Dwarf Ninebark
Syringa x 'SMSJBP7' TM Bloomerang Dark Purple Lilac

TALL ORNAMENTAL GRASS
Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Overdam' Overdam Feather Reed Grass
Panicum virgatum `Heavy Metal` Blue Switch Grass
Panicum virgatum `Northwind` Switch Grass

SMALL EVERGREEN SHRUB
Juniperus sabina `Buffalo` Buffalo Juniper
Juniperus squamata `Blue Star` Blue Star Juniper
Picea abies `Pumila` Dwarf Globe Spruce
Thuja occidentalis 'Bobozam' TM Mr. Bowling Ball Arborvitae
Thuja occidentalis 'Congabe' TM Fire Chief Arborvitae
Tsuga canadensis 'Gracilis' Gracilis Eastern Hemlock
Tsuga canadensis 'Jeddeloh' Jeddeloh Eastern Hemlock

SHORT ORNAMENTAL GRASS
Hakonechloa macra Japanese Forest Grass
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln' Hameln Fountain Grass
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Little Honey' Little Honey Dwarf Fountain Grass

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

PERENNIALS
Actaea simplex Snakeroot
Alchemilla mollis `Thriller` Lady`s Mantle
Allium x `Summer Beauty` Summer Beauty Allium
Aster novae-angliae 'Purple Dome' Purple Dome New England Aster
Astilbe x arendsii `Fanal` Fanal Astilbe
Dianthus gratianopolitanus `Feuerhexe` Firewitch Cheddar Pink
Gaillardia aristata 'Granada' Granada Blanket Flower
Heuchera x `Midnight Rose` Midnight Rose Coral Bells
Heuchera x `Obsidian` Obsidian Coral Bells
Hosta fortunei `Patriot` Patriot Hosta
Hosta x 'Rainforest Sunrise' Rainforest Sunrise Hosta
Ligularia stenocephala `Little Rocket` Little Rocket Ligularia
Nepeta x faassenii `Walkers Low` Walkers Low Catmint
Sedum x 'Autumn Fire' Autumn Fire Sedum
Tiarella x 'Crow Feather' Crow Feather Foamflower

GROUND COVERS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

TURF
-

CONCEPT PLANT KEY

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                   1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                      PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SMOKETREE - PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE DESIGN - ENLARGEMENT (L-3) JOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/06/2022

ENLARGEMENT L-3A

SCALE: 1"=20'

ENLARGEMENT L-3B

SCALE: 1"=20'

N
O

R
T
H

1" = 20'
0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

ENLARGEMENT L-3C

SCALE: 1"=20'

SHEET L-3C

SHEET L-3B

N
O

R
T
H

1" = 20'0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY & SIDEWALK EASEMENT PER DOC. 2011K068111

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:36 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:36 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg



W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

N
O

R
T
H

1" = 20'0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

ENLARGEMENT L-4A

SCALE: 1"=20'

ENLARGEMENT L-4B

SCALE: 1"=20'

SHEET L-5A

SHEET L-4A

SHEET L-5B

SHEET L-4B

TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

DECIDUOUS TREE
Acer rubrum `Red Sunset` Red Sunset Maple
Aesculus hippocastanum European Horsechestnut
Carya ovata Shagbark Hickory
Fagus sylvatica European Beech
Ginkgo biloba Maidenhair Tree
Liriodendron tulipifera Tulip Tree
Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak
Quercus macrocarpa Burr Oak
Ulmus x `New Horizon` New Horizon Elm

EVERGREEN TREE
Abies concolor White Fir
Juniperus virginiana `Glauca` Silver Eastern Red Cedar
Picea abies Norway Spruce
Picea glauca `Densata` Black Hills Spruce
Picea omorika Serbian Spruce
Pinus flexilis 'Vanderwolf's Pyramid' Vanderwolf's Pyramid Limber Pine

ORNAMENTAL TREE
Amelanchier x grandiflora `Princess Diana` Princess Diana Serviceberry
Cercis canadensis Eastern Redbud Multi-stem
Magnolia x `Butterflies` Butterflies Magnolia
Malus x `Royal Raindrops` Royal Raindrops Crabapple
Syringa reticulata 'Summer Storm' Summer Storm Tree Lilac

SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

LARGE EVERGREEN SHRUB
Juniperus chinensis `Mint Julep` Mint Julep Juniper
Taxus x media `Hicksii` Hicks Yew
Thuja occidentalis `Holmstrup` Holmstrup Cedar
Tsuga canadensis 'Moon Frost' Moon Frost Eastern Hemlock

SMALL DECIDUOUS SHRUB
Aronia melanocarpa`Low Scape Mound` Low Scape Mound Chokeberry
Diervilla lonicera'Kodiak Orange' Kodiak Orange Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle
Hydrangea paniculata `Bobo` Bobo Hydrangea
Itea virginica 'Sprich' TM Little Henry Sweetspire
Physocarpus opulifolius `Nanus` Dwarf Ninebark
Syringa x 'SMSJBP7' TM Bloomerang Dark Purple Lilac

TALL ORNAMENTAL GRASS
Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Overdam' Overdam Feather Reed Grass
Panicum virgatum `Heavy Metal` Blue Switch Grass
Panicum virgatum `Northwind` Switch Grass

SMALL EVERGREEN SHRUB
Juniperus sabina `Buffalo` Buffalo Juniper
Juniperus squamata `Blue Star` Blue Star Juniper
Picea abies `Pumila` Dwarf Globe Spruce
Thuja occidentalis 'Bobozam' TM Mr. Bowling Ball Arborvitae
Thuja occidentalis 'Congabe' TM Fire Chief Arborvitae
Tsuga canadensis 'Gracilis' Gracilis Eastern Hemlock
Tsuga canadensis 'Jeddeloh' Jeddeloh Eastern Hemlock

SHORT ORNAMENTAL GRASS
Hakonechloa macra Japanese Forest Grass
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln' Hameln Fountain Grass
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Little Honey' Little Honey Dwarf Fountain Grass

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

PERENNIALS
Actaea simplex Snakeroot
Alchemilla mollis `Thriller` Lady`s Mantle
Allium x `Summer Beauty` Summer Beauty Allium
Aster novae-angliae 'Purple Dome' Purple Dome New England Aster
Astilbe x arendsii `Fanal` Fanal Astilbe
Dianthus gratianopolitanus `Feuerhexe` Firewitch Cheddar Pink
Gaillardia aristata 'Granada' Granada Blanket Flower
Heuchera x `Midnight Rose` Midnight Rose Coral Bells
Heuchera x `Obsidian` Obsidian Coral Bells
Hosta fortunei `Patriot` Patriot Hosta
Hosta x 'Rainforest Sunrise' Rainforest Sunrise Hosta
Ligularia stenocephala `Little Rocket` Little Rocket Ligularia
Nepeta x faassenii `Walkers Low` Walkers Low Catmint
Sedum x 'Autumn Fire' Autumn Fire Sedum
Tiarella x 'Crow Feather' Crow Feather Foamflower

GROUND COVERS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

TURF
-

CONCEPT PLANT KEY

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                   1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                      PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SMOKETREE - PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE DESIGN - ENLARGEMENT (L-4) JOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/06/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'x40' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. 2014K014227

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'x60' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT PER DOC. 2014K014227

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:36 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:36 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg



W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W

W W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W

WW

W W W

N
O

R
T
H

1" = 20'0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

ENLARGEMENT L-5A

SCALE: 1"=20'

ENLARGEMENT L-5B

SCALE: 1"=20'

SHEET L-5B

SHEET L-4B

SHEET L-5A

SHEET L-4A

TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

DECIDUOUS TREE
Acer rubrum `Red Sunset` Red Sunset Maple
Aesculus hippocastanum European Horsechestnut
Carya ovata Shagbark Hickory
Fagus sylvatica European Beech
Ginkgo biloba Maidenhair Tree
Liriodendron tulipifera Tulip Tree
Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak
Quercus macrocarpa Burr Oak
Ulmus x `New Horizon` New Horizon Elm

EVERGREEN TREE
Abies concolor White Fir
Juniperus virginiana `Glauca` Silver Eastern Red Cedar
Picea abies Norway Spruce
Picea glauca `Densata` Black Hills Spruce
Picea omorika Serbian Spruce
Pinus flexilis 'Vanderwolf's Pyramid' Vanderwolf's Pyramid Limber Pine

ORNAMENTAL TREE
Amelanchier x grandiflora `Princess Diana` Princess Diana Serviceberry
Cercis canadensis Eastern Redbud Multi-stem
Magnolia x `Butterflies` Butterflies Magnolia
Malus x `Royal Raindrops` Royal Raindrops Crabapple
Syringa reticulata 'Summer Storm' Summer Storm Tree Lilac

SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

LARGE EVERGREEN SHRUB
Juniperus chinensis `Mint Julep` Mint Julep Juniper
Taxus x media `Hicksii` Hicks Yew
Thuja occidentalis `Holmstrup` Holmstrup Cedar
Tsuga canadensis 'Moon Frost' Moon Frost Eastern Hemlock

SMALL DECIDUOUS SHRUB
Aronia melanocarpa`Low Scape Mound` Low Scape Mound Chokeberry
Diervilla lonicera'Kodiak Orange' Kodiak Orange Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle
Hydrangea paniculata `Bobo` Bobo Hydrangea
Itea virginica 'Sprich' TM Little Henry Sweetspire
Physocarpus opulifolius `Nanus` Dwarf Ninebark
Syringa x 'SMSJBP7' TM Bloomerang Dark Purple Lilac

TALL ORNAMENTAL GRASS
Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Overdam' Overdam Feather Reed Grass
Panicum virgatum `Heavy Metal` Blue Switch Grass
Panicum virgatum `Northwind` Switch Grass

SMALL EVERGREEN SHRUB
Juniperus sabina `Buffalo` Buffalo Juniper
Juniperus squamata `Blue Star` Blue Star Juniper
Picea abies `Pumila` Dwarf Globe Spruce
Thuja occidentalis 'Bobozam' TM Mr. Bowling Ball Arborvitae
Thuja occidentalis 'Congabe' TM Fire Chief Arborvitae
Tsuga canadensis 'Gracilis' Gracilis Eastern Hemlock
Tsuga canadensis 'Jeddeloh' Jeddeloh Eastern Hemlock

SHORT ORNAMENTAL GRASS
Hakonechloa macra Japanese Forest Grass
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln' Hameln Fountain Grass
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Little Honey' Little Honey Dwarf Fountain Grass

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

PERENNIALS
Actaea simplex Snakeroot
Alchemilla mollis `Thriller` Lady`s Mantle
Allium x `Summer Beauty` Summer Beauty Allium
Aster novae-angliae 'Purple Dome' Purple Dome New England Aster
Astilbe x arendsii `Fanal` Fanal Astilbe
Dianthus gratianopolitanus `Feuerhexe` Firewitch Cheddar Pink
Gaillardia aristata 'Granada' Granada Blanket Flower
Heuchera x `Midnight Rose` Midnight Rose Coral Bells
Heuchera x `Obsidian` Obsidian Coral Bells
Hosta fortunei `Patriot` Patriot Hosta
Hosta x 'Rainforest Sunrise' Rainforest Sunrise Hosta
Ligularia stenocephala `Little Rocket` Little Rocket Ligularia
Nepeta x faassenii `Walkers Low` Walkers Low Catmint
Sedum x 'Autumn Fire' Autumn Fire Sedum
Tiarella x 'Crow Feather' Crow Feather Foamflower

GROUND COVERS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

TURF
-

CONCEPT PLANT KEY

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                   1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                      PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SMOKETREE - PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE DESIGN - ENLARGEMENT (L-5) JOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/06/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:36 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:36 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg



TREE WITH STRONG CENTRAL LEADER (DO NOT CUT LEADER)

PRUNE ONLY TO REMOVE DAMAGED OR BROKEN BRANCHES.

TREE STAKING IF REQUIRED (ONLY 1 OF 3 @ 120 DEG. SHOWN
FOR CLARITY).  STEEL STAKES & FLEXIBLE GUYING MATERIAL.
FLAG GUYS FOR SAFETY

TREE WRAP TO FIRST BRANCH (MAPLES AND OTHER THIN BARKED
DECIDUOUS TREES).  PLACE WRAP IN LATE FALL AND REMOVE
EARLY SPRING.

4' X 4" A.M. LEONARD RIGID PLASTIC MESH TREE GUARD, BG48

TREE WATERING BAG.  INSTALL SAME DAY TREE IS PLANTED.  BAG
SHALL BE FILLED ONCE PER WEEK THROUGH THE MAINTENANCE
PERIOD.

CROWN OF ROOT BALL 1" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE LEAVING
TRUNK FLARE VISIBLE AT TOP OF ROOT BALL.

3" DEEP SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH IN 6'-0" DIAMETER RING.  DO
NOT PLACE MULCH IN CONTACT WITH TREE TRUNK.  NO MOUNDING.
PROVIDE MULCH WEEDING ONCE PER MONTH THROUGH
MAINTENANCE PERIOD.

ROUGHEN EDGES OF PLANTING PIT.

PLANTING MIXTURE BACKFILL TAMP PLANTING MIX AROUND BASE
TO STABILIZE TREE.  INSTALL (1) SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER
PACKET FOR EVERY CALIPER INCH OF TREE.  INSTALL AGAINST
ROOT BALL.

REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE, WIRE, BURLAP AND PLASTIC WRAP FROM
TOP HALF OF ROOT BALL.  IF WIRE BASKET, CUT IN (4) PLACES
AROUND THE ROOT BALL AND FOLD DOWN 8" INTO PLANTING PIT.

ROOT BALL ON UNEXCAVATED OR COMPACTED PEDESTAL TO
PREVENT SETTLING

(1/2 - 2/3)
OF TREE
HEIGHT

DEPTH OF
ROOT BALL

6"

ROOT BALL

EXCAVATE TREE PIT TO BE AT
LEAST 2 TIMES WIDER THAN ROOT BALL

TREE PLANTING
1/4" = 1'-0"

1
329343-01

IF NEEDED, PRUNE TO REMOVE DAMAGED, BROKEN, OR OVERLAPPING
BRANCHES ONLY AFTER PLANTING.  PRUNING IS SUBJECT TO TIME OF YEAR
FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL SPECIES.

TREE STAKING (ONLY 1 OF 3 @ 120 DEG. SHOWN FOR CLARITY).
3" DIAMETER CEDAR WOOD STAKES & FLEXIBLE GUYING
MATERIAL.  FLAG GUYS FOR SAFETY.  STAKES SHALL NOT TOUCH
THE SIDES OF ROOT BALL WHEN INSTALLED.

CROWN OF ROOT BALL 2" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE LEAVING
TRUNK FLARE VISIBLE AT TOP OF ROOT BALL.

3" DEEP SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH IN 6'-0" DIAMETER RING.  DO
NOT PLACE MULCH IN CONTACT WITH TREE TRUNK.  NO MOUNDING.
PROVIDE MULCH WEEDING ONCE PER MONTH THROUGH
MAINTENANCE PERIOD.

ROUGHEN EDGES OF PLANTING PIT.

PLANTING MIXTURE BACKFILL.  TAMP PLANTING MIX AROUND
BASE TO STABILIZE TREE.  INSTALL (1) SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER
PACKET FOR EVERY 24" OF TREE HEIGHT.  INSTALL PACKET
AGAINST ROOT BALL.

REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE, WIRE, BURLAP AND PLASTIC WRAP
FROM TOP HALF OF ROOT BALL.  IF WIRE BASKET, CUT IN (4)
PLACES AROUND THE ROOT BALL AND FOLD DOWN 8" INTO
PLANTING PIT.

ROOT BALL ON UNEXCAVATED OR COMPACTED PEDESTAL TO
PREVENT SETTLING

(1/2)
OF TREE
HEIGHT

DEPTH OF
ROOT BALL

6"

ROOT BALL

EXCAVATE TREE PIT TO BE AT
LEAST 2 TIMES WIDER THAN ROOT BALL

EVERGREEN TREE PLANTING
1/4" = 1'-0" 329343-03

2

SCARIFY 4" AND  RECOMPACT
SUBGRADE

SHRUB PLANTING
PRUNE ONLY TO REMOVE DEAD
OR BROKEN BRANCHES

3" MULCH

TOPSOIL

REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE, WIRE,
BURLAP AND PLASTIC WRAP
FROM TOP HALF OF ROOT BALL

HAND LOOSEN AND PULL ROOTS
OUT OF CONTAINER MATERIAL TO
PREVENT PLANT FROM
BECOMING ROOT BOUND

10"
MIN.

PER PLANT SPACING

BALLED
AND
BURLAPPED

BARE ROOT
OR
CONTAINER

BOTTOM OF ROOT FLARE FLUSH
WITH FINISHED GRADE

BAREROOT PLANTING NOTES:
1. SOAK ROOTS IN WATER FOR AT LEAST ONE HOUR BUT NOT MORE THAN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO PLANTING.
2. SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOMS OF HOLE.
3. PROCEED WITH CORRECTIVE PRUNING OF THE TOP AND BOTTOM ROOTS.
4. TRANSFER PLANT DIRECTLY FROM WATER TO HOLE. SET PLANT SO THE ROOT FLARE IS

APPROXIMATELY AT THE FINISHED SOIL ELEVATION. SPREAD ROOTS OUT EVENLY. PLUMB AND
IMMEDIATELY BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL MIX.

5. WATER THOROUGHLY WITHIN 2 HOURS TO SETTLE PLANTS AND FILL VOIDS.
6. BACKFILL VOIDS AND WATER SECOND TIME.
7. PLACE MULCH WITHIN 48 HOURS OF THE SECOND WATERING UNLESS SOIL MOISTURE IS EXCESSIVE.

SHRUB PLANTING
1/2" = 1'-0"

3
329333-02

PERENNIAL PLANTING

3" MULCH
FINISHED GRADE TOP OF MULCH

HAND LOOSEN AND PULL ROOTS
OUT OF CONTAINER MATERIAL TO
PREVENT PLANT FROM BECOMING
ROOT BOUND

PLANTING MIX

SUBGRADE

PER PLANT
SPACING

10"

PERENNIAL PLANTING
1" = 1'-0"

4
3293-01

SHRUB OR
PERENNIAL

(*)

(*) (*)

(*) = SPECIFIED PLANT SPACING PER PLANTING LIST

PLANT SPACING 
3/4" = 1'-0"

5
3293-02

SOIL PLACEMENT NOTES

1. LOOSEN SUBGRADE TO A MINIMUM DEPTH INDICATED IN PLANTING NOTES USING A CULTI-MULCHER OR SIMILAR EQUIPMENT, AND REMOVE
STONES MEASURING OVER 1-1/2 INCHES IN ANY DIMENSION, STICKS, RUBBISH AND OTHER EXTRANEOUS MATTER.  AREAS ADJACENT TO
WALKS AND PAVEMENT SHALL BE FREE OF EXCESS STONE AND PAVING MATERIALS SO AS TO PROVIDE AN UNINTERRUPTED CROSS SECTION
OF SOIL.   INTERNAL PARKING ISLANDS SHALL BE LOOSENED TO A DEPTH OF 30".

2. THOROUGHLY BLEND PLANTING SOIL MIX FOR PLANTING BED AREAS.  (1 PART EXISTING SOIL, 1 PART TOPSOIL, 1 PART ORGANIC SOIL
AMENDMENT, 2.9 POUNDS PER CUBIC YARD OF 4-4-4 ANALYSIS SLOW-RELEASE FERTILIZER)

3. TREE AND SHRUB HOLES SHALL BE FILLED WITH A PREPARED PLANTING MIXTURE OF 1 PART TOPSOIL, 2 PARTS PLANTING SOIL MIX.

4. SPREAD SOIL AND SOIL AMENDMENTS TO DEPTH INDICATED ON DRAWINGS, BUT NOT LESS THAN REQUIRED TO MEET FINISH GRADES AFTER
NATURAL SETTLEMENT. (FINISH GRADE OF PLANTING BEDS SHALL BE 3" BELOW ALL ADJACENT SURFACES. FINISH GRADE OF TURF SEEDING
AREAS SHALL BE 1" BELOW ALL ADJACENT HARD SURFACES, WALKS, AND CURBS.)

5. PLACE APPROXIMATELY 1/2 OF TOTAL AMOUNT OF SOIL REQUIRED. WORK INTO TOP OF LOOSENED SUBGRADE TO CREATE A TRANSITION
LAYER, THEN PLACE REMAINDER OF THE SOIL.  SOIL TRANSITION LAYER SHALL BE TILLED TO A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 6" BELOW THE DEPTH OF
NEWLY PLACED SOIL. PARKING LOT ISLANDS SHALL BE CROWNED TO A HEIGHT OF 6" TO PROVIDE PROPER DRAINAGE UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

6. DO NOT SPREAD IF PLANTING SOIL OR SUBGRADE IS FROZEN, MUDDY, OR EXCESSIVELY WET.

7. FINISH GRADING: GRADE SOIL TO A SMOOTH, UNIFORM SURFACE PLANE WITH A LOOSE, UNIFORMLY FINE TEXTURE.

8. ROLL AND RAKE, REMOVE RIDGES, AND FILL DEPRESSIONS TO MEET FINISH GRADES.

9. RESTORE PLANTING BEDS IF ERODED OR OTHERWISE DISTURBED AFTER FINISH GRADING AND BEFORE PLANTING.

1. THE LAYOUT OF ALL PLANTING BEDS AND INDIVIDUAL TREES AND SHRUBS SHALL BE STAKED BY THE CONTRACTOR IN ADVANCE
OF INSTALLATION.  FLAGGING, STAKES, OR PAINT MAY BE USED TO DELINEATE LOCATIONS AS SCALED FROM THE PLANS.  AN
APPROVED REPRESENTATIVE WILL REVIEW THESE LOCATIONS WITH THE CONTRACTOR AND MAKE MINOR ADJUSTMENTS AS
NECESSARY.  BED LAYOUT SHALL ALSO INCLUDE PERENNIAL GROUPINGS BY SPECIES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR INDEPENDENTLY DETERMINING THE PLANT MATERIAL QUANTITIES REQUIRED BY THE
LANDSCAPE PLANS.  REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

3. NO PLANT MATERIAL OR PLANT SIZE SUBSTITUTIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED WITHOUT APPROVAL BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.
ANY CHANGES SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IN WRITING PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

4. ALL BNB STOCK SHALL BE NURSERY GROWN IN A CLAY LOAM SOIL FOR A MINIMUM OF THREE GROWING SEASONS WITHIN 200
MILES OF PROJECT LOCATION, IN A ZONE COMPATIBLE WITH USDA HARDINESS ZONE 5A.  SEED SHALL BE PROVIDED FROM A
NURSERY (WITHIN 200 MILES) WITH A SIMILAR PLANT HARDINESS ZONE AS PROJECT LOCATION.  EXISTING SOIL SHALL BE
AMENDED PER SOIL ANALYSIS REPORT TO ENSURE A PROPER GROWING MEDIUM IS ACHIEVED.

5. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH STANDARDS DESCRIBED IN AMERICAN STANDARD OF NURSERY STOCK  - Z60.1 ANSI.
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNERS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO INSPECT AND POTENTIALLY
REJECT ANY PLANT MATERIAL DEEMED TO NOT MEET THE REQUIRED STANDARDS.

6. ALL STOCK SHALL BE FREE OF DISEASES AND HARMFUL INSECTS, DAMAGE, DISORDERS AND DEFORMITIES.

7. TREES SHALL HAVE SINGLE, STRAIGHT TRUNKS AND WELL BALANCED BRANCH SYSTEMS.  MUTLI-STEM TREES SHALL HAVE 3-4
STRAIGHT TRUNKS AND WELL BALANCED BRANCH SYSTEMS.  HEIGHT-TO-CALIPER RATIOS SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE
LATEST EDITION OF ANSI Z60.1.

8. ROOT SYSTEMS SHALL BE LARGE ENOUGH TO ALLOW FOR FULL RECOVERY OF THE TREE, AND SHALL CONFORM TO STANDARDS
AS THEY APPEAR IN THE MOST CURRENT REVISION OF THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN'S AMERICAN STANDARD OF
NURSERY STOCK ANSI Z60.1.

9. BNB TREES SHALL BE DUG WITH A BALL OF SOIL, NOT SOFT BALLED OR POTTED AND SHALL BE FIRM IN THEIR ROOTBALL. ROOT
BALL SHALL BE WRAPPED (WITH BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL).  THE TREE ROOT FLARE, OR COLLAR, SHALL BE AT OR WITHIN THE
TOP THREE INCHES OF GRADE.

10. ALL SPRING TREES MUST BE FRESHLY DUG IN THE MOST RECENT SPRING.

11. ALL AUTUMN TREES MUST BE FRESHLY DUG IN THE MOST RECENT AUTUMN.

12. TREES SHALL BE ALIVE, HEALTHY AND APPROPRIATELY MOIST, AT TIME OF DELIVERY.  TREES SHALL BE SUBJECT TO INSPECTION
FOR CONFORMITY TO SPECIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AND APPROVAL BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNERS
REPRESENTATIVE.  THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY TREES
THAT DO NOT MEET THE SPECIFICATIONS OR THAT HAVE BEEN DAMAGED DURING SHIPMENT.  THE LANDSCAPE INSTALLER MUST
RECEIVE APPROVAL FROM LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR ANY SUBSTITUTIONS OR ALTERATIONS.

13. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PLANTING DETAILS.

14. ALL PLANTING BEDS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM 10" DEPTH OF PREPARED SOIL.  WITH APPROVAL, EXISTING SOIL MAY BE UTILIZED
PROVIDED THE PROPER SOIL AMENDMENTS ARE TILLED THOROUGHLY INTO THE TOP 10" OF SOIL.  REFER TO SOIL PLACEMENT
NOTES.

15. WHILE PLANTING TREES AND SHRUBS, BACKFILL 23 OF PLANTING HOLE AND WATER TREE THOROUGHLY BEFORE INSTALLING THE
REMAINDER OF SOIL MIXTURE.  AFTER ALL SOIL HAS BEEN PLACED INTO THE PLANTING HOLE WATER THOROUGHLY AGAIN.

16. THE CONTRACTOR MUST LABEL ALL TREES WITH THE COMMON AND BOTANICAL NAMES PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION.

17. OAK TREES SHALL BE TREATED FOR TWO-LINE CHESTNUT BORER BOTH AT THE TIME OF INSTALLATION AND DURING THE SECOND
GROWING SEASON.

18. ALL PLANTING BEDS SHALL BE MULCHED WITH 3" DEEP SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH, AND ALL TREES PLANTED IN TURF AREAS
SHALL RECEIVE A 3" DEEP SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCHED RING AS SHOWN IN PLANTING DETAILS.

19. ALL PLANTING BEDS AND TREE RINGS SHALL HAVE A 4" DEEP TRENCHED BED EDGE CREATED BY EITHER A FLAT LANDSCAPE
SPADE OR MECHANICAL EDGER.  BED EDGES ARE TO BE CUT CLEAN AND SMOOTH AS SHOWN ON LANDSCAPE PLANS WITH A
CLEAN DEFINITION BETWEEN TURF AND PLANTING AREAS.

20. ALL TURF SEED AREAS SHALL RECEIVE A MINIMUM OF 6" DEPTH OF TOPSOIL.  WITH APPROVAL, EXISTING SOIL MAY BE UTILIZED
PROVIDED THE PROPER SOIL AMENDMENTS ARE TILLED THOROUGHLY INTO THE TOP 6" OF SOIL AS INDICATED IN THE SOIL
PLACEMENT NOTES. REQUIRED AMENDMENTS SHALL BE DETERMINED BASED ON A SOIL ANALYSIS TO BE PERFORMED.  ALL
TOPSOIL AMENDMENT SHALL BE AGED WEED FREE MANURE OR CLASS 1 ORGANIC MATTER.

21. FOR LAWN SEEDING, APPLY A STARTER FERTILIZER AND SEED UNIFORMLY AT THE RATE RECOMMENDED BY MANUFACTURER,
AND PROVIDE A MULCH COVERING THAT IS SUITABLE TO PROMOTE SEED GERMINATION AND TURF ESTABLISHMENT.
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE FERTILIZER, SEED, AND MULCH SPECIFICATIONS TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR APPROVAL
PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE TO BE INSTALLED IN THOSE AREAS REQUIRING STABILIZATION (
SWALES, SLOPES EXCEEDING 1:3, AND THOSE LOCATIONS INDICATED IN CIVIL DRAWINGS).

22. THE CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE A SMOOTH, UNIFORM QUALITY TURF IS ACHIEVED WITH NO BARE SPOTS LARGER THAN 6" X 6".
ANY BARE SPOTS LARGER THAN 6" X6" AT THE END OF ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD SHALL BE RESEEDED AT THE CONTRACTORS
EXPENSE TO OBTAIN A DENSE, UNIFORM LAWN.

23. ALL FINISH GRADING AND LAWN AREAS TO BE INSTALLED BY LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.

24. ALL DISTURBED AREAS WITHIN THE PROJECT SHALL BE RESTORED TO ORIGINAL OR BETTER CONDITION.

25. ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE THE LIMITS OF WORK SHALL BE RESTORED TO ORIGINAL OR BETTER CONDITION AT NO
ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

26. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, INCLUDING  ANY IRRIGATION LINES, PRIOR TO DIGGING.  CONSULT
J.U.L.I.E. HOTLINE.

27. TREES SHALL BE INSTALLED NO CLOSER THAN:

-10 FEET FROM ANY FIRE HYDRANT
- 7 FEET FROM STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER LATERALS,  AND WATER SERVICE

28. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT SOIL CONDITIONS AND COMPACTION ARE ADEQUATE TO ALLOW FOR PROPER DRAINAGE
AROUND THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.  UNDESIRABLE CONDITIONS SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO BEGINNING OF WORK. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO ENSURE PROPER SURFACE
AND SUBSURFACE DRAINAGE IN ALL AREAS

29. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PERMITS, FEES, AND LICENSES NECESSARY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF THIS PLAN.

30. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO REVIEW ALL SITE ENGINEERING DOCUMENTS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  ANY CONFLICTS MUST BE
REPORTED TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  THESE LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE INSTALLATION OF PLANT MATERIALS
ONLY UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

31. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE WATERING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR A PERIOD OF 60 DAYS TO ENSURE VEGETATIVE
ESTABLISHMENT.  UPON COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT, CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY THE OWNER IN WRITING WITH ONGOING
WATERING AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS.

32. PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE GUARANTEED FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR FROM TIME OF OWNER ACCEPTANCE. ONLY ONE
REPLACEMENT PER PLANT WILL BE REQUIRED DURING THE WARRANTY PERIOD EXCEPT IN THE EVENT OF FAILURE TO COMPLY
WITH THE SPECIFIED REQUIREMENTS.

33. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO CONDUCT A FINAL WALK THROUGH WITH THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OR OWNERS
REPRESENTATIVE TO ANSWER QUESTIONS, PROVIDE INSTRUCTIONS, AND ENSURE THAT PROJECT REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN
MET.

GENERAL PLANTING NOTES:

TURF

FINISHED GRADE

STRAIGHT, CLEAN CUT
THROUGH GRASS

MULCH BED

45° ANGLE CUT BACK TO
FINISHED GRADE OF
MULCH BED

4"

TRENCHED BED EDGE
3/4" = 1'-0"

6
3293-03

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                   1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                      PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SMOKETREE - PRELIMINARY- LANDSCAPE NOTES & DETAILS (L-6) JOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/06/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/25/2022 12:36 PM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\2335.00-IL LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg







Lisa Staszak / KZ

512 Fairview Drive
North Aurora, IL 60506

Bill Marlow

4.27.22

1/2" = 1'

1 of 2

PHE9710

9710

"This Document is owned by, and the information contained in it is proprietary to, Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. By receipt hereof the holder agrees not to use the information, disclose it to any third party,
nor reproduce this document without the prior written consent of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. Holder also agrees to immediately return this document upon request of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company."

© Copyright 2022 by Parvin-Clauss Sign Co.

PROJECT:

CUSTOMER APPROVAL:

REVISIONS:
1

2

3

4

5

6

DATE

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

REPRESENTATIVE

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

SHEET NO.

ESTIMATE / JOB NUMBER

FILE NAME

7

8

This sign is built to UL Standards
for operation in North America.

1'
-5

"

(1) 3'-6" x 10'-3" x 1'-5" (36 Sq.Ft.) double face monument signs (6'-0" x 12'-0" overall)

Cabinet:  fabricated aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey
Radius End-caps:  fabricated aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey
Skirt:  fabricated aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey
Reveals:  fabricated aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey
Address Panel:  .080" aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey, 3M 220-12 Black vinyl graphics applied
Tenant Panels:  .080" aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey, vinyl graphics applied
Mounting:  4" (4½" O.D.) Sch. 40 steel column set in 2'-0" dia. x 5'-0" deep concrete foundation

3
'-6

"
2

'-6
"

5
'-0

"

6
'-0

"

1'-5"
10'-3"

2"

2"

2"

1121/64"

1121/64"

1121/64"

2"

8½"
2" 2"

8½"

12'-0"

2" Aluminum Retainer

8½" Radius Aluminum End-cap

2" Aluminum H-member

ADDRESS
TENANT
TENANT

Fabricated Aluminum Skirt

2" Aluminum Reveal

.080" Aluminum Tenant Panels

2'-0" Dia. x 5'-0" Deep
Concrete Foundation

4" (4½" O.D.)
Schedule 40 Steel Column

Sullivan Road, South Access Drive - Park Entry Monument Sign



Lisa Staszak / KZ

512 Fairview Drive
North Aurora, IL 60506

Bill Marlow

4.27.22

1/2" = 1'

2 of 2

PHE9710

9710

"This Document is owned by, and the information contained in it is proprietary to, Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. By receipt hereof the holder agrees not to use the information, disclose it to any third party,
nor reproduce this document without the prior written consent of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. Holder also agrees to immediately return this document upon request of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company."

© Copyright 2022 by Parvin-Clauss Sign Co.

PROJECT:

CUSTOMER APPROVAL:

REVISIONS:
1

2

3

4

5

6

DATE

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

REPRESENTATIVE

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

SHEET NO.

ESTIMATE / JOB NUMBER

FILE NAME

7

8

This sign is built to UL Standards
for operation in North America.

1'
-5

"

(1) 3'-6" x 4'-6" x 1'-5" (15.75 Sq.Ft.) double face monument signs (6'-0" x 6'-3" overall)

Cabinet:  fabricated aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey
Radius End-caps:  fabricated aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey
Skirt:  fabricated aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey
Reveals:  fabricated aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey
Address Panel:  .080" aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey, 3M 220-12 Black vinyl graphics applied
Tenant Panels:  .080" aluminum painted PMS 428 Grey, vinyl graphics applied
Mounting:  3" (3½" O.D.) Sch. 40 steel column set in 1'-6" dia. x 4'-9" deep concrete foundation

3
'-6

"
2

'-6
"

4
'-9

"

6
'-0

"

1'-5"
4'-6"

2"

2"

1'
-6

"
1'

-6
"

2"

8½"
2" 2"

8½"

6'-3"

2" Aluminum Retainer

8½" Radius Aluminum End-cap

2" Aluminum H-member

ADDRESS

ADDRESS

Fabricated Aluminum Skirt

2" Aluminum Reveal

.080" Aluminum Tenant Panels

1'-6" Dia. x 4'-9" Deep
Concrete Foundation

3" (3½" O.D.)
Sch. 40 Steel Column

Smoketree Plaza, North Access Drive - Park Entry Monument Sign



605.78'   (6
07')

1
3

9
.
0

5
'

W

W

W

S
0
1
°
0
5
'
2
4
"
E
 
 

3
8
8
.
3
6
'

(
S

0
0
°
1
4
'
0
0
"
W

)

(N89°46'00"W)

S88°54'36"W
 
 390.00'

S01°05'24"E  119.75'

(S00°14'00"W)

N88°50'16"E 
 

237.61'

N
0
0
°
4
0
'
5
4
"
W
 
 

6
9
6
.
3
1
'

S88°50'15"W 
 

607.08'

S
0
0
°
3
9
'
5
7
"
E
 
 

6
9
6
.
3
1
'

S88°50'16"W  40.00'

N
0
0
°
3
9
'
5
7
"
W
 
 

1
3
5
9
.
3
3
'

S88°50'15"W  74.12'

S88°50'15"W 
 531.34'

(
N

0
0
°
0
1
'
2
1
"
W

)

N
0
1
°
2
0
'
4
5
"
W
 
 

4
4
2
.
1
7
'

S88°50'16"W  359.59'

L=167.52'

RADIUS=880.00'

N79°39'08"W

CHORD=167.27'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

1

607.27'

(607')

1370.34'

P
O

I
N

T
 
O

F
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
C

E
M

E
N

T
 
O

F
 
P

A
R

C
E

L
 
7

S
E

 
C

O
R

N
E

R
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
9
-
3
8
-
8

POINT OF BEGINNING

OF PARCEL 1

POINT 696.02' (696.31')

N OF THE SOUTH LINE

OF THE NE 1/4 OF

SECTION 9-38-8

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT OF PARCEL 2, 3, 4 & 5

(
1
2
5
1
.
4
5
'
)

1
2
5
3
.
2
8
'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

2

1
3

9
.
0

5
'

646.37'   (6
47')

646.27'   (6
47')

1
3

9
.
0

5
'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

3

1
3

9
.
0

5
'

(
1
1
1
2
.
4
0
'
)

1
1
1
4
.
2
3
'

1
3
9
.
0
5
'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

4

1
3

9
.
0

5
'

646.18'   (6
47')

646.09'   (6
47')

1641.34'

(
5
1
4
.
1
0
'
)

5
1
5
.
9
3
'

4
5
9
.
2
5
'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

5

626.09'   (6
27')

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

8

(S89°46'00"E)

N88°54'36"E

626'

(
S

0
0
°
1
4
'
0
0
"
W

)

S
0
1
°
0
5
'
2
4
"
E

7
0
7
.
7
9
'

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT OF PARCEL 6

(S00°14'00"W)

S01°05'24"E

20.64'

656.44'

N88°50'16"E

(S89°50'20"E

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 6

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 2

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 3

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 4

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 5

NORTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 9-38-8

E
A

S
T

 
L
I
N

E
 
O

F
 
B

U
R

L
I
N

G
T

O
N

N
O

R
T

H
E

R
N

 
R

A
I
L
R

O
A

D

SOUTH LINE OF THE N 75 RODS

OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 9-38-8

WEST LINE OF TRACT OF LAND

CONVEYED BY DEED 2013K0541156

(

V

A

R

I
A

B

L

E

 
W

I
D

T

H

 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

.
O

.
W

.
)

15' UTILITY &

SIDEWALK EASEMENT

PER DOC. 2011K068111

35' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

EASEMENT PER DOC. 2011K068111

(66' PUBLIC R.O.W.)

10' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. 1653661

B
U

R
L
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
N

A
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
R

A
I
L
R

O
A

D

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G

FOUND 3/4" IRON PIPE

2.32' N & ON-LINE

FOUND 3/4" IRON PIPE 2.24' S & 2.31' E

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

S
E

T
 
3
/
4
"
 
X

 
1
8
"
 
I
R

O
N

 
R

E
B

A
R

FOUND 1/2" IRON PIPE

0.02' S & 0.14' E

FOUND 3/4" IRON

PIPE AT CORNER

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

FOUND 3/4" IRON

PIPE 2.34' S & 0.55' W

FOUND 1/2" IRON PIPE

0.28' S & ON-LINE

F
O

U
N

D
 
3
/
4
"
 
I
R

O
N

P
I
P

E
 
0
.
6
2
'
 
S

F
O

U
N

D
 
3
/
4
"
 
I
R

O
N

P
I
P

E
 
0
.
0
8
'
 
S

F
O

U
N

D
 
1
/
2
"
 
I
R

O
N

 
P

I
P

E

0
.
0
8
'
 
N

 
&

 
O

N
-
L
I
N

E

F
O

U
N

D
 
1
/
2
"
 
I
R

O
N

P
I
P

E
 
A

T
 
C

O
R

N
E

R

FOUND 3/4" IRON

PIPE AT CORNER

FOUND 3/4" IRON PIPE 0.96' S

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

FOUND 3/4" IRON REBAR 1.32' N & 1.14' W

 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

MTL GR

DRAINAGE DITCH

AS OF 12-30-2021

 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

NO BUILDINGS OBSERVED ON SITE

6
'
 
C

L
F

6' CLF

CLF 5.22' N & 3.16' W

CLF 4.88' N

C
L
F

 
5
.
4
0
'
 
N

 
&

 
2
.
9
1
'
 
W

C
L
F

 
3
.
3
4
'
 
W

3' WIRE FENCE

FENCE 0.19' S

FENCE 4.28' S

CONC BLOCK TRASH ENCLOSURE

WALL 5.6' W

WALL 5.4' W

CONC WALL

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: INTERNATL BROTHERHOOD

ELECTRIC WORKS, TRUST: TR# 461

LOT 24

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 15

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 14

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 13

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 12

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 11

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 10

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 9

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 8

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 6

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 5

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 4

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 3

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 2

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 1

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

(
4
0
'
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
R

.
O

.
W

.
)

H
E

R
E

T
O

F
O

R
E

 
D

E
D

I
C

A
T

E
D

P
E

R
 
D

O
C

.
 
8
5
5
8
2
1

25

8-18

8-18

SOUTHERLY LINE OF SMOKE TREE PLAZA PER DOC. 2011K068110

8-19

8-29

15' NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY

EASEMENT PER DOC. 957334

27

WEST LINE OF THE EAST

340' OF THE WEST 607' OF

THE SW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4

SOUTH LINE OF THE

NORTH 15' OF THE SOUTH

1140' OF THE SW 1/4 OF

THE NE 1/4

28

10' NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY

EASEMENT PER DOC. 925669

29

20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT

PER DOC. 1127479

30

30'

60'

6
0

'

30'x40' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

PER DOC. 2014K014227

60'x60' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

EASEMENT PER DOC. 2014K014227

34

34

O
W

N
E

R
:
 
E

S
S

 
C

 
T

I
V

S
 
J
V

 
T

I
V

S
 
R

E
I
T

 
S

U
B

 
L
L
C

33.11'

O
W

N
E

R
:
 
A

V
G

 
N

O
 
A

U
R

O
R

A
 
L
L
C

S00°37'40"E

996.33'

LOT 1

NORTH AURORA

STORAGE SUBDIVISION

PER DOC. 2017K015708

OWNER: NORTH

AURORA STORAGE LLC

10' COMED & GAS

EASEMENT PER DOC. 918478

20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT

PER DOC. 2013K052826

U
N

S
U

B
D

I
V

I
D

E
D

O
W

N
E

R
:
 
A

K
S

H
A

R
 
M

U
R

T
I
 
H

O
S

P
I
T

A
L

I
T

Y
 
I
N

C

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: GERALD

REALTY HOLDINGS LLC

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: OLD KENT

BANK, TRUST: 3510

 ASPHALT PAVEMENT

14.9'

16.3'

2

8

.
1

'

2
7
.
8
'

AA

AA

S

E

T

 
C

U

T

 
C

R

O

S

S

S

E

T
 
C

U

T
 
C

R

O

S

S

S

E

T

 
C

U

T

 
C

R

O

S

S

 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

 ASPHALT PAVEMENT

 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

 ASPHALT PAVEMENT

 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

 
A

S

P

H

A

L

T

P

A

V

E

M

E

N

T

CONC

C

O

N

C

C

O

N

C

CONC

CONC

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

CONC WALL

S

M

O

K

E

 
T

R

E

E

 
P

L

A

Z

A

F
A

I
R

V
I
E

W
 
R

O
A

D

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

 ASPHALT PAVEMENT

 ASPHALT PAVEMENT

SULLIVAN ROAD

W

W

30.04'

4
0
'

625.78'   (6
27')

LOT 7

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

N
0
0
°
3
7
'
4
0
"
W
 
 

3
6
3
.
0
0
'

1797.34'

178.44' (180')

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

6

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: G A L A B R INC

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: G A L A B R INC

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: ZAPATA,

MARIO

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: GEBHARDT,

LYNETTE K & ADRIAN W

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: STEFANICH,

RICHARD F &

FEIDEN-STEFANICH LINDA

10' NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY

EASEMENT PER DOC. 925670

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

7

20' SANITARY SEWER

EASEMENT PER DOC. 1126106

(
9
7
3
.
3
5
'
)

9
7
5
.
1
8
'

7-16

3
9
6
.
0
0
'

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 7

270.13'

(271')

(118.10')

119.93'

(118.10')

119.93'

335.58'

(336')

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 6

3
9
6
.
0
0
'

(180')

178.70'

3
9
6
.
0
0
'

E
A

S
T

 
L
I
N

E
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
W

E
S

T
 
7
5
'

E
X

C
E

P
T

I
O

N
 
T

O
 
P

A
R

C
E

L
 
6

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS SHEET

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

1

1

1
"
=

8
0

'

1
/
2

6
/
2

0
2

2

2
3

3
5

.
0

0

S
U

R
V

E
Y

LOCATION: VACANT LAND, NORTH AURORA, IL

1" = 80'0 160'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

ALTA/NSPS LAND

TITLE SURVEY

VICINITY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

ILLINOIS OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN STREET - SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

AIR CONDITIONING UNIT

TREE LINE

1 Additional property added      4/07/2022

NORTH

STATEMENT OF POTENTIAL ENCROACHMENTS

AA - Concrete block trash enclosure west of property line.

Bearings referenced to the Illinois State

Plane Coordinate System, East Zone (1201).

NOTES CORRESPONDING TO SCHEDULE B PART II (PARCEL 8)

ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE ISSUED BY CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NUMBER 21NW7143905RM, COMMITMENT DATE NOVEMBER 22, 2021 WAS USED IN PREPARATION OF

THIS SURVEY.  PIN AS LISTED IN TITLE COMMITMENT: 15-09-201-033-0000

ITEMS 1, 3-8, 9-17, 20, 33 & 35 NOT SURVEY RELATED

ITEMS 2 VISIBLE EVIDENCE SHOWN, IF ANY

ITEM 18 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Terms and provisions of the plat of easement as to village, public utility, sidewalk and temporary construction recorded November 10, 2011 as Document No.

2011K068111. LIES WITH IN THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

ITEM 19 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Terms and provisions of the dedication for Smoke Tree Plaza recorded November 10, 2011 as Document No. 2011K068110. LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED

PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

ITEM 21 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Agreement made by Commonwealth Edison Company and the Illinois Bell Telephone Company recorded September 6, 1956 as Document Nos. 816183 and

816182 regarding the relocation and removal of utility facilities in or about the area traversed by the toll highway. DOCUMENT NOT PROVIDED, UNABLE TO VERIFY LOCATION.

ITEM 22 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Utility easement granted to the Illinois Bell Telephone Company by instrument dated April 13, 1949 and referred to in warranty deed from Armour and Company

to John Wood Company, recorded February 11, 1952 as Document No. 691866 for the maintenance of an anchor and guy-wire for a telephone line to be placed not more than 5 feet inside the fence of the grantor's property in the

Northeast Quarter of Section 9. DOCUMENT NOT PROVIDED, UNABLE TO VERIFY LOCATION.

ITEM 23 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Grant to construct, maintain, relocate, etc. poles, anchors, guys, etc. upon, along, over, under the Land together with the right of ingress and egress from said

property, with right to relocate from John Wood Company, a Delaware corporation to the Commonwealth Edison Company, an Illinois corporation, dated August 15, 1955 and recorded January 26, 1959 as Document No. 880857.

DOCUMENT NOT PROVIDED, UNABLE TO VERIFY LOCATION.

ITEM 24 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Cross easements for access between the Old Second National Bank as Trustee under Trust Number 1877 and Marilyn Hames dated December 16, 1974 and

recorded January 10, 1975 as Document No. 1316889.  LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, NOT APPLICABLE.

ITEM 25 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Grant of easement for access from the Old Second National Bank as Trustee under Trust Number 1877 to Marilyn Hames dated January 20, 1975 and

recorded January 22, 1975 as Document No. 1317860.  LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, NOT APPLICABLE.

ITEM 26 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Grant of the Old Second National Bank as Trustee under Trust Number 2037 to Northern Illinois Gas Company dated February 4, 1975 and recorded February

4, 1975 as Document No. 1318917.  LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, NOT APPLICABLE.

ITEM 27 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Grant of easement from the Old Second National Bank of Aurora as Trustee under Trust Number 1877 to Marilyn Hames dated November 8, 1976 and

recorded November 9, 1976 as Document No. 1384863.  LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, NOT APPLICABLE.

ITEM 28 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Agreement recorded September 16, 1983 as Document No. 1653659 made by and between the Old Second National Bank of Aurora, as trustee under trust

number 2037 and F. James Garbe for an easement for utilities.  LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, NOT APPLICABLE.

ITEM 29 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Grant of easement recorded September 16, 1983 as Document No. 1653661 made by and between the Old Second National Bank of Aurora, as trustee under

trust number 2037 and F. James Garbe for a water main. LIES WITH IN THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

ITEM 30 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Declaration and grant of easement recorded September 16, 1983 as Document No. 1653664 made by and between the Old Second National Bank of Aurora,

as trustee under trust number 2037 and the Merchants National Bank of Aurora, as trustee number 3510 granting an easement for use as a road for means of ingress and egress, as well as the purpose of constructing thereon

electrical, telephone, gas, sewer and water conduit and transmission lines, as well as access thereto. LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, NOT APPLICABLE.

ITEM 31 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Terms and provisions of easements for ingress and egress recorded July 28, 1969 as Document No. 1145700, recorded September 25, 1973 as Document No.

1279314, recorded January 10, 1975 as Document Nos. 1316889, 1316895, 1316893, recorded November 4, 1976 as Document Nos. 1384252 and 1384250. LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, NOT APPLICABLE.

ITEM 32 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Terms and provisions of easement for sanitary sewer connection recorded January 10, 1975 as Document No. 1316892. LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED

PROPERTY, NOT APPLICABLE.

ITEM 34 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Terms and provisions of the grant of utility easement recorded September 14, 2006 as Document No. 2006K100804. LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED

PROPERTY, NOT APPLICABLE.

TABLE A

1. Monuments placed at all corners of the surveyed property boundary.

2. Address: No observable address or address listed in county GIS.

3. Flood Zone Classification: The property lies with in Zone "X" of the

Flood Insurance Rate Map Number 17089C0340H with a revised

date of AUGUST 3, 2009. Zone "X" areas are determined to be

outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain.

4. Gross Land Area: 1,127,939 Square Feet (25.8939 Acres).

6(a). Letter / Zoning Report not supplied by client at time of survey.

6(b). Letter / Zoning Report not supplied by client at time of survey.

7. The subject property is vacant - No Buildings Observed.

8. Substantial features observed in the process of conducting the survey

graphically shown on survey.

9. There are no designated parking spaces on the subject property.

11. Evidence of underground utilities existing or serving the property as

determined by:

a) No plans and/or reports provided by the client.

13. Names of adjoining owners according to current public records:

Shown on Survey.

16. No evidence of recent earth moving work, building construction or

building additions observed in the process of conducting the

fieldwork.

17. No evidence of changes in street right of way lines and street or

sidewalk construction or repairs observed in the process of

conducting the fieldwork.

19. Certificate of Professional Liability Insurance furnished upon request

and in effect throughout the contract term.

CERTIFICATION

To: Phelan-JK/JB, Midwest, LLC

Akshar Murti Hospitality Inc., an Illinois corporation

G.E.S. Properties, LLC, an Illinois Limited Liability Corporation

Beverly Evans, as Trustee under Beverly Evans Living Trust

John R. Graves, as Successor Trustee of the Charles G. Graves Declaration of Trust

Chicago Title Insurance Company

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with the

2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, jointly established and

adopted by ALTA and NSPS, and includes items 1, 2, 3, 4, 6(a), 6(b), 7(a), 7(b)(1), 7(c), 8, 9, 10, 11(a), 13, 14,

16, 17, 18 and 19 of Table A thereof.  The fieldwork was completed on January 14, 2022.

___________________________________________

Paul A. Kubicek, PLS

License No. 035-003296

EXPIRES 11/30/2022

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC #184006289-0010

EXPIRES 04/30/2023

Date of Plat or Map: JANUARY 26, 2022

GENERAL NOTES

1. FIELD WORK COMPLETED ON JANUARY 14, 2022.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE MEASURED DIMENSIONS.

RECORD DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN PARENTHETICALLY.

THE BOUNDARIES OF THE PARCELS AS DESCRIBED

FORM A MATHEMATICALLY CLOSED FIGURE.
3. NO DISCREPANCIES, CONFLICTS, SHORTAGES IN

AREA, GAPS, STRIPS, GORES OR ERRORS IN

BOUNDARY LINES OR BETWEEN PARCELS EXIST.

4. PROPERTY DESCRIBED ON THIS SURVEY IS THE SAME

PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT.

5. AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY, THERE WAS NO

OBSERVABLE EVIDENCE OF THIS SUBJECT PROPERTY

BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE DUMP, SUMP OR

SANITARY LANDFILL.

6. ACCESS TO SUBJECT PROPERTY DIRECT VIA NORTH

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SULLIVAN ROAD OR SOUTH

LINE OF SMOKE TREE PLAZA TO SITE.

LEGEND OF SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

TRANSFORMER

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC MANHOLE/VAULT

GUY WIRE

UTILITY POLE

HYDRANT

STORM INLET

SANITARY MANHOLE

STORM MANHOLE

IRON REBAR/ROD

OVERHEAD WIRES

WATER VALVE

BOLLARD

SIGN

CLF = CHAIN-LINK FENCE

CONC = CONCRETE

GR = GUARDRAIL

MTL = METAL

VALVE VAULT

FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE/VAULT

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

AS DESCRIBED IN CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT NUMBER 21GSC633001 AU WITH A COMMITMENT DATE OF MARCH 14, 2022.

PARCEL 1:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF

THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE OTTAWA, OSWEGO AND FOX RIVER VALLEY RAILROAD COMPANY, THAT IS 696.31 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 FOR THE PLACE OF BEGINNING;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE 696.31 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID OLD CLAIM LINE 607 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 696.31 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE

WESTERLY 607 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE

OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4, 1370.34 FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 1251.45 FEET TO A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 139.05 FEET TO OLD CLAIM LINE;

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG OLD CLAIM LINE 647 FEET TO A POINT IN THE EVANS' EAST LINE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EVANS' EAST LINE AND WEST LINE OF SAID DRIVEWAY, 139.05 FEET TO THE

NORTHWEST CORNER OF MICHAEL DUY'S LAND; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID DUY'S NORTH 647 FEET TO A POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 3:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE

OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER 1370.34 FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 1112.40 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 139.05 FEET TO

A POINT WHICH IS THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF WHITTAKER'S LAND; THENCE WESTERLY PARALLEL WITH AND 139.05 FEET SOUTH OF AN OLD CLAIM LINE 647 FEET TO A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF

EVAN'S LAND, AND ON THE WEST LINE OF A 40 FOOT DRIVEWAY, THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EVANS' EAST LINE 139.05 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY PARALLEL TO THE AFORESAID OLD CLAIM LINE 647

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 4:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE

OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 1370.34 FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 973.35 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 139.05 FEET;

THENCE WESTERLY PARALLEL WITH AN 278.10 FEET SOUTH OF OLD CLAIM LINE 647 FEET TO A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF EVANS' LAND AND ON THE WEST LINE OF A 40 FOOT DRIVEWAY; THENCE

SOUTH ALONG SAID EVANS' EAST LINE 139.05 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY PARALLEL TO THE AFORESAID OLD CLAIM LINE 647 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA,

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 5:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE

OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER 1370.34 FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 514.10 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 459.25 FEET; THENCE

WESTERLY PARALLEL WITH AND 417.15 FEET SOUTH OF CLAIM LINE 627 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF A PRIVATE ROAD; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID PRIVATE ROAD 460.31 FEET

TO A LINE DRAWN WEST, PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4, FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE 627 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 6:

THE WEST 75 FEET OF THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A

POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 1797.34 FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 396 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF

SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER, 180 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF A 40 FOOT PRIVATE ROADWAY; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE 396 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE 396 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 180 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

AS DESCRIBED IN CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT NUMBER 22CSA929089AU WITH A COMMITMENT DATE OF FEBRUARY 25, 2022. PARCEL NUMBER ADDED TO IDENTIFY PARCEL.

PARCEL 7:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT SOUTHEAST CORNER

OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 1641.34 FEET; THENCE NORTH 396 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE EAST

PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 271 FEET; THENCE NORTH 118.10 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 607 FEET TO

THE EAST LINE OF A PRIVATE ROAD; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE 118.10 FEET TO A POINT 396 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 336 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING, EXCEPTING FROM THAT PART, THE WESTERLY 180 FEET, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA AND THE TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

AS DESCRIBED IN CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT NUMBER 21NW7143905RM WITH A COMMITMENT DATE OF NOVEMBER 22, 2021. PARCEL NUMBER ADDED TO IDENTIFY PARCEL.

PARCEL 8:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF

INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER WITH THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BURLINGTON NORTHERN INC.; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 0 SECONDS

WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 707.79 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 0 SECONDS EAST 626 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 0 SECONDS WEST 20.64

FEET TO THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SMOKE TREE PLAZA AS DEDICATED BY DOCUMENT 2011K068110, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 0 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 0

SECONDS WEST 388.36 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 0 SECONDS WEST 390 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 0 SECONDS WEST 119.75 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF

THE NORTH 75 RODS OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 656.44 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY DEED 2013K0541156;

THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 21 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 442.17 FEET TO THE AFOREMENTIONED SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SMOKE TREE PLAZA AS DEDICATED

BY DOCUMENT 2011K068110; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

CONTAINING 1,227,533 SQUARE FEET OR 28.1803 ACRES

IRON PIPE

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

STREET LIGHT/PARKING LIGHT

NOTES CORRESPONDING TO SCHEDULE B PART II (PARCELS 1-6)

ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE ISSUED BY CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NUMBER 21GSC633001AU, COMMITMENT DATE MARCH 14, 2022 WAS USED IN PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY.  PIN

AS LISTED IN TITLE COMMITMENT: 15-09-251-001, 15-09-252-001, 15-09-252-002, 15-09-252-003, 15-09-252-004, 15-09-252-005 & 15-09-252-007

ITEMS 1, 3-24, 31-33 & 35 NOT SURVEY RELATED

ITEMS 2 VISIBLE EVIDENCE SHOWN, IF ANY

ITEM 25 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Rights of the public, the State of Illinois and the municipality in and to that part of the land, if any, taken or used for road purposes, including that part purportedly dedicated by

document 855821. LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

ITEM 26 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Easement for right of way purposes, as established by numerous instruments in the chain of title, including warranty deed recorded as document 239216 over the following

described property:  that part of the West 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 38 North, Range 8, East of the Third Principal Meridian, described as beginning at a point on the North Line of the springbrook or Sullivan Road, 20 feet West

of the one-eighth Section line, 1392.6 feet to an old claim line; thence Easterly along said old claim line 40 feet to a point 20 feet East of Said one-eighth Section Line; thence South parallel with Said one-eighth Section line, 1392.62 feet to the North

Line of Said Springbrook or Sullivan Road; thence Westerly along said North Line 40 feet to the point of beginning, all in the Township of Aurora, Kane County, Illinois. LIES OUTSIDE THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

ITEM 27 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Easement in favor of Northern Illinois Gas Company, and its/their respective successors and assigns, to install, operate and maintain all equipment necessary for the purpose of

serving the Land and other property, together with the right of access to said equipment, and the provisions relating thereto contained in the grant recorded/filed as Document No. 957334, affecting the North 15 feet of the South 1140 feet of the East

340 feet of the West 607 feet of the land. (Affects Parcel 1). LIES WITH IN THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

ITEM 28 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Easement in favor of Northern Illinois Gas Company, and its/their respective successors and assigns, to install, operate and maintain all equipment necessary for the purpose of

serving the Land and other property, together with the right of access to said equipment, and the provisions relating thereto contained in the grant recorded as Document No. 925670, affecting the West 10 feet of the land. (Affects Parcel 3).  LIES

WITH IN FAIRVIEW ROAD DEDICATION, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

ITEM 29 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Easement in favor of Northern Illinois Gas Company, and its/their respective successors and assigns, to install, operate and maintain all equipment necessary for the purpose of

serving the Land and other property, together with the right of access to said equipment, and the provisions relating thereto contained in the grant recorded as Document No. 925669, affecting the West 10 feet of the land. (Affects Parcel 4). LIES

WITH IN FAIRVIEW ROAD DEDICATION, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

ITEM 30 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Easement in favor of Village of North Aurora, and its/their respective successors and assigns, to install, operate and maintain all equipment necessary for the purpose of serving

the Land and other property, together with the right of access to said equipment, and the provisions relating thereto, contained in the grant recorded as Document No. 1127479, affecting the North 20 feet of the land. (Affects Parcels 1 and 2).  LIES

WITH IN THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

ITEM 34 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Easement in favor of the Village of North Aurora, and its/their respective successors and assigns, to install, operate and maintain all equipment necessary for the purpose of

serving the land and other property, together with the right of access to said equipment, and the provisions relating thereto contained in the grant recorded March 26, 2014 as document no. 2014K014227.  See document for exact location. (Affects

Parcel 2).  LIES WITH IN THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

MAG NAIL

B
D

J

SITE

NOTES CORRESPONDING TO SCHEDULE B PART II (PARCEL 7)

ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE ISSUED BY CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NUMBER 22CSA929089AU, COMMITMENT DATE FEBRUARY 25, 2022 WAS USED IN PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY.

PIN AS LISTED IN TITLE COMMITMENT: 15-09-252-006

ITEMS 1, 3-15 & 17-18 NOT SURVEY RELATED

ITEMS 2 VISIBLE EVIDENCE SHOWN, IF ANY

ITEM 16 IN SCHEDULE B PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT REFERS TO Grant recorded October 25, 1968 as document 1126106 made by Wyeth Jacobson et al to Aurora Sanitary District of an easement 20 feet wide for sanitary purposes over and

across the land, center line described as follows: commencing at the southeast corner of the land; thence west along south line 12 feet for a point of beginning; thence north parallel to the east line 98 feet; thence west parallel to south line 595 feet

to west line of the land. LIES WITH IN THE SURVEYED PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
035-003296

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK CREEK,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WI

AutoCAD SHX Text
KUBICEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAUL A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



605.78'   (6
07')

1
3

9
.
0

5
'

S
0
1
°
0
5
'
2
4
"
E
 
 

3
8
8
.
3
6
'

(
S

0
0
°
1
4
'
0
0
"
W

)

(N89°46'00"W)

S88°54'36"W 
 390.00'

S01°05'24"E  119.75'

(S00°14'00"W)

N88°50'16"E  
237.61'

N
0
0
°
4
0
'
5
4
"
W
 
 

6
9
6
.
3
1
'

S88°50'15"W 
 

607.08'

N
0
0
°
3
9
'
5
7
"
W
 
 

6
6
3
.
0
2
'

S88°50'15"W  114.13'

S
0
0
°
3
7
'
4
0
"
E
 
 

3
6
3
.
0
0
'

S88°50'15"W 
 

531.34'

S88°50'16"W 
 

359.59'

L=167.52'

RADIUS=880.00'

N79°39'08"W

CHORD=167.27'

N73°27'31"W  105.47'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

1

607.27'

(607')

1370.34'

P
O

I
N

T
 
O

F
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
C

E
M

E
N

T
 
O

F
 
P

A
R

C
E

L
 
7

S
E

 
C

O
R

N
E

R
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
9
-
3
8
-
8

POINT OF BEGINNING

OF PARCEL 1

POINT 696.02' (696.31')

N OF THE SOUTH LINE

OF THE NE 1/4 OF

SECTION 9-38-8

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT OF PARCEL 2, 3, 4 & 5

(
1
2
5
1
.
4
5
'
)

1
2
5
3
.
2
8
'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

2

1
3
9

.
0

5
'

646.37'   (6
47')

646.27'   (6
47')

1
3

9
.
0

5
'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

3

1
3

9
.
0

5
'

(
1
1
1
2
.
4
0
'
)

1
1
1
4
.
2
3
'

1
3
9
.
0
5
'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

4

1
3

9
.
0

5
'

646.18'   (6
47')

646.09'   (6
47')

1641.34'

(
5
1
4
.
1
0
'
)

5
1
5
.
9
3
'

4
5
9
.
2
5
'

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

5

626.09'   (6
27')

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

8

(S89°46'00"E)

N88°54'36"E

626'

(
S

0
0
°
1
4
'
0
0
"
W

)

S
0
1
°
0
5
'
2
4
"
E

7
0
7
.
7
9
'

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT OF PARCEL 6

(S00°14'00"W)

S01°05'24"E

20.64'

656.44'

N88°50'16"E

(S89°50'20"E

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 6

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 2

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 3

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 4

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 5

NORTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 9-38-8

E
A

S
T

 
L
I
N

E
 
O

F
 
B

U
R

L
I
N

G
T

O
N

N
O

R
T

H
E

R
N

 
R

A
I
L
R

O
A

D

SOUTH LINE OF THE N 75 RODS

OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 9-38-8

WEST LINE OF TRACT OF LAND

CONVEYED BY DEED 2013K0541156

(

V

A

R

I
A

B

L

E

 
W

I
D

T

H

 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

.
O

.
W

.
)

15' UTILITY &

SIDEWALK EASEMENT

PER DOC. 2011K068111

35' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

EASEMENT PER DOC. 2011K068111

(66' PUBLIC R.O.W.)

10' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. 1653661

B
U

R
L
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
N

A
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
R

A
I
L
R

O
A

D

FOUND 3/4" IRON PIPE

2.32' N & ON-LINE

FOUND 3/4" IRON PIPE 2.24' S & 2.31' E

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

S
E

T
 
3
/
4
"
 
X

 
1
8
"
 
I
R

O
N

 
R

E
B

A
R

FOUND 1/2" IRON PIPE

0.02' S & 0.14' E

FOUND 3/4" IRON

PIPE AT CORNER

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

FOUND 3/4" IRON

PIPE 2.34' S & 0.55' W

FOUND 1/2" IRON PIPE

0.28' S & ON-LINE

F
O

U
N

D
 
3
/
4
"
 
I
R

O
N

P
I
P

E
 
0
.
6
2
'
 
S

F
O

U
N

D
 
3
/
4
"
 
I
R

O
N

P
I
P

E
 
0
.
0
8
'
 
S

F
O

U
N

D
 
1
/
2
"
 
I
R

O
N

 
P

I
P

E

0
.
0
8
'
 
N

 
&

 
O

N
-
L
I
N

E

F
O

U
N

D
 
1
/
2
"
 
I
R

O
N

P
I
P

E
 
A

T
 
C

O
R

N
E

R

FOUND 3/4" IRON

PIPE AT CORNER

FOUND 3/4" IRON PIPE 0.96' S

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

FOUND 3/4" IRON REBAR 1.32' N & 1.14' W

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: INTERNATL BROTHERHOOD

ELECTRIC WORKS, TRUST: TR# 461

LOT 24

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 15

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 14

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 13

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 12

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 11

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 10

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 9

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 8

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 6

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 5

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 4

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 3

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 2

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

LOT 1

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

H
E

R
E

T
O

F
O

R
E

 
D

E
D

I
C

A
T

E
D

P
E

R
 
D

O
C

.
 
8
5
5
8
2
1

SOUTHERLY LINE OF SMOKE TREE PLAZA PER DOC. 2011K068110

15' NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS

COMPANY EASEMENT PER

DOC. 957334 HEREBY VACATED

WEST LINE OF THE EAST

340' OF THE WEST 607' OF

THE SW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4

SOUTH LINE OF THE

NORTH 15' OF THE SOUTH

1140' OF THE SW 1/4 OF

THE NE 1/4

10' NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS

COMPANY EASEMENT PER

DOC. 925669 HEREBY VACATED

20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT

PER DOC. 1127479

30'

60'

6
0

'

30'x40' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

PER DOC. 2014K014227

60'x60' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

EASEMENT PER DOC. 2014K014227

O
W

N
E

R
:
 
E

S
S

 
C

 
T

I
V

S
 
J
V

 
T

I
V

S
 
R

E
I
T

 
S

U
B

 
L
L
C

O
W

N
E

R
:
 
A

V
G

 
N

O
 
A

U
R

O
R

A
 
L
L
C

S00°37'40"E

996.33'

LOT 1

NORTH AURORA

STORAGE SUBDIVISION

PER DOC. 2017K015708

OWNER: NORTH

AURORA STORAGE LLC

10' COMED & GAS

EASEMENT PER DOC. 918478

20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT

PER DOC. 2013K052826

U
N

S
U

B
D

I
V

I
D

E
D

O
W

N
E

R
:
 
A

K
S

H
A

R
 
M

U
R

T
I
 
H

O
S

P
I
T

A
L

I
T

Y
 
I
N

C

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: GERALD

REALTY HOLDINGS LLC

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: OLD KENT

BANK, TRUST: 3510

S

E

T

 
C

U

T

 
C

R

O

S

S

S
E

T
 
C

U
T

 
C

R
O

S
S

S

E

T

 
C

U

T

 
C

R

O

S

S

S

M

O

K

E

 
T

R

E

E

 
P

L

A

Z

A

SULLIVAN ROAD

625.78'   (6
27')

LOT 7

WOOLF'S

SUBDIVISION OF

ANGELL ACRES

PER DOC. 82084

N
0
1
°
2
0
'
4
5
"
W
 
 

4
4
2
.
1
7
'

(
N

0
0
°
0
1
'
2
1
"
W

)

1797.34'

178.44' (180')

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

6

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

SET 3/4" X 18" IRON REBAR

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: G A L A B R INC

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: G A L A B R INC

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: ZAPATA,

MARIO

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: GEBHARDT,

LYNETTE K & ADRIAN W

UNSUBDIVIDED

OWNER: STEFANICH,

RICHARD F &

FEIDEN-STEFANICH LINDA

10' NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY

EASEMENT PER DOC. 925670

P

A

R

C

E

L

 

7

20' SANITARY SEWER

EASEMENT PER DOC. 1126106

(
9
7
3
.
3
5
'
)

9
7
5
.
1
8
'

3
9
6
.
0
0
'

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 7

270.13'

(271')

(118.10')

119.93'

335.58'

(336')

POINT OF BEGINNING OF PARCEL 6

3
9
6
.
0
0
'

(180')

178.70'

3
9
6
.
0
0
'

LOT 1

1,281,906 SQ. FT.

F
A

I
R

V
I
E

W
 
R

O
A

D
 
D

E
D

I
C

A
T

E
D

 
P

E
R

D
O

C
.
 
8

5
5

8
2

1
 
H

E
R

E
B

Y
 
V

A
C

A
T

E
D

40' CROSS ACCESS EASEMENT HEREBY GRANTED

1
7
9
.
2
5
'

40.00'

40.00'

S89°13'03"W  114.24'

N89°13'03"E  114.27'

LOT 2

53,479 SQ. FT.

S88°54'36"W 
 

172.19'

N
0

0
°
3

9
'
5

7
"
W
 
 

2
9

7
.
3

9
'

L=36.39'

RADIUS=24.50'

N41°53'21"E

CHORD=33.14'

N84°26'38"E  45.71'

2
9
3
.
2
5
'

1
4
8
.
9
2
'

L
=

2
4
.
3
5
'

57.00'

S88°54'36"W

N
0
0
°
3
9
'
5
7
"
W
 
 

3
2
2
.
0
4
'

L=37.70'

RADIUS=44.50'

N24°56'03"W

CHORD=36.58'

I
N

G
R

E
S

S
-
E

G
R

E
S

S
 
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

H
E

R
E

B
Y

 
G

R
A

N
T

E
D

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS SHEET

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

1" = 80'0 160'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

FINAL PLAT OF

SUBDIVISION

ILLINOIS OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN STREET - SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

1 Add lot 2      4/21/2022

NORTH

Bearings referenced to the Illinois State

Plane Coordinate System, East Zone (1201).

GENERAL NOTES

1. FIELD WORK COMPLETED ON JANUARY 14, 2022.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE MEASURED DIMENSIONS. RECORD DIMENSIONS

ARE SHOWN PARENTHETICALLY.  THE BOUNDARIES OF THE PARCELS

AS DESCRIBED FORM A MATHEMATICALLY CLOSED FIGURE.
3. NO DISCREPANCIES, CONFLICTS, SHORTAGES IN AREA, GAPS, STRIPS,

GORES OR ERRORS IN BOUNDARY LINES OR BETWEEN PARCELS EXIST.

B
D

J

S
U

R
V

E
Y

2
3

3
5

.
0

0

4
/
0

6
/
2

0
2

2

1
"
=

8
0

'

1

2

RIGHT-OF-WAY

SECTION LINE

PARCEL BOUNDARY

LEGEND OF LINES

ADJACENT BOUNDARY

BUILDING SETBACK

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT LINE

RECORD DIMENSION

MEASURED DIMENSION

(180.00')

180.00'

CENTER OF RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING EASEMENT HEREBY VACATED

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION

9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL

MERIDIAN, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION

PARK 88 LOGISTICS CENTER

CROSS ACCESS EASEMENT HEREBY GRANTED

INGRESS EGRESS EASEMENT HEREBY GRANTED

2 Add ingress-egress easement      4/26/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF



©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS SHEET

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m FINAL PLAT OF

SUBDIVISION

ILLINOIS OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN STREET - SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

GENERAL NOTES

1. FIELD WORK COMPLETED ON JANUARY 14, 2022.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE MEASURED DIMENSIONS. RECORD DIMENSIONS

ARE SHOWN PARENTHETICALLY.  THE BOUNDARIES OF THE PARCELS

AS DESCRIBED FORM A MATHEMATICALLY CLOSED FIGURE.
3. NO DISCREPANCIES, CONFLICTS, SHORTAGES IN AREA, GAPS, STRIPS,

GORES OR ERRORS IN BOUNDARY LINES OR BETWEEN PARCELS EXIST.

B
D

J

S
U

R
V

E
Y

2
3

3
5

.
0

0

4
/
0

6
/
2

0
2

2

1
"
=

8
0

'

2

2

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION

9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL

MERIDIAN, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT I, PAUL A. KUBICEK, AN ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, HAVE SURVEYED, SUBDIVIDED AND

PLATTED FOR THE OWNERS THEREOF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:

PARCEL 1:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE OTTAWA, OSWEGO AND FOX RIVER

VALLEY RAILROAD COMPANY, THAT IS 696.31 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 FOR THE PLACE OF BEGINNING;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE 696.31 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID OLD CLAIM LINE 607

FEET; THENCE SOUTH 696.31 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WESTERLY 607 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF

AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4, 1370.34 FEET WEST OF THE

SOUTHEAST 1/4 THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 1251.45 FEET TO A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 139.05 FEET TO OLD

CLAIM LINE; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG OLD CLAIM LINE 647 FEET TO A POINT IN THE EVANS' EAST LINE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID

EVANS' EAST LINE AND WEST LINE OF SAID DRIVEWAY, 139.05 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF MICHAEL DUY'S LAND; THENCE

EASTERLY ALONG SAID DUY'S NORTH 647 FEET TO A POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 3:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER 1370.34 FEET WEST OF THE

SOUTHEAST QUARTER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 1112.40 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 139.05

FEET TO A POINT WHICH IS THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF WHITTAKER'S LAND; THENCE WESTERLY PARALLEL WITH AND 139.05 FEET

SOUTH OF AN OLD CLAIM LINE 647 FEET TO A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF EVAN'S LAND, AND ON THE WEST LINE OF A 40 FOOT

DRIVEWAY, THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EVANS' EAST LINE 139.05 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY PARALLEL TO THE AFORESAID OLD CLAIM

LINE 647 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 4:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 1370.34 FEET WEST OF THE

SOUTHEAST QUARTER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 973.35 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 139.05 FEET;

THENCE WESTERLY PARALLEL WITH AN 278.10 FEET SOUTH OF OLD CLAIM LINE 647 FEET TO A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF EVANS' LAND

AND ON THE WEST LINE OF A 40 FOOT DRIVEWAY; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EVANS' EAST LINE 139.05 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY

PARALLEL TO THE AFORESAID OLD CLAIM LINE 647 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE

COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 5:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER 1370.34 FEET WEST OF THE

SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 514.10 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 459.25 FEET; THENCE

WESTERLY PARALLEL WITH AND 417.15 FEET SOUTH OF CLAIM LINE 627 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF A PRIVATE ROAD; THENCE SOUTH

ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID PRIVATE ROAD 460.31 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN WEST, PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID

NORTHEAST 1/4, FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE 627 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN

THE TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 6:

THE WEST 75 FEET OF THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD

PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 1797.34

FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 396 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID

NORTHEAST QUARTER, 180 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF A 40 FOOT PRIVATE ROADWAY; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE 396 FEET

TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE 396 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID

NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 180 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,

IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 7:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH

LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 1641.34 FEET; THENCE NORTH 396 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE EAST PARALLEL

WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 271 FEET; THENCE NORTH 118.10 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH THE

SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 607 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF A PRIVATE ROAD; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE

118.10 FEET TO A POINT 396 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 336 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,

EXCEPTING FROM THAT PART, THE WESTERLY 180 FEET, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA AND THE TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE

COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 8:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER WITH

THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BURLINGTON NORTHERN INC.; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 0 SECONDS WEST

ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 707.79 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 0 SECONDS EAST 626 FEET; THENCE

SOUTH 0 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 0 SECONDS WEST 20.64 FEET TO THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SMOKE TREE PLAZA AS DEDICATED

BY DOCUMENT 2011K068110, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 0 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 0 SECONDS WEST

388.36 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 0 SECONDS WEST 390 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 0 SECONDS

WEST 119.75 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 75 RODS OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE

656.44 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY DEED 2013K0541156; THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 01

MINUTES 21 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 442.17 FEET TO THE AFOREMENTIONED SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF

SMOKE TREE PLAZA AS DEDICATED BY DOCUMENT 2011K068110; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY

LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

TOGETHER WITH FAIRVIEW ROAD AS DEDICATED PER DOCUMENT 855821, RECORDED FEBRUARY 21, 1958 IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE

OF KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

CONTAINING 1,281,906 SQUARE FEET OR 29.4285 ACRES

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT IRON STAKES HAVE BEEN SET AT ALL LOT CORNERS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND TANGENCY, EXCEPT

WHERE CONCRETE MONUMENTS AND MAG NAILS ARE INDICATED, AND THAT THE PLAT HEREON DRAWN CORRECTLY REPRESENTS SAID

SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE GIVEN IN FEET AND DECIMAL PARTS THEREOF.

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROPERTY FALLS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, AND

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT PART OF SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED IN ZONE "X", AS PER NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD

INSURANCE RATE MAP, MAP NUMBER 17089C0340H, MAP REVISED AUGUST 3, 2009.

DATED AT EAST DUNDEE, ILLINOIS, THIS 6th DAY OF APRIL, 2022.

________________________________________________

PAUL A. KUBICEK, ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR 035-003296

      EXPIRES 11/30/2022

      PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC #184006289-0010

      EXPIRES 04/30/2023

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

                     ) S.S.

COUNTY OF ________)

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT ________________________ IS THE OWNER OF THE

LAND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE AND HAS

CAUSED THE SAME TO BE SURVEYED, SUBDIVIDED AND PLATTED AS SHOWN

ON THE ANNEXED PLAT FOR THE USES AND PURPOSES THEREIN SET FORTH

AS ALLOWED AND PROVIDED BY STATUTE AND DOES HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE

AND ADOPT SAME UNDER THE AFORESAID STYLE AND TITLE.

ALSO TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THE LOTS THAT ARE HEREBY

CREATED BY THE PLAT ARE WITHIN THE SCHOOL DISTRICTS KNOWN AS:

WEST AURORA SCHOOL DISTRICT 129

DATED THIS ____ DAY OF _________________________, 20___ .

BY: _______________________________________________

OWNER

NOTARY CERTIFICATE

STATE OF _____________________)

) SS

COUNTY OF ___________________)

I, ______________________________________, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR

THE AFORESAID STATE AND COUNTY DO

HEREBY CERTIFY THAT,

______________________________________________(OWNER) PERSONALLY

KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE SAME PERSON(S), WHOSE NAME(S) IS(ARE)

SUBSCRIBED TO THE FOREGOING CERTIFICATE AS SUCH OWNER(S),

APPEARED BEFORE ME THIS DAY IN PERSON AND ACKNOWLEDGED THE

EXECUTION OF THE ANNEXED PLAT AND ACCOMPANYING INSTRUMENTS FOR

THE USES AND PURPOSES THEREIN SET FORTH AS HIS(THEIR) OWN FREE AND

VOLUNTARY ACT.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND NOTARIAL SEAL THIS ____ DAY OF

__________________________, 20___.

_________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC

PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

) SS

COUNTY OF KANE)

APPROVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE VILLAGE OF NORTH

AURORA.

DATED THIS ___ DAY OF __________________ , 20__ .

_____________________________________________

CHAIRPERSON

VILLAGE ENGINEER CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

) SS

COUNTY OF KANE)

APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE ENGINEER OF NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS, THIS ___

DAY OF __________________ , 20__ .

_____________________________________________

VILLAGE ENGINEER

VILLAGE BOARD CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

) SS

COUNTY OF KANE)

APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA BOARD AT A MEETING HELD

THIS ___ DAY OF __________________ , 20__ .

_____________________________________________

VILLAGE PRESIDENT

_____________________________________________

VILLAGE CLERK

VILLAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

) SS

COUNTY OF KANE)

APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR OF NORTH

AURORA, ILLINOIS, THIS ___ DAY OF __________________ , 20__ .

_____________________________________________

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

KANE COUNTY CLERK CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

) SS

COUNTY OF KANE)

I,__________________________ , COUNTY CLERK OF KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DO HEREBY

CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE NO DELINQUENT GENERAL TAXES, NO UNPAID CURRENT TAXES OR

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, NO UNPAID FORFEITED TAXES, AND NO REDEEMABLE TAX SALES

AGAINST ANY OF THE LAND INCLUDED IN THIS PLAT. I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I HAVE

RECEIVED ALL STATUTORY FEES IN CONNECTION WITH THE PLAT.

GIVEN UNDER MY NAME AND SEAL THIS ____ DAY OF ___________ , 20__ .

___________________________________________________

COUNTY CLERK

KANE COUNTY RECORDER CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

) SS

COUNTY OF KANE)

THIS INSTRUMENT NO.______________ , WAS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE

OF KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, ON THE ___ DAY OF ________________ , 20__.

___________________________________________________

COUNTY RECORDER

CROSS ACCESS EASEMENT PROVISIONS

AN EASEMENT IS HEREBY GRANTED FOR THE BENEFIT OF ALL OWNERS OF PROPERTY WITHIN THIS

SUBDIVISION, THEIR HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, CREATED BY THE PLAT HEREON DRAWN,

AND TO ALL PERSONS REQUIRING ACCESS ACROSS ALL OF THE AREA MARKED “CROSS ACCESS

EASEMENT” ON THE PLAT FOR THE PERPETUAL RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AND AUTHORITY TO TRAVERSE

THE ENTIRE EASEMENT AREAS AS PEDESTRIANS.  THE EASEMENT AREA SHALL NOT BE CLOSED

FOR ANY REASON EXCEPT EMERGENCY REPAIRS. NO PERMANENT BUILDINGS OR OBSTRUCTIONS

SHALL BE PLACED ON THE SAID EASEMENT AREAS.

FOR REVIEW

FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION

PARK 88 LOGISTICS CENTER

1 Add lot 2      4/21/2022

INGRESS-EGRESS EASEMENT PROVISIONS

AN EASEMENT IS HEREBY GRANTED FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE OWNER OF LOT 2 WITHIN THIS

SUBDIVISION, THEIR HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, CREATED BY THE PLAT HEREON DRAWN, AND TO

ALL PERSONS REQUIRING INGRESS AND EGRESS ACROSS ALL OF THE AREA MARKED “INGRESS-EGRESS

EASEMENT” ON THE PLAT FOR THE PERPETUAL RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AND AUTHORITY TO TRAVERSE THE

ENTIRE EASEMENT AREAS AS PEDESTRIANS AND OPERATORS OF MOTORIZED VEHICLES.  THE EASEMENT

AREA SHALL NOT BE CLOSED FOR ANY REASON EXCEPT EMERGENCY REPAIRS. NO PERMANENT

BUILDINGS OR OBSTRUCTIONS SHALL BE PLACED ON THE SAID EASEMENT AREAS.

2 Add ingress-egress easement      4/26/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
035-003296

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK CREEK,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WI

AutoCAD SHX Text
KUBICEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAUL A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I



 
 

 

 
 

Traffic Impact Study 
Proposed Warehouse Development  

 

North Aurora, Illinois 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Prepared For: 

 

 

  

April 28, 2022 

SITE 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 1 

1. Introduction 
 
 
This report summarizes the methodologies, results, and findings of a traffic impact study 
conducted by Kenig, Lindgren, O’Hara, Aboona, Inc. (KLOA, Inc.) for a proposed warehouse 
development to be located in North Aurora, Illinois. The site, which is currently vacant, is located 
directly west of the Cinemark Tinseltown USA (Cinemark) parcel and south of Smoketree Lane, 
less than one mile from the I-88/IL 31 interchange. As proposed, the development is to consist of 
two warehouse buildings totaling approximately 429,000 square feet. Access to the development 
will be provided via two access drives, one on Smoketree Lane and one on Sullivan Road. 
 
The purpose of this study was to examine background traffic conditions, assess the impact that the 
proposed development will have on traffic conditions in the area, and determine if any roadway or 
access improvements are necessary to accommodate the traffic generated by the proposed 
development.  
 
Figure 1 shows the location of the site in relation to the area roadway system. Figure 2 shows an 
aerial view of the site. 
 
The sections of this report present the following: 
 
• Existing roadway conditions 
• A description of the proposed development  
• Directional distribution of the development traffic 
• Vehicle trip generation for the development 
• Future traffic conditions including access to the development 
• Traffic analyses for the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours 
• Recommendations with respect to adequacy of the site access and adjacent roadway system 
 
Traffic capacity analyses were conducted for the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours 
for the following conditions:  
 
1. Base Conditions – Analyze the capacity of the existing roadway system using existing peak 

hour traffic volumes in the surrounding area adjusted to account for any decreases due to 
the ongoing COVID 19 pandemic. 

 
2. No-Build Conditions – Analyze the capacity of the existing roadway system increased to 

account for ambient traffic growth in the area.  
 

3. Projected Conditions – Analyze the capacity of the future roadway system using the 
projected traffic volumes that include the existing traffic volumes, ambient traffic growth, 
and the traffic estimated to be generated by the full buildout of the proposed development. 

  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 2 

 
Site Location Figure 1 
  

SITE 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 3 

 
Aerial View of Site Figure 2 

SITE 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 4 

2. Existing Conditions 
 
 
Existing transportation conditions in the vicinity of the site were documented based on field visits 
conducted by KLOA, Inc. in order to obtain a database for projecting future conditions. The 
following provides a description of the geographical location of the site, physical characteristics 
of the area roadway system including lane usage and traffic control devices, and existing peak hour 
traffic volumes. 
 

Site Location 
 
The site is located in North Aurora, on a currently vacant parcel of land directly west of the 
Cinemark parcel and south of Smoketree Lane. IL 31 is located just east of the site and the I-88/IL 
31 interchange is located approximately one mile to the north. Land uses in the vicinity of the site 
are primarily commercial, with a residential area located on the west side of Evergreen Drive. 
 

Existing Roadway System Characteristics 
 
The characteristics of the existing roadways near the development are described below and 
illustrated in Figure 3. 
 
IL 31 (Lincolnway Street)  is a north-south, minor arterial roadway that in the vicinity of the site 
provides two through lanes in each direction. At its signalized intersection with Sullivan Road, IL 
31 provides a left-turn lane, two through lanes, and a right-turn lane on the northbound approach 
and a left-turn lane, a through lane, and a combined through/right-turn lane on the southbound 
approach. A standard-style crosswalk is provided on the north leg and a high-visibility crosswalk 
is provided on the south leg. At its signalized intersection with the I-88 on/off ramps, IL 31 
provides a left-turn lane, a through lane, and a combined through/right-turn lane on the northbound 
approach and a left-turn lane, two through lanes, and a channelized right-turn lane that is under 
yield sign control on the southbound approach. At its signalized intersection with Lovedale 
Lane/Cinemark access drive/Smoketree Plaza, IL 31 provides a left-turn lane, a through lane, and 
a combined through/right-turn lane on the northbound and southbound approaches. A standard-
style crosswalk is provided on the north leg of the intersection. IL 31 carries an Annual Average 
Daily Traffic (AADT) volume of 21,600 vehicles (IDOT 2019), is under the jurisdiction of the 
FIllinois Department of Transportation (IDOT), and has a posted speed limit of 35 miles per hour. 
 
Sullivan Road is an east-west, major collector roadway that generally provides one lane in each 
direction west of IL 31 and two lanes in each direction east of IL 31. At its signalized intersection 
with IL 31, Sullivan Road provides a left-turn lane, a through lane, and a combined through/right-
turn lane on the eastbound approach and a left-turn lane, two through lanes, and a right-turn lane 
on the westbound approach. Standard-style crosswalks are provided on the east and west legs of 
the intersection. At its roundabout intersection with Highland Avenue, Sullivan Road provides one 
lane on the eastbound and westbound approaches that are under yield sign control. High-visibility 
crosswalks are provided on the east and west legs of the intersection. Sullivan Road carries an 
AADT volume of 11,700 vehicles east of IL 31 (IDOT 2018) and 13,400 vehicles west of IL 31 
(IDOT 2018). Sullivan Road is under the jurisdiction of the City of Aurora, has a posted speed 
limit of 30 miles per hour, and is a designated truck route.  



SITE

SPEEDWAY

CENTER

MERCY MEDICAL

AMITA HEALTH

CAR COMPANY

CALLAHAN

AUTO CARE

FIRESTONE

CULVER'S

MOBIL

STORAGE

EXTRA SPACE

TINSELTOWN

CINEMARK

SELF STORAGE

NEXT DOOR

POPEYES

INN

COMFORT

INN

RODEWAY

RECYCLING

STYROFOAM

ARMY RESERVE

UNITED STATES

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES

COURT

COUNTY

KANE

LOCAL 461

IBEW

AURORA

AVANTARA

CENTER

ADULT TRANSITION

FOX VALLEY

CAFE

VIETNAM

FOX VALLEY

LIVING

EDEN SUPPORTIVE

SECURITY

OF EMPLOYMENT

DEPARTMENT

ILLINOIS

CLINIC

ASTHMA

ALLERGY/

DUNKIN'

DENNY'S

THORNTONS

31

30

N

NOT  TO  SCALE

Figure:  3

Kenig,Lindgren,O'Hara,Aboona,Inc.

Job No: 22-114

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

PROPOSED WAREHOUSE

ROAD

SULLIVAN

LANE

LOVEDALE

ACCESS DRIVE

CINEMARK
D

R
IV

E

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

LANE

SMOKETREE

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

W
A

Y

RAMP

I-88 ON/OFF

P
L

A
Z

A
S

M
O

K
E

T
R

E
E

A
V

E
N

U
E

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D

EXISTING ROADWAY CHARACTERISTICS

D
R
IV

E

F
A
IR

V
IE

W

B
N

S
F
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y

LEGEND

35

35

35

35

25

30
30

30

5

35

- TRAVEL LANE

- TRAFFIC SIGNAL

- STOP SIGN

- SPEED LIMITXX

- YIELD SIGN

- BUS STOP

- BUS STOP WITH SHELTER

- STANDARD CROSSWALK

- HIGH VISIBILITY CROSSWALK



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 6 

The I-88 ramps provide full access to both eastbound and westbound I-88 and intersect IL 31 
opposite the access drive for Eden Supportive Living Fox Valley. At its signalized intersection 
with IL 31, the I-88 ramps provide a combined left-turn/through lane and a right-turn lane and the 
access drive provides a combined left-turn/through/right-turn lane. A standard-style crosswalk is 
provided on the east leg of the intersection. The I-88 on-ramp carries an AADT volume of 10,900 
vehicles (IDOT 2019) and the I-88 off-ramp carries an AADT volume of 10,400 vehicles (IDOT 
2019).  
 
Lovedale Lane is an east-west, local roadway that provides one lane in each direction and intersects 
IL 31 aligned opposite the Cinemark access drive/Smoketree Plaza. At its signalized intersection 
with IL 31, the Cinemark access drive/Smoketree Plaza provides a combined left-turn/through lane 
and a right-turn lane and Lovedale Lane provides a combined left-turn/through/right-turn lane. A 
standard-style crosswalk is provided on the east leg of the intersection. At its unsignalized 
intersection with Smoketree Plaza, the Cinemark access drive provides a combined left-
turn/through lane on the eastbound approach and a combined through/right-turn lane on the 
westbound approach. Lovedale Lane is under the jurisdiction of the Village of North Aurora.  
 
Highland Avenue is a north-south, major collector roadway that provides one lane in each direction 
and intersects Sullivan Road opposite the Allergy/Asthma Clinic access drive. At its roundabout 
intersection with Sullivan Road, Highland Avenue and the access drive provides one lane to enter 
the roundabout with the Highland Avenue approach under yield sign control. A high-visibility 
crosswalk is provided on the south leg of the intersection. Highland Avenue carries an AADT 
volume of 6,150 vehicles (IDOT 2018) and is under the jurisdiction of the City of Aurora. 
 
Smoketree Plaza/Smoketree Lane is a north-south (Smoketree Plaza) and east-west (Smoketree 
Lane) local roadway that extends from IL 31 to Evergreen Drive and provides one lane in each 
direction. At its unsignalized T-intersection with the Cinemark access drive, Smoketree Plaza 
provides a combined left-turn/right-turn lane that is under stop sign control. At its unsignalized 
intersection with the Rodeway Inn access drive, Smoketree Lane provides a combined left-
turn/through lane on the eastbound approach and a combined through/right-turn lane on the 
westbound approach. The southbound approach from the Rodeway Inn access drive provides a 
combined left-turn/right-turn lane and is under stop sign control. At its at-grade crossing with the 
BNSF Railway tracks, Smoketree Lane is under yield sign control on the eastbound and westbound 
approaches. At its unsignalized intersection with Evergreen Drive, Smoketree Lane provides a 
combined left-turn/right-turn lane on the westbound approach. Smoketree Plaza/Smoketree Lane 
is under the jurisdiction of the Village of North Aurora and has a posted speed limit of 25 miles 
per hour. 
 
Evergreen Drive is a north-south local roadway that provides one lane in each direction. At its 
unsignalized T-intersection with Smoketree Lane, the north leg is the access drive for Styrofoam 
Recycling. Evergreen Drive provides a combined through/right-turn lane on the northbound 
approach and the Styrofoam Recycling access drive provides a combined left-turn/through lane on 
the southbound approach that is under yield sign control. Evergreen Drive carries an AADT 
volume of 950 vehicles (IDOT 2018) and is under the jurisdiction of the Village of North Aurora. 
  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 7 

Existing Traffic Volumes 
 
In order to determine current traffic conditions in the vicinity of the site, KLOA, Inc. conducted 
peak period traffic counts utilizing Miovision Scout Video Collection Units on Tuesday, April 5, 
2022 during the weekday morning (6:30 to 9:00 A.M.) and evening (3:00 to 6:00 P.M.) peak 
periods at the following intersections:  
 
• IL 31 with Sullivan Road 
• IL 31 with Interstate 88 Ramps 
• IL 31 with Lovedale Lane/Cinemark access drive/Smoketree Plaza 
• Sullivan Road with Highland Avenue 
• Cinemark access drive with Smoketree Plaza 
• Smoketree Lane with the Rodeway Inn access drive 
• Smoketree Lane with Evergreen Drive/Styrofoam Recycling access drive 
 
The results of the traffic counts indicate that the weekday morning peak hour generally occurs 
from 7:15 A.M. to 8:15 A.M. and the weekday evening peak hour generally occurs from 4:15 to 
5:15 P.M.  
 
To determine the impact of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic on the existing traffic volumes, the 
2022 traffic volumes at the intersection of IL 31 with Sullivan Road were compared with traffic 
volumes previously conducted by KLOA, Inc. in 2016 that were increased by a regional growth 
factor (as discussed later). The results of the comparison showed that the traffic volumes were 
approximately 25 percent lower during the weekday morning peak hour and 10 percent lower 
during the weekday evening peak hour compared to the 2016 traffic volumes increased by a 
regional growth factor. As such, the Year 2022 traffic volumes were increased by 25 and 10 percent 
during the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours, respectively, to estimate the Year 
2022 base traffic volumes. Figure 4 illustrates the Year 2022 base peak hour traffic volumes. 
Figure 5 illustrates the Year 2022 base peak hour truck volumes. Copies of the traffic count 
summary sheets are included in the Appendix. 
  



SITE

31

N

NOT  TO  SCALE

Figure:  4

Kenig,Lindgren,O'Hara,Aboona,Inc.

Job No: 22-114

11
3
 
(8

6
)

10
0
 
(9

9
)

64 (78)

69 (127)

15 (29)

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

PROPOSED WAREHOUSE

ROAD

SULLIVAN

61 (20)

3
4
 
(1

3
)

10
 
(1
1)

3
8
 
(2

5
)

45 (73)

29 (48)

5
6
 
(4

1)

36 (70)

LANE

LOVEDALE

ACCESS DRIVE

CINEMARK
D

R
IV

E

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

LANE

SMOKETREE

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

W
A

Y

EVERGREEN DRIVE

SMOKETREE LANE @

P
L

A
Z

A
S

M
O

K
E

T
R

E
E

69 (24)

12 (36)

42 (50)

2
1
 
(6

6
)

@ SMOKETREE PLAZA

CINEMARK ACCESS DRIVE

A
V

E
N

U
E

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D

YEAR 2022 BASE TRAFFIC VOLUMES

D
R
IV

E

F
A
IR

V
IE

W

1
3
 
(1

1
)

1
1
 
(1

0
)

B
N

S
F
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y

RAMP

I-88 ON/OFF

LEGEND

00

(00)

- AM PEAK HOUR (7:15-8:15 AM)

- PM PEAK HOUR (4:15-5:15 PM)

8
8
 
(1

2
0
)

124 (75)

0 (5)

516 (363)

0
 
(0
)

3
2
6
 
(2

5
3
)

0 (9)

418 (592)

243 (198)

0
 
(5
)

0
 
(4
)

0
 
(6
)

384 (343)

355 (246)

7
6
8
 
(6

7
0
)

131 (147)

256 (358)

17
3
 
(1
3
4
)

7
7
3
 
(9

6
7
)

2
9
5
 
(2

2
4
)

1 (1)

1 (1)

1 (4)

3
 
(5
)

12
4
5
 
(1
0
9
1)0 (0)

12
3
6
 
(1
2
8
5
)

0 (1)

0
 
(3
)

373 (509)

1 
(3
)

6
0
5
 
(6

7
4
)

7
0
8
 
(4

5
3
)

3 (3)

3 (2)

1 (4)

7
 
(4
)

6
15
 
(5

3
9
)

6
3
5
 
(5

5
8
)

0 (0)
699 (678)

1 (1)

1 (0)

6
 
(4
)

13 (2)

2
0
 
(2
)

0
 
(0
)



SITE

31

N

NOT  TO  SCALE

Figure:  5

Kenig,Lindgren,O'Hara,Aboona,Inc.

Job No: 22-114

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

PROPOSED WAREHOUSE

ROAD

SULLIVAN

LANE

LOVEDALE

ACCESS DRIVE

CINEMARK
D

R
IV

E

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

LANE

SMOKETREE

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

W
A

Y

EVERGREEN DRIVE

SMOKETREE LANE @

P
L

A
Z

A
S

M
O

K
E

T
R

E
E

@ SMOKETREE PLAZA

CINEMARK ACCESS DRIVE

A
V

E
N

U
E

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D

EXISTING TRUCK TRAFFIC VOLUMES

D
R
IV

E

F
A
IR

V
IE

W

B
N

S
F
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y

RAMP

I-88 ON/OFF

LEGEND

00

(00)

- AM PEAK HOUR (7:15-8:15 AM)

- PM PEAK HOUR (4:15-5:15 PM)

0 (0)

0
 
(0
)

0 (0)0
 
(0
)

0
 
(0
)

0
 
(0
)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0
 
(0
)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0
 
(0
)

0
 
(0
)

1 (0)

0 (1)

0 (0
)

1 
(0
)0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0
 
(0
)

3 (1)

2
 
(2
)

12 (7)

3 (2)

18 (11)

7 (5)

2
 
(2
)

1
3
 
(2
)

18 (9)

6 (1)

3 (2)

2
 
(1
)

4
7
 
(1
3
)

19 (6)

9 (4)

6 (2)

2
3
 
(9
)

3
4
 
(3

2
)

8
 
(5
)

8
6
 
(4

6
)

0
 
(1
)

5 (2)

12 (1)

4
 
(3
)

6
3
 
(4

9
)

0
 
(1
)

6
 
(2
)

3 (4)

1 (0)

11 (1)

49 (44)

21 (6)

2
1 
(1
4
)

2
7
 
(8
)

2
5
 
(1
2
)

6
9
 
(2

7
)

0
 
(0
)

3 (4)

9 (2)

0 (1)

0
 
(0
)

4
 
(2
)

1
 
(1
)

2
0
 
(2
)



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 10 

Crash Data  
 
KLOA, Inc. obtained crash data1 for the most recent available five years (2016 to 2020) for the 
intersections of IL 31 with Sullivan Road, the I-88 ramps, and Lovedale Lane as well as the 
intersections of Sullivan Road with Highland Avenue, Smoketree Lane with the Rodeway Inn 
access drive, and Smoketree Lane with Evergreen Drive. A summary of the crash data is found in 
Tables 1 through 4. No crashes occurred at the intersections of Smoketree Lane with the Rodeway 
Inn access drive or Evergreen Drive during the time period surveyed. A review of the crash data 
found that no fatal crashes occurred at the intersections during the review period. 
 
Table 1 
IL 31 WITH SULLIVAN ROAD – CRASH SUMMARY 

Year 
Type of Crash Frequency 

Angle Head On Object Rear End Sideswipe Turning Other Total 

2016 1 0 1 7 0 8 0 17 

2017 2 0 1 5 0 5 0 13 

2018 1 0 0 3 0 12 1 17 

2019 2 0 1 2 1 8 0 14 

2020 0 0 0 1 1 7 0 9 

Total 6 0 3 18 2 40 1 70 

Average 1.2 0.0 <1.0 3.6 <1.0 5.0 <1.0 14.0 
 
  

 
1 IDOT DISCLAIMER: The motor vehicle crash data referenced herein was provided by the Illinois Department of 
Transportation. Any conclusions drawn from analysis of the aforementioned data are the sole responsibility of the data 
recipient(s). Additionally, for coding years 2015 to present, the Bureau of Data Collection uses the exact latitude/longitude 
supplied by the investigating law enforcement agency to locate crashes. Therefore, location data may vary in previous years since 
data prior to 2015 was physically located by bureau personnel.  
 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 11 

Table 2 
IL 31 WITH I-88 RAMPS – CRASH SUMMARY 

Year 
Type of Crash Frequency 

Angle Head On Object Rear End Sideswipe Turning Other Total 

2016 0 0 0 3 0 4 0 7 

2017 0 0 0 2 1 9 0 12 

2018 0 0 0 3 1 12 0 16 

2019 0 0 1 6 0 11 0 18 

2020 0 0 0 1 0 10 0 11 

Total 0 0 1 15 2 46 0 64 

Average 0.0 0.0 <1.0 3.0 <1.0 9.2 0.0 12.8 
 
 
Table 3 
IL 31 WITH LOVEDALE LANE – CRASH SUMMARY 

Year 
Type of Crash Frequency 

Angle Head On Object Rear End Sideswipe Turning Other Total 

2016 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 3 

2017 0 1 0 0 0 2 1 4 

2018 1 0 0 3 0 3 0 7 

2019 0 0 1 2 0 1 0 4 

2020 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 3 

Total 1 1 1 7 0 9 2 21 

Average <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 1.4 0.0 1.8 <1.0 4.2 
 
  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 12 

Table 4 
SULLIVAN ROAD WITH HIGHLAND AVENUE – CRASH SUMMARY 

Year 
Type of Crash Frequency 

Angle Head On Object Rear End Sideswipe Turning Other Total 

2016 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 

2017 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 3 

2018 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 

2019 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 4 

2020 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Total 0 0 4 5 0 3 0 12 

Average 0.0 0.0 <1.0 1.0 0.0 <1.0 0.0 2.4 
 
 
 
  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 13 

3. Traffic Characteristics of the Proposed Development 
 
 
In order to properly evaluate future traffic conditions in the surrounding area, it was necessary to 
determine the traffic characteristics of the proposed development, including the directional 
distribution and volumes of traffic that it will generate. 
 
Proposed Site and Development Plan 
 
As proposed, the site will be developed with two warehouse buildings totaling 429,000 square feet 
of space. Access to the development will be provided via one access drive on Sullivan Road and 
one access drives on Smoketree Lane as summarized below: 
 
• The Sullivan Road access drive will be located on the north side of the road approximately 

345 feet east of the Sullivan Road/Highland Avenue roundabout and immediately west of 
the Fairview Dental access drive. Given that Sullivan Road is a designated truck route and 
the tight turn between IL 31 and Smoketree Plaza, all semi-trailer trucks traveling to and 
from the development will be directed to use this access drive. This access drive will 
provide one inbound lane and one outbound lane with larger radii to accommodate the 
turning truck traffic. In addition, an approximate 225-foot eastbound left-turn lane with a 
110-foot taper will be provided on Sullivan Road serving the proposed access drive and 
Fairview Dental access drive.  

 
• The Smoketree Lane access drive will be located on the south side of the road aligned 

opposite the Rodeway Inn access drive. This access drive will provide one inbound lane 
and one outbound lane with larger radii to accommodate the turning truck traffic. 

 
A site plan depicting the proposed development layout and access is included in the Appendix.  
 
Directional Distribution 
 
The directions from which passenger vehicles will approach and depart the site were estimated 
based on existing travel patterns, as determined from the traffic counts. Given that Sullivan Road 
is a designated truck route and the tight turn between IL 31 and Smoketree Lane, all semi-trailer 
trucks traveling to and from the development will be direct to use the Sullivan Road access drive. 
Figure 6 illustrates the directional distribution of passenger vehicle and truck traffic. 
  



SITE

345'

31

10%

30% (100%)

00% - PERCENT DISTRIBUTION - PASSENGER VEHICLE

00' - DISTANCE IN FEET

(00%) - PERCENT DISTRIBUTION - TRUCKS

N

NOT  TO  SCALE

Figure:  6

Kenig,Lindgren,O'Hara,Aboona,Inc.

Job No: 22-114

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

PROPOSED WAREHOUSE

ROAD

SULLIVAN

LANE

LOVEDALE

ACCESS DRIVE

CINEMARK
D

R
IV

E

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

LANE

SMOKETREE

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

W
A

Y

P
L

A
Z

A
S

M
O

K
E

T
R

E
E

A
V

E
N

U
E

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D

B
N

S
F
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y

RAMP

I-88 ON/OFF

LEGEND

1
0

%

10%

2
0

%

2
0

%

ESTIMATED DIRECTIONAL DISTRIBUTION

- PROPOSED STOP SIGN



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 15 

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 
 
The volume of traffic estimated to be generated by the proposed warehouse development was 
determined based a review of trip generation data published by the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers (ITE) in the Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition. Land Use Code 150 (Warehouse) was 
utilized to estimate the trips for the development. Table 5 shows the estimated trips to be generated 
by the proposed development.  
 
Table 5 
ESTIMATED VEHICLE TRIP GENERATION 

Facility/Size 
Weekday Morning 

Peak Hour 
Weekday Evening 

Peak Hour Daily 
Trips 

In Out Total In Out Total 

Warehouse – 429,000 s.f. (LUC 150)        

Passenger Vehicle Traffic 52 12 64 14 50 64 458 

Truck Traffic 4 5 9 7 6 13 258 

Total 56 17 73 21 56 77 716 
 
 
 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 16 

4. Projected Traffic Conditions 
 
 
The total projected traffic volumes include the existing traffic volumes, increase in background 
traffic due to growth, and the traffic estimated to be generated by the proposed subject 
development. 
 
Development Traffic Assignment 
 
The estimated weekday morning and weekday evening peak hour traffic volumes that will be 
generated by the proposed development were assigned to the roadway system in accordance with 
the previously described directional distribution (Figure 6). Figure 7 illustrates the traffic 
assignment of the new passenger vehicle trips and Figure 8 illustrates the traffic assignment of the 
new truck trips.  
 
Background (No-Build) Traffic Conditions 
 
The Year 2022 existing traffic volumes (Figure 4) were increased by a regional growth factor to 
account for the increase in existing traffic related to regional growth in the area (i.e., not 
attributable to any particular planned development). Based on 2050 Annual Average Daily Traffic 
(AADT) projections provided by the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning (CMAP) in a 
letter dated April 18, 2022, the existing traffic volumes were increased by an annually compounded 
growth rate of approximately 1.2 percent for six years (one-year buildout plus five years) totaling 
approximately seven percent to represent Year 2028 conditions. Figure 9 illustrates the Year 2028 
no-build traffic volumes. A copy of the CMAP projections letter is included in the Appendix. 
 
Total Projected Traffic Volumes 
 
The new development-generated passenger vehicle trips (Figure 7) and truck trips (Figure 8) were 
added to the existing traffic volumes taking into account background growth (Figure 9) to 
determine the Year 2028 total projected traffic volumes. Figure 10 illustrates the Year 2028 total 
projected traffic volumes.  
  



SITE

31

N

NOT  TO  SCALE

Figure:  7

Kenig,Lindgren,O'Hara,Aboona,Inc.

Job No: 22-114

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

PROPOSED WAREHOUSE

ROAD

SULLIVAN

LANE

LOVEDALE

ACCESS DRIVE

CINEMARK
D

R
IV

E

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

LANE

SMOKETREE

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

W
A

Y

P
L

A
Z

A
S

M
O

K
E

T
R

E
E

@ SMOKETREE PLAZA

CINEMARK ACCESS DRIVE

A
V

E
N

U
E

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D

B
N

S
F
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y

RAMP

I-88 ON/OFF

LEGEND

00

(00)

- AM PEAK HOUR (7:15-8:15 AM)

- PM PEAK HOUR (4:15-5:15 PM)

PASSENGER VEHICLES
ESTIMATED SITE-GENERATED TRAFFIC VOLUMES

1 (5)

5
 
(2
)

5 (1)

ACCESS DRIVE

SULLIVAN ROAD @

4
 
(1

5
)

2
 
(5
)

10 (3)

6 (25)

26 (7)

6
 
(2

5
)

2
6
 
(7
)

10
 
(3
)

16 (4)

4
 
(1
8
)

2
 
(1
2
)

26 (7)

6
 
(3

0
)

16 (4)

1 (5) 5 (1)

11
 
(3
)

1 (5)

3 (10)

- PROPOSED STOP SIGN



SITE

31

N

NOT  TO  SCALE

Figure:  8

Kenig,Lindgren,O'Hara,Aboona,Inc.

Job No: 22-114

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

PROPOSED WAREHOUSE

ROAD

SULLIVAN

LANE

LOVEDALE

ACCESS DRIVE

CINEMARK
D

R
IV

E

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

LANE

SMOKETREE

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

W
A

Y

P
L

A
Z

A
S

M
O

K
E

T
R

E
E

A
V

E
N

U
E

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D

B
N

S
F
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y

RAMP

I-88 ON/OFF

LEGEND

00

(00)

- AM PEAK HOUR (7:15-8:15 AM)

- PM PEAK HOUR (4:15-5:15 PM)

TRUCKS
ESTIMATED SITE-GENERATED TRAFFIC VOLUMES

5
 
(6
)

4 (7)

4
 
(7
)

5 (6)

4
 
(7
)

5
 
(6
)

4 (7)

5
 
(6
)

- PROPOSED STOP SIGN



SITE

31

N

NOT  TO  SCALE

Figure:  9

Kenig,Lindgren,O'Hara,Aboona,Inc.

Job No: 22-114

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

PROPOSED WAREHOUSE

ROAD

SULLIVAN

LANE

LOVEDALE

ACCESS DRIVE

CINEMARK
D

R
IV

E

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

LANE

SMOKETREE

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

W
A

Y

EVERGREEN DRIVE

SMOKETREE LANE @

P
L

A
Z

A
S

M
O

K
E

T
R

E
E

@ SMOKETREE PLAZA

CINEMARK ACCESS DRIVE

A
V

E
N

U
E

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D

B
N

S
F
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y

RAMP

I-88 ON/OFF

LEGEND

00

(00)

- AM PEAK HOUR (7:15-8:15 AM)

- PM PEAK HOUR (4:15-5:15 PM)

12
1 
(9

2
)

68 (83)

74 (136)

16 (31)

65 (21)

3
6
 
(1

4
)

10
 
(1
1)

4
1 
(2

7
)

48 (78)

31 (51)

6
0
 
(4

4
)

39 (75)

74 (26)

12 (36)

42 (50)

2
2
 
(7

1
)

1
3
 
(1

1
)

1
1
 
(1

0
)

133 (80)

9
4
 
(1

2
8
)

0
 
(5
)

0
 
(4
)

0
 
(6
)

0 (9)

447 (633)

260 (212)

0 (5)

552 (388)

0
 
(0
)

3
4
9
 
(2

7
1
)

140 (157)

274 (383)

8
2
2
 
(7

17
)

10
7
 
(1
0
6
)

411 (367)

380 (263)

3
16
 
(2

4
0
)

8
2
7
 
(1
0
3
5
)

18
5
 
(1
4
3
)

1 (1)

1 (1)

1 (4)

3
 
(5
)

13
3
2
 
(1
16

7
)

0 (0)

13
2
3
 
(1
3
7
5
)

0 (1)

0
 
(3
)

1 
(3
)

3 (3)

3 (2)

1 (4)

7
 
(4
)0 (0)

6
5
8
 
(5

7
7
)

6
7
9
 
(5

9
7
)

399 (545)

748 (725)

7
5
8
 
(4

8
5
)

6
4
7
 
(7

2
1)

6
 
(4
)

1 (1)

1 (0)

13 (2)

2
0
 
(2
)

0
 
(0
)

YEAR 2028 NO-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES



SITE

31

N

NOT  TO  SCALE

LEGEND

00

(00)

Kenig,Lindgren,O'Hara,Aboona,Inc.

Job No: 22-114

12
1 
(9

2
)

71 (93)

74 (136)

16 (31)

- AM PEAK HOUR (7:15-8:15 AM)

- PM PEAK HOUR (4:15-5:15 PM)

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

PROPOSED WAREHOUSE

ROAD

SULLIVAN

65 (21)

3
6
 
(1

4
)

10
 
(1
1)

6
7
 
(3

4
)

48 (78)

37 (81)

6
0
 
(4

4
)

39 (75)

LANE

LOVEDALE

ACCESS DRIVE

CINEMARK
D

R
IV

E

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

LANE

SMOKETREE

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

W
A

Y

EVERGREEN DRIVE

SMOKETREE LANE @

P
L

A
Z

A
S

M
O

K
E

T
R

E
E

100 (33)

12 (36)

42 (50)

2
8
 
(1

0
1
)

@ SMOKETREE PLAZA

CINEMARK ACCESS DRIVE

A
V

E
N

U
E

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D

YEAR 2028 TOTAL PROJECTED TRAFFIC VOLUMES

1
3
 
(1

1
)

1
1
 
(1

0
)

B
N

S
F
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y

RAMP

I-88 ON/OFF

20 (11)

ACCESS DRIVE

SULLIVAN ROAD @

133 (80)

9
4
 
(1

2
8
)

9
 
(2

1
)

2
 
(5
)

707 (850)

10 (3)

901 (665)

0
 
(5
)

0
 
(4
)

0
 
(6
)

0 (9)

448 (638)

261 (217)

557 (389)

0
 
(0
)

3
5
4
 
(2

7
3
)

140 (157)

279 (384)

8
2
2
 
(7

17
)

11
8
 
(1
0
9
)

416 (373)

381 (268)

3
2
0
 
(2

4
7
)

8
2
7
 
(1
0
3
5
)

18
5
 
(1
4
3
)

1 (1)

1 (1)

1 (4)

3
 
(5
)

13
3
7
 
(1
17

3
)

0 (0)

13
2
7
 
(1
3
8
2
)

0 (1)

0
 
(3
)

1 
(3
)

3 (3)

3 (2)

1 (4)

7
 
(4
)0 (0)

6
6
0
 
(5

8
9
)

6
8
8
 
(6

2
1)

399 (545)

768 (736)

7
5
8
 
(4

8
5
)

6
5
7
 
(7

2
4
)

0
 
(0
)

0
 
(0
)

6
 
(4
)

1 (1)

26 (7)

1 (0)

0 (0)

0
 
(0
)

0
 
(0
)

6
 
(3

0
)

13 (2)

2
0
 
(2
)

Figure:  10

- PROPOSED STOP SIGN

0 (5)



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 21 

5. Traffic Analysis and Recommendations 
 
 
The following provides an evaluation conducted for the weekday morning and weekday evening 
peak hours. The analysis includes conducting capacity analyses to determine how well the roadway 
system and access drives are projected to operate and whether any roadway improvements or 
modifications are required. 
 
Traffic Analyses 
 
Roadway and adjacent or nearby intersection analyses were performed for the weekday morning 
and weekday evening peak hours for the Year 2022 base, Year 2028 no-build, and Year 2028 total 
projected traffic volumes. 
 
The traffic analyses were performed using the methodologies outlined in the Transportation 
Research Board’s Highway Capacity Manual (HCM), 6th Edition and analyzed using 
Synchro/SimTraffic 11 software. The analysis for the signalized intersections were accomplished 
using field measured cycle lengths and phasings to determine the average overall vehicle delay 
and levels of service.  
 
The analyses for the unsignalized intersections determine the average control delay to vehicles at 
an intersection. Control delay is the elapsed time from a vehicle joining the queue at a stop sign 
(includes the time required to decelerate to a stop) until its departure from the stop sign and 
resumption of free flow speed. The methodology analyzes each intersection approach controlled 
by a stop sign and considers traffic volumes on all approaches and lane characteristics. 
 
The ability of an intersection to accommodate traffic flow is expressed in terms of level of service, 
which is assigned a letter from A to F based on the average control delay experienced by vehicles 
passing through the intersection. The Highway Capacity Manual definitions for levels of service 
and the corresponding control delay for signalized intersections and unsignalized intersections are 
included in the Appendix of this report. 
 
Summaries of the traffic analysis results showing the level of service and overall intersection delay 
(measured in seconds) for the base, no-build, and total projected conditions are presented in Tables 
6 through 11. A discussion of each intersection follows. Summary sheets for the capacity analyses 
are included in the Appendix. 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 22 

Table 6 
IL 31 WITH SULLIVAN ROAD – SIGNALIZED 

 

Peak Hour 
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound 

Overall 
L T/R L T R L T R L T/R 

B
as

e 
C

on
di

tio
ns

 

Weekday 
Morning 

F 
99+ 

D 
50.7 

C 
34.6 

E 
57.1 

D 
39.1 

B 
18.2 

C 
29.3 

B 
15.4 

B 
18.8 

C 
31.3 D 

41.5 E – 74.3 D – 48.5 C – 26.6 C – 29.6 

Weekday 
Evening 

F 
83.3 

D 
49.9 

C 
34.9 

E 
57.7 

D 
39.7 

B 
19.2 

C 
25.5 

B 
12.4 

A 
8.7 

C 
20.9 D 

35.0 E – 67.1 D – 48.9 C – 23.4 B – 19.7 

N
o-

B
ui

ld
 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 Weekday 

Morning 

F 
99+ 

D 
49.4 

C 
32.9 

D 
53.5 

D 
35.3 

C 
23.9 

C 
33.4 

B 
17.7 

C 
22.4 

D 
35.5 D 

46.0 F – 84.1 D – 45.1 C – 30.6 C – 33.7 

Weekday 
Evening 

F 
99+ 

D 
49.4 

C 
34.1 

E 
56.5 

D 
38.3 

C 
26.0 

C 
27.4 

B 
13.3 

B 
10.4 

C 
25.2 D 

38.5 E – 75.5 D – 47.8 C – 25.8 C – 23.7 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

on
di

tio
ns

 Weekday 
Morning 

F 
99+ 

D 
49.0 

C 
32.6 

D 
53.2 

C 
35.0 

C 
27.3 

C 
33.7 

B 
17.8 

C 
22.8 

D 
36.7 D 

46.7 F – 85.0 D – 44.9 C – 31.2 C – 34.7 

Weekday 
Evening 

F 
99+ 

D 
49.8 

C 
34.2 

E 
56.5 

D 
38.3 

C 
27.1 

C 
27.4 

B 
13.3 

B 
11.1 

C 
25.1 D 

39.3 E – 78.2 D – 47.8 C – 26.0 C – 23.7 
Letter denotes Level of Service 
Delay is measured in seconds. 

L – Left Turn 
T – Through 

R – Right Turn 
 

 
  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 23 

TABLE 7 
IL 31 WITH I-88 RAMPS – SIGNALIZED  

 

Peak Hour 
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound 

Overall 
L/T R L/T/R L T/R L T R 

B
as

e 
C

on
di

tio
ns

 

Weekday 
Morning 

F 
85.0 

B 
19.9 C – 24.1 

F 
99+ 

B 
14.2 

B 
14.0 

D 
43.5 

C 
21.0 D 

45.7 D – 42.3 E – 63.7 C – 31.3 

Weekday 
Evening 

E 
75.8 

B 
14.8 C – 22.0 

F 
99+ 

C 
23.9 

B 
19.3 

E 
60.1 

A 
8.5 D 

48.1 D – 41.0 E – 65.2 D – 39.2 

N
o-

B
ui

ld
 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 Weekday 

Morning 

F 
99+ 

C 
23.0 C – 24.3 

F 
99+ 

B 
13.7 

B 
14.0 

D 
45.0 

C 
31.7 E 

57.9 D – 50.4 F – 85.5 D – 37.8 

Weekday 
Evening 

F 
91.7 

B 
16.4 C – 22.0 

F 
99+ 

C 
23.2 

B 
19.3 

E 
64.3 

B 
10.2 E 

56.4 D – 48.7 E – 79.2 D – 42.5 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

on
di

tio
ns

 Weekday 
Morning 

F 
99+ 

C 
24.6 C – 24.3 

F 
99+ 

B 
13.3 

B 
14.0 

D 
45.4 

C 
32.2 E 

60.2 D – 51.0 F – 91.3 D – 38.3 

Weekday 
Evening 

F 
91.7 

B 
16.8 C – 22.0 

F 
99+ 

C 
22.5 

B 
19.3 

E 
64.6 

B 
10.4 E 

59.6 D – 48.7 F – 88.2 D – 42.8 
Letter denotes Level of Service 
Delay is measured in seconds. 

L – Left Turn 
T – Through 

R – Right Turn 
 

 
  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 24 

TABLE 8 
IL 31 WITH LOVEDALE LANE/CINEMARK ACCESS DRIVE – SIGNALIZED  

 

Peak Hour 
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound 

Overall 
L/T R L/T/R L T/R L T/R 

B
as

e 
C

on
di

tio
ns

 

Weekday 
Morning 

E 
59.4 

E 
67.2 D – 49.3 

A 
2.8 

A 
4.7 

A 
3.0 

A 
9.6 A 

8.7 E – 64.1 A – 4.6 A – 9.5 

Weekday 
Evening 

E 
70.4 

E 
75.3 E – 57.0 

A 
2.6 

A 
4.5 

A 
1.6 

A 
6.7 A 

8.9 E – 73.7 A – 4.4 A – 6.7 

N
o-

B
ui

ld
 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 Weekday 

Morning 

E 
59.8 

E 
68.2 D – 49.3 

A 
3.2 

A 
5.1 

A 
3.8 

B 
12.0 B 

10.0 E – 64.9 A – 5.0 B – 11.9 

Weekday 
Evening 

E 
70.0 

E 
75.9 E – 56.3 

A 
3.0 

A 
5.1 

A 
2.1 

A 
9.0 B 

10.3 E – 73.6 A – 5.0 A – 9.0 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

on
di

tio
ns

 Weekday 
Morning 

E 
63.3 

E 
68.4 D – 49.3 

A 
3.3 

A 
5.1 

A 
3.7 

B 
12.8 B 

10.6 E – 66.2 A – 5.0 B – 12.7 

Weekday 
Evening 

E 
80.0 

E 
70.9 D – 54.8 

A 
3.6 

A 
5.7 

A 
2.5 

B 
10.4 B 

12.1 E – 75.6 A – 5.6 B – 10.3 
Letter denotes Level of Service 
Delay is measured in seconds. 

L – Left Turn 
T – Through 

R – Right Turn 
 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 25 

Table 9 
CAPACITY ANALYSIS RESULTS – UNSIGNALIZED – BASE CONDITIONS 

Intersection 
Weekday Morning 

Peak Hour 
Weekday Evening 

Peak Hour 
LOS Delay LOS Delay 

Sullivan Road with Highland Avenue1 

• Overall C 15.5 B 11.1 

• Eastbound Approach C 17.3 A 8.0 

• Westbound Approach B 11.7 B 13.8 

• Northbound Approach C 18.9 A 9.2 

• Southbound Approach -- -- A 7.4 

Cinemark Access Drive with Smoketree Plaza2 

• Southbound Approach A 9.4 A 9.3 

• Eastbound Left Turn A 0.0 A 7.3 

Smoketree Lane with Rodeway Inn Access Drive2 

• Southbound Approach A 9.2 A 9.1 

• Eastbound Left Turn A 7.4 A 0.0 

Smoketree Lane with Evergreen Drive/Styrofoam Recycling Access Drive3  

• Westbound Approach A 9.2 A 8.9 
LOS = Level of Service  
Delay is measured in seconds 

1 – Roundabout 
2 – Two-way stop control 

3 – Yield 

 
  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 26 

Table 10- 
CAPACITY ANALYSIS RESULTS – UNSIGNALIZED – NO-BUILD CONDITIONS 

Intersection 
Weekday Morning 

Peak Hour 
Weekday Evening 

Peak Hour 
LOS Delay LOS Delay 

Sullivan Road with Highland Avenue1 

• Overall C 19.3 B 12.8 

• Eastbound Approach C 22.1 A 8.7 

• Westbound Approach B 13.3 C 16.4 

• Northbound Approach C 24.4 B 10.2 

• Southbound Approach -- -- A 8.0 

Cinemark Access Drive with Smoketree Plaza2 

• Southbound Approach A 9.5 A 9.4 

• Eastbound Left Turn A 0.0 A 7.3 

Smoketree Lane with Rodeway Inn Access Drive2 

• Southbound Approach A 9.3 A 9.1 

• Eastbound Left Turn A 7.4 A 0.0 

Smoketree Lane with Evergreen Drive/Styrofoam Recycling Access Drive3  

• Westbound Approach A 9.2 A 8.9 
LOS = Level of Service  
Delay is measured in seconds 

1 – Roundabout 
2 – Two-way stop control 

3 – Yield 

 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 27 

Table 11 
CAPACITY ANALYSIS RESULTS – UNSIGNALIZED – TOTAL CONDITIONS 

Intersection 
Weekday Morning 

Peak Hour 
Weekday Evening 

Peak Hour 
LOS Delay LOS Delay 

Sullivan Road with Highland Avenue1 

• Overall C 19.8 B 13.1 

• Eastbound Approach C 22..7 A 8.8 

• Westbound Approach B 13.4 C 16.9 

• Northbound Approach C 24.7 B 10.2 

• Southbound Approach -- -- A 8.1 

Cinemark Access Drive with Smoketree Plaza2 

• Southbound Approach A 9.6 A 9.6 

• Eastbound Left Turn A 0.0 A 7.3 

Smoketree Lane with Rodeway Inn Access Drive/Proposed Access Drive2 

• Northbound Approach A 8.6 A 8.9 

• Southbound Approach A 9.9 A 9.6 

• Eastbound Left Turn A 7.4 A 0.0 

• Westbound Left Turn A 7.4 A 7.4 

Smoketree Lane with Evergreen Drive/Styrofoam Recycling Access Drive3  

• Westbound Approach A 9.2 A 8.9 

Sullivan Road with Proposed Access Drive2    

• Southbound Approach D 25.3 F 99+ 

• Eastbound Left Turn A 9.9 B 11.6 
LOS = Level of Service  
Delay is measured in seconds 

1 – Roundabout 
2 – Two-way stop control 

3 – Yield 

  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 28 

Discussion and Recommendations 
 
The following summarizes how the intersections are projected to operate and identifies any 
roadway and traffic control improvements necessary to accommodate the development-generated 
traffic. 
 
IL 31 with Sullivan Road 
 
The results of the capacity analysis indicate that this intersection currently operates at an overall 
Level of Service (LOS) D during the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours. All the 
intersection movements operate at LOS D or better during both peak hours except the eastbound 
left-turn movement and the westbound through movement. During both peak hours, the eastbound 
left-turn movement operates at LOS F and the westbound through movement operates on the 
threshold between LOS D/E. This is due in part to the fact that IL 31 is the primary road at this 
intersection and receives the majority of the green time.  
 
Under Year 2028 no-build conditions, the intersection is projected to operate at an overall LOS D 
during both the weekday morning and evening peak hours. All the intersection movements are 
projected to continue to operate at LOS D or better during both peak hours except the eastbound 
left-turn movement and the westbound through movement. The eastbound left-turn movement is 
projected to continue to operate at LOS F during both peak hours and the westbound movement is 
projected to continue to operate on the threshold of LOS D/E during the weekday evening peak 
hour. 
 
Under Year 2028 total projected conditions, the intersection is projected to continue to operate at 
an overall LOS D during the weekday morning and evening peak hours. All the intersection 
movements are projected to continue to operate at LOS D or better during both peak hours except 
the eastbound left-turn movement and the westbound through movement. The eastbound left-turn 
movement is projected to continue to operate at LOS F during both peak hours and the westbound 
movement is projected to continue to operate on the threshold of LOS D/E during the weekday 
evening peak hour. It is recommended that the signal timings at this intersection be optimized. 
With the reallocation of some green time from the IL 31 approaches to the Sullivan Road 
approaches, the intersection is projected to operate at LOS D and all the movements are projected 
to operate at LOS D or better during both peak hours. As such, this intersection has sufficient 
reserve capacity to accommodate the traffic to be generated by the proposed development and no 
additional roadway improvements or traffic control modifications are required at this intersection.  
 
IL 31 with I-88 Ramps 
 
The results of the capacity analysis indicate that this intersection currently operates at LOS D 
during the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours. All the intersection movements 
operate at LOS D or better during both peak hours except the eastbound left-turn/through 
movement, the northbound left-turn movement, and the southbound through movement. The 
eastbound through/left-turn movement and the northbound left-turn movement operate at LOS E 
or F during both peak hours and the northbound through movements operates at LOS E during the 
evening peak hour.  
 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 29 

Under Year 2028 no-build conditions, the overall intersection is projected to operate on the 
threshold between LOS D/E during the weekday morning and evening peak hours. All the 
intersection movements are projected to continue to operate at LOS D or better during both peak 
hours except the eastbound left-turn/through movement, the northbound left-turn movement, and 
the southbound through movement, which are projected to continue to operate at LOS E or F. 
 
Under Year 2028 total projected conditions, the intersection is projected to operate at an overall 
LOS E during the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours. All the intersection 
movements are projected to continue to operate at LOS D or better during both peak hours except 
the eastbound left-turn/through movement, the northbound left-turn movement, and the 
southbound through movement, which are projected to continue to operate at LOS E or F. The 
development-generated traffic is projected to represent just over one percent of the traffic at this 
intersection during the peak hours. As such, the development will have a limited impact on the 
operation of this intersection and no roadway improvements or traffic signal modifications are 
required. 
 
IL 31 with Lovedale Lane/Cinemark Access Drive 
 
The results of the capacity analysis indicate that the intersection currently operates at an overall 
LOS A during the weekday morning and evening peak hours. All the intersection movements 
operate at LOS D or better during both peak hours except the eastbound left-turn movement, 
eastbound through/right-turn movement, and westbound approach during the evening peak hour, 
which are projected to operate at LOS E. This is due in part to the fact that IL 31 is the primary 
road at this intersection and receives the majority of the green time. 
 
Under Year 2028 no-build conditions, the overall intersection is projected to operate at LOS B 
during the weekday morning and evening peak hours. All the intersection movements are projected 
to continue to operate at LOS D or better during both peak hours except the eastbound left-turn 
movement, eastbound through/right-turn movement, and westbound approach during the evening 
peak hour, which are projected to continue to operate at LOS E.  
 
Under Year 2028 total projected conditions, the overall intersection is projected to operate at LOS 
B during the weekday morning and evening peak hours. All the intersection movements are 
projected to continue to operate at LOS D or better during both peak hours except the eastbound 
left-turn movement, eastbound through/right-turn movement, and westbound approach during the 
weekday evening peak hour, which are projected to continue to operate at LOS E. As such, 
intersection has sufficient reserve capacity to accommodate the traffic estimated to be generated 
by the proposed development and no roadway improvements or signal modifications will be 
required. 
 
Sullivan Road with Highland Avenue 
 
The results of the capacity analysis indicate that the roundabout currently operates at an overall 
LOS C during the weekday morning peak hour and at LOS B during the weekday evening peak 
hour. All approaches currently operate at LOS C or better during the peak hours.  
 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 30 

Under Year 2028 no-build conditions, the roundabout is projected to continue to operate at LOS 
C during the weekday morning peak hour and at LOS B during the weekday evening peak hour. 
All approaches are projected to continue operating at LOS C or better during the peak hours.  
 
Under Year 2028 total projected conditions, the roundabout is projected to continue to operate at 
LOS C during the weekday morning peak hour and at LOS B during the weekday evening peak 
hour. All approaches are projected to continue to operate at LOS C or better during the peak hours. 
As such, this intersection has sufficient reserve capacity to accommodate the traffic estimated to 
be generated by the proposed development and no roadway improvements or traffic control 
modifications are required.  
 
Smoketree Plaza with Cinemark Access Drive 
 
The results of the capacity analysis indicate that the Smoketree Plaza southbound approach 
currently operates at LOS A during the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours. The 
eastbound left-turn movement is projected to operate at LOS A during both peak hours. It should 
be noted that given the proximity of the intersection to IL 31, the southbound approach and the 
eastbound approach does experience some queuing as the traffic on these approaches must wait 
for the green phase for the Cinemark/Smoketree Plaza approach at its intersection with IL 31. 
Under Year 2028 no-build conditions, the southbound approach and eastbound left-turn movement 
are projected to continue operating at their current levels of service. Under Year 2028 total 
projected conditions, the southbound approach and the eastbound left-turn movement are projected 
to continue to operate at LOS A during both peak hours. As such, this intersection has sufficient 
reserve capacity to accommodate the traffic estimated to be generated by the proposed 
development and no roadway improvements or traffic control modifications are required.  
 
Smoketree Lane with Evergreen Drive/Styrofoam Recycling Access Drive 
 
Since the southbound approach at this intersection is under yield sign control, the intersection was 
analyzed assuming all-way stop sign control. The results of the capacity analysis indicate that the 
westbound, northbound, and southbound approaches all currently operate at LOS A during the 
weekday morning and evening peak hours. Under Year 2028 no-build conditions, all approaches 
are projected to continue operating at LOS A during both peak hours. Under Year 2028 total 
projected conditions, all approaches are projected to operate at LOS A during the weekday 
morning and evening peak hours. As such, this intersection has sufficient reserve capacity to 
accommodate the traffic estimated to be generated by the proposed development and no roadway 
improvements or traffic control modifications are required. 
 
Sullivan Road with Proposed Access Drive 
 
Access to the development is proposed via an access drive located on the north side of Sullivan 
Road approximately 345 feet east of the Sullivan Road/Highland Avenue roundabout and 
immediately west of the Fairview Dental access drive. Given that Sullivan Road is a designated 
truck route and the tight turn between IL 31 and Smoketree Lane, all semi-trailer trucks will be 
directed to use this access drive. This access drive will provide one inbound lane and one outbound 
lane with larger radii to accommodate the turning truck traffic. In addition, an approximate 225-
foot eastbound left-turn lane with a 110-foot taper will be provided on Sullivan Road serving the 
proposed access drive and Fairview Dental access drive. 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 31 

It should be noted that the proximity of the proposed access drive to the Highland Avenue 
roundabout and the Fairview Dental access drive should not pose any operational issues due to the 
following:  
 
• The lower travel speeds experienced along Sullivan Road within the vicinity of the access 

drive, as westbound vehicles are slowing down as they approach the roundabout and 
westbound vehicles are starting to accelerate after exiting the roundabout.  

 
• The excellent sight lines that will be provided between the roundabout, the proposed access 

drive, and the Fairview Dental access drive with the elimination of the existing trees and 
brush as part of the construction of the access drive.  

 
• The eastbound left-turn lane proposed to be provided on Sullivan Road serving the 

proposed access drive and the Fairview Dental access drive.  
 

• The lower volume of traffic projected to use the access drive and that currently uses the 
Fairview Dental access drive. 

 
Further, it is important to note that Sullivan Road is designated a truck route and currently has a 
number of access drives serving industrial and warehouse uses located along Sullivan Road. 
 
Under Year 2028 total projected conditions, the southbound approach from the proposed access 
drive is projected to operate at LOS D during the weekday morning peak hour and at LOS F during 
the weekday evening peak hour. The development traffic will be able to exit onto Sullivan Road. 
However, during the evening peak period this traffic will experience some additional delay. This 
is common and expected for an access drive intersecting a major roadway such as Sullivan Road. 
Further, it is important to note that the analysis provides a conservative (worst-case) analysis as it 
did not consider the following factors: 
 
• The signalized intersection of Sullivan Road and IL 31 and the roundabout at Sullivan 

Road/Highland Avenue intersection, which both create additional gaps in the Sullivan 
Road traffic stream.  

 
• The median that will be provided along Sullivan Road with proposed left-turn lane that 

will allow exiting vehicles to complete a two-stage left turn. 
 
As such, the access drive approach is projected to operate better than the capacity analyses are 
indicating.  
 
Smoketree Lane with Rodeway Inn Access Drive/Proposed Access Drive 
 
The results of the capacity analysis indicate that the southbound approach currently operates at 
LOS A during the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours. The eastbound left-turn 
movement is projected to operate at LOS A during both peak hours. Under Year 2028 no-build 
conditions, the southbound approach and eastbound left-turn movement are projected to continue 
operating at their current levels of service.  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 32 

Access to the development is proposed via an access drive on located on the south side of 
Smoketree Lane aligned opposite the Rodeway Inn access drive. This access drive will provide 
one inbound lane and one outbound lane with larger radii to accommodate the turning truck traffic. 
Under Year 2028 total projected conditions, the northbound approach from the proposed 
development and the southbound approach are projected to operate at LOS A during the weekday 
morning and evening peak hours. The eastbound and westbound left turns are projected to operate 
at LOS A during both peak hours. As such, the proposed site access drive will provide efficient 
and flexible access to the site with limited impact on Smoketree Lane. 
 
  



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 33 

6. Conclusion 
 
 
Based on the preceding analyses and recommendations, the following conclusions have been 
made: 
 
• Access to the development will be provided via one access drive on Sullivan Road and one 

access drive on Smoketree Lane as summarized below: 
 

o The Sullivan Road access drive will be located on the north side of the road 
approximately 345 feet east of the Sullivan Road/Highland Avenue roundabout and 
immediately west of the Fairview Dental access drive. Given that Sullivan Road is 
a designated truck route and the tight turn between IL 31 and Smoketree Plaza, all 
semi-trailer trucks will be directed to use this access drive. This access drive will 
provide one inbound lane and one outbound lane with larger radii to accommodate 
the turning truck traffic. In addition, an approximate 225-foot eastbound left-turn 
lane with a 110-foot taper will be provided on Sullivan Road serving the proposed 
access drive and Fairview Dental access drive. 

 
o The Smoketree Lane access drive will be located on the south side of the road 

aligned opposite the Rodeway Inn access drive. This access drive will provide one 
inbound lane and one outbound lane with larger radii to accommodate the turning 
truck traffic. 

 
• The proximity of the proposed access drive to the Highland Avenue roundabout and the 

Fairview Dental access drive should not pose any operational issues due tio the following:  
 

o The lower travel speeds experienced along Sullivan Road within the vicinity of the 
access drive, as westbound vehicles are slowing down as they approach the 
roundabout and westbound vehicles are starting to accelerate after exiting the 
roundabout.  

 
o The excellent sight lines that will be provided between the roundabout, the 

proposed access drive, and the Fairview Dental access drive with the elimination 
of the existing trees and brush as part of the construction of the access drive.  

 
o The eastbound left-turn lane proposed to be provided on Sullivan Road serving 

proposed the access drive and the Fairview Dental access drive.  
 

o The lower volume of traffic projected to use the access drive and currently using 
the Fairview Dental access drive. 

 
o That Sullivan Road is designated a truck route and that a number of access drives 

serving industrial and warehouse uses are currently located along Sullivan Road.  
 



Proposed Warehouse Development 
North Aurora, Illinois 34 

• The proposed access system will be adequate in accommodating the traffic projected to be 
generated by the proposed development.  

 
• The results of the capacity analyses indicate that the existing roadway system generally has 

sufficient reserve capacity to accommodate the traffic to be generated by the proposed 
development. 
 

 
 



Appendix 
 

Traffic Count Summary Sheets 
Site Plan 

CMAP 2050 Projections Letter 
Level of Service Criteria 

Capacity Analysis Summary Sheets 
  



Traffic Count Summary Sheets  



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

IL
+

3
1

+
w

it
h

+
S

u
lli

v
a

n
+

R
o

a
d

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
1

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

D
a

ta

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
u

lli
v
a

n
 R

d
S

u
lli

v
a

n
 R

d
IL

 3
1

IL
 3

1

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

A
p

p
. 

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

T
h

ru
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

T
h

ru
R

ig
h

t
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
In

t.
 T

o
ta

l

6
:3

0
 A

M
7

4
5

3
1

0
1

3
7

7
3

9
3

1
0

0
7

7
3

3
1

5
7

0
0

1
9

0
2

6
1

1
4

5
4

0
0

1
9

4
5

9
8

6
:4

5
 A

M
6

1
4

0
1

1
1

1
2

1
6

5
3

2
7

0
0

9
6

2
1

1
3

1
0

0
1

5
2

3
0

1
2

8
5

7
0

0
2

1
5

5
7

5

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
1

3
5

9
3

2
1

2
4

9
2

3
9

2
5

8
0

0
1

7
3

5
4

2
8

8
0

0
3

4
2

5
6

2
4

2
1

1
1

0
0

4
0

9
1

1
7

3

7
:0

0
 A

M
8

1
6

3
1

5
1

5
9

1
7

5
8

3
0

0
0

1
0

5
1

0
1

1
1

0
0

1
2

1
3

6
1

0
3

4
0

0
0

1
7

9
5

6
4

7
:1

5
 A

M
6

8
4

6
1

0
1

2
4

1
1

5
1

1
9

0
0

8
1

1
8

1
5

3
0

0
1

7
1

4
3

1
4

9
3

9
0

0
2

3
1

6
0

7

7
:3

0
 A

M
7

5
9

4
8

1
7

7
1

4
6

3
2

7
0

0
1

0
4

2
4

1
7

8
0

0
2

0
2

3
2

1
4

9
6

2
0

0
2

4
3

7
2

6

7
:4

5
 A

M
9

4
8

4
1

5
1

9
3

1
6

5
4

2
8

0
0

9
8

2
8

1
3

1
0

0
1

5
9

2
9

1
4

5
7

0
0

0
2

4
4

6
9

4

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
3

1
8

2
8

7
4

8
6

5
3

5
8

2
2

6
1

0
4

0
0

3
8

8
8

0
5

7
3

0
0

6
5

3
1

4
0

5
4

6
2

1
1

0
0

8
9

7
2

5
9

1

8
:0

0
 A

M
7

0
6

0
1

8
1

4
8

1
4

3
7

3
1

0
0

8
2

1
0

1
5

2
0

0
1

6
2

3
4

1
7

5
6

5
0

0
2

7
4

6
6

6

8
:1

5
 A

M
8

0
2

8
1

4
1

2
2

2
0

4
0

2
7

0
0

8
7

2
3

1
1

0
0

0
1

3
3

1
5

1
2

3
3

9
0

0
1

7
7

5
1

9

8
:3

0
 A

M
6

4
4

3
1

5
1

2
2

1
7

3
4

2
8

0
0

7
9

1
3

1
2

2
0

0
1

3
5

1
9

1
5

3
3

7
1

0
2

1
0

5
4

6

8
:4

5
 A

M
4

9
5

2
2

0
1

2
1

1
7

3
7

2
5

0
0

7
9

1
3

8
4

0
0

9
7

2
2

1
4

0
4

5
0

0
2

0
7

5
0

4

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
2

6
3

1
8

3
6

7
5

1
3

6
8

1
4

8
1

1
1

0
0

3
2

7
5

9
4

6
8

0
0

5
2

7
9

0
5

9
1

1
8

6
1

0
8

6
8

2
2

3
5

**
* 

B
R

E
A

K
 *

**
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

3
:0

0
 P

M
4

9
9

4
3

3
1

7
6

2
6

9
8

3
5

0
0

1
5

9
1

8
1

1
3

0
0

1
3

1
2

0
1

7
5

4
1

0
0

2
3

6
7

0
2

3
:1

5
 P

M
5

3
7

4
1

6
1

4
3

2
5

6
3

2
3

0
0

1
1

1
1

9
1

5
9

0
1

1
7

8
2

9
2

1
7

5
2

1
0

2
9

9
7

3
1

3
:3

0
 P

M
7

8
8

1
2

7
1

8
6

3
9

9
9

3
3

0
0

1
7

1
2

8
1

5
1

0
0

1
7

9
4

0
1

9
1

4
5

0
0

2
7

6
8

1
2

3
:4

5
 P

M
6

9
5

2
2

0
1

4
1

3
6

8
9

3
2

0
0

1
5

7
2

5
1

3
9

0
0

1
6

4
2

8
2

2
2

4
8

3
0

3
0

1
7

6
3

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
2

4
9

3
0

1
9

6
6

4
6

1
2

6
3

4
9

1
2

3
0

0
5

9
8

9
0

5
6

2
0

1
6

5
2

1
1

7
8

0
5

1
8

6
4

0
1

1
1

2
3

0
0

8

4
:0

0
 P

M
7

2
5

4
1

4
1

4
0

2
2

6
4

4
4

0
0

1
3

0
2

5
1

7
4

0
0

1
9

9
4

2
1

9
3

5
1

0
0

2
8

6
7

5
5

4
:1

5
 P

M
7

9
4

8
2

0
1

4
7

3
6

8
3

2
9

0
0

1
4

8
2

2
1

6
4

0
0

1
8

6
3

3
2

2
8

5
1

0
0

3
1

2
7

9
3

4
:3

0
 P

M
8

2
5

9
1

6
1

5
7

3
2

9
0

4
6

0
1

1
6

8
2

5
1

5
0

0
0

1
7

5
3

7
1

9
9

4
3

0
0

2
7

9
7

7
9

4
:4

5
 P

M
6

5
4

8
1

4
1

2
7

2
8

6
4

3
2

0
0

1
2

4
1

5
1

4
9

0
0

1
6

4
2

1
2

3
9

6
8

0
0

3
2

8
7

4
3

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
2

9
8

2
0

9
6

4
5

7
1

1
1

8
3

0
1

1
5

1
0

1
5

7
0

8
7

6
3

7
0

0
7

2
4

1
3

3
8

5
9

2
1

3
0

0
1

2
0

5
3

0
7

0

5
:0

0
 P

M
8

6
6

9
2

1
1

7
6

1
9

8
8

2
7

0
0

1
3

4
2

8
1

4
6

0
0

1
7

4
3

1
2

1
3

4
2

0
0

2
8

6
7

7
0

5
:1

5
 P

M
5

2
5

4
1

7
1

2
3

3
4

8
3

3
0

0
0

1
4

7
2

7
1

8
7

0
0

2
1

4
2

1
2

2
3

3
9

1
0

2
8

4
7

6
8

5
:3

0
 P

M
5

0
4

3
2

1
1

1
4

2
4

6
5

3
5

0
0

1
2

4
2

5
1

4
3

0
0

1
6

8
2

1
2

0
0

5
6

0
2

2
7

7
6

8
3

5
:4

5
 P

M
4

7
4

9
1

7
1

1
3

2
5

6
8

2
8

0
0

1
2

1
1

7
1

2
5

0
0

1
4

2
2

7
1

6
8

4
8

0
2

2
4

3
6

1
9

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
2

3
5

2
1

5
7

6
5

2
6

1
0

2
3

0
4

1
2

0
0

0
5

2
6

9
7

6
0

1
0

0
6

9
8

1
0

0
8

0
4

1
8

5
1

4
1

0
9

0
2

8
4

0

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

1
4

9
8

1
2

8
8

3
7

2
3

1
5

8
4

9
5

1
4

2
0

6
6

7
0

1
2

5
8

2
4

6
7

3
1

2
9

0
1

3
5

9
6

6
3

6
3

8
4

7
1

0
9

2
6

4
5

5
8

1
1

4
9

1
7

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
4

7
.4

4
0

.8
1

1
.8

-
1

9
.2

5
5

.0
2

5
.8

0
.0

-
-

1
3

.0
8

7
.0

0
.0

-
-

1
1

.4
6

8
.9

1
9

.6
0

.1
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 
%

1
0

.0
8

.6
2

.5
2

1
.2

3
.3

9
.5

4
.5

0
.0

-
1

7
.3

3
.1

2
1

.0
0

.0
-

2
4

.1
4

.3
2

5
.8

7
.3

0
.0

-
3

7
.4

-

L
ig

h
ts

1
4

3
2

1
2

4
6

3
5

9
3

0
3

7
4

6
7

1
3

8
4

5
8

8
0

-
2

4
3

9
4

5
4

2
9

5
7

0
-

3
4

1
1

5
5

4
3

6
4

2
1

0
6

0
6

-
5

2
6

2
1

4
1

4
9

%
 L

ig
h

ts
9

5
.6

9
6

.7
9

6
.5

9
6

.2
9

4
.3

9
7

.5
8

8
.2

-
-

9
4

.5
9

7
.2

9
4

.5
-

-
9

4
.9

8
7

.1
9

4
.7

9
7

.1
1

0
0

.0
-

9
4

.3
9

4
.9

B
u

s
e

s
1

7
1

5
1

3
3

0
6

0
0

-
6

3
3

0
0

-
3

3
9

3
1

5
0

-
4

5
1

1
7

%
 B

u
s
e

s
1

.1
1

.2
0

.3
1

.0
0

.0
0

.4
0

.0
-

-
0

.2
0

.6
1

.0
-

-
0

.9
1

.4
0

.8
0

.5
0

.0
-

0
.8

0
.8



S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

2
8

1
2

9
4

9
1

1
1

2
2

6
0

-
4

9
6

5
7

0
-

6
3

2
4

8
2

1
9

0
-

1
2

5
2

8
6

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it
 T

ru
c
k
s

1
.9

0
.9

2
.4

1
.6

2
.2

0
.8

3
.9

-
-

1
.9

1
.3

1
.8

-
-

1
.8

3
.8

2
.1

1
.7

0
.0

-
2

.2
1

.9

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

2
1

1
5

3
3

9
1

7
1

8
5

3
0

-
8

8
4

8
5

0
-

8
9

4
9

9
2

8
0

-
1

4
9

3
6

5

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

 T
ru

c
k
s

1
.4

1
.2

0
.8

1
.2

3
.4

1
.3

7
.9

-
-

3
.4

0
.9

2
.7

-
-

2
.5

7
.7

2
.4

0
.7

0
.0

-
2

.7
2

.4

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

-
-

-
-

1
-

-
-

-
-

4
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
-

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
-

-
-

-
-

1
0

0
.0

-
-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

IL
+

3
1

+
w

it
h

+
S

u
lli

v
a

n
+

R
o

a
d

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
3

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
7

:1
5

 A
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
u

lli
v
a

n
 R

d
S

u
lli

v
a

n
 R

d
IL

 3
1

IL
 3

1

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

A
p

p
. 

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

T
h

ru
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

T
h

ru
R

ig
h

t
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
In

t.
 T

o
ta

l

7
:1

5
 A

M
6

8
4

6
1

0
1

2
4

1
1

5
1

1
9

0
0

8
1

1
8

1
5

3
0

0
1

7
1

4
3

1
4

9
3

9
0

0
2

3
1

6
0

7

7
:3

0
 A

M
7

5
9

4
8

1
7

7
1

4
6

3
2

7
0

0
1

0
4

2
4

1
7

8
0

0
2

0
2

3
2

1
4

9
6

2
0

0
2

4
3

7
2

6

7
:4

5
 A

M
9

4
8

4
1

5
1

9
3

1
6

5
4

2
8

0
0

9
8

2
8

1
3

1
0

0
1

5
9

2
9

1
4

5
7

0
0

0
2

4
4

6
9

4

8
:0

0
 A

M
7

0
6

0
1

8
1

4
8

1
4

3
7

3
1

0
0

8
2

1
0

1
5

2
0

0
1

6
2

3
4

1
7

5
6

5
0

0
2

7
4

6
6

6

T
o

ta
l

3
0

7
2

8
4

5
1

6
4

2
5

5
2

0
5

1
0

5
0

0
3

6
5

8
0

6
1

4
0

0
6

9
4

1
3

8
6

1
8

2
3

6
0

0
9

9
2

2
6

9
3

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
4

7
.8

4
4

.2
7

.9
-

1
5

.1
5

6
.2

2
8

.8
0

.0
-

-
1

1
.5

8
8

.5
0

.0
-

-
1

3
.9

6
2

.3
2

3
.8

0
.0

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l 
%

1
1

.4
1

0
.5

1
.9

2
3

.8
2

.0
7

.6
3

.9
0

.0
-

1
3

.6
3

.0
2

2
.8

0
.0

-
2

5
.8

5
.1

2
2

.9
8

.8
0

.0
-

3
6

.8
-

P
H

F
0

.8
1

6
0

.7
5

5
0

.7
0

8
0

.8
3

2
0

.8
5

9
0

.8
1

3
0

.8
4

7
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.8

7
7

0
.7

1
4

0
.8

6
2

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.8
5

9
0

.8
0

2
0

.8
8

3
0

.8
4

3
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.9

0
5

0
.9

2
7

L
ig

h
ts

2
8

9
2

7
8

4
8

6
1

5
4

9
1

9
6

8
6

0
-

3
3

1
7

8
5

6
7

0
-

6
4

5
1

1
5

5
8

4
2

2
8

0
-

9
2

7
2

5
1

8

%
 L

ig
h

ts
9

4
.1

9
7

.9
9

4
.1

9
5

.8
8

9
.1

9
5

.6
8

1
.9

-
-

9
0

.7
9

7
.5

9
2

.3
-

-
9

2
.9

8
3

.3
9

4
.5

9
6

.6
-

-
9

3
.4

9
3

.5

B
u

s
e

s
3

3
0

6
0

1
0

0
-

1
2

7
0

-
9

2
6

1
0

-
9

2
5

%
 B

u
s
e

s
1

.0
1

.1
0

.0
0

.9
0

.0
0

.5
0

.0
-

-
0

.3
2

.5
1

.1
-

-
1

.3
1

.4
1

.0
0

.4
-

-
0

.9
0

.9

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

9
2

3
1

4
2

4
6

0
-

1
2

0
1

4
0

-
1

4
9

1
3

6
0

-
2

8
6

8

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it
 T

ru
c
k
s

2
.9

0
.7

5
.9

2
.2

3
.6

2
.0

5
.7

-
-

3
.3

0
.0

2
.3

-
-

2
.0

6
.5

2
.1

2
.5

-
-

2
.8

2
.5

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

6
1

0
7

4
4

1
3

0
-

2
1

0
2

6
0

-
2

6
1

2
1

5
1

0
-

2
8

8
2

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

 T
ru

c
k
s

2
.0

0
.4

0
.0

1
.1

7
.3

2
.0

1
2

.4
-

-
5

.8
0

.0
4

.2
-

-
3

.7
8

.7
2

.4
0

.4
-

-
2

.8
3

.0

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

0
-

-
-

-
-

0
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

IL
+

3
1

+
w

it
h

+
S

u
lli

v
a

n
+

R
o

a
d

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
4

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
4

:1
5

 P
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
u

lli
v
a

n
 R

d
S

u
lli

v
a

n
 R

d
IL

 3
1

IL
 3

1

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

A
p

p
. 

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

T
h

ru
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

T
h

ru
R

ig
h

t
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
In

t.
 T

o
ta

l

4
:1

5
 P

M
7

9
4

8
2

0
1

4
7

3
6

8
3

2
9

0
0

1
4

8
2

2
1

6
4

0
0

1
8

6
3

3
2

2
8

5
1

0
0

3
1

2
7

9
3

4
:3

0
 P

M
8

2
5

9
1

6
1

5
7

3
2

9
0

4
6

0
1

1
6

8
2

5
1

5
0

0
0

1
7

5
3

7
1

9
9

4
3

0
0

2
7

9
7

7
9

4
:4

5
 P

M
6

5
4

8
1

4
1

2
7

2
8

6
4

3
2

0
0

1
2

4
1

5
1

4
9

0
0

1
6

4
2

1
2

3
9

6
8

0
0

3
2

8
7

4
3

5
:0

0
 P

M
8

6
6

9
2

1
1

7
6

1
9

8
8

2
7

0
0

1
3

4
2

8
1

4
6

0
0

1
7

4
3

1
2

1
3

4
2

0
0

2
8

6
7

7
0

T
o

ta
l

3
1

2
2

2
4

7
1

6
0

7
1

1
5

3
2

5
1

3
4

0
1

5
7

4
9

0
6

0
9

0
0

6
9

9
1

2
2

8
7

9
2

0
4

0
0

1
2

0
5

3
0

8
5

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
5

1
.4

3
6

.9
1

1
.7

-
2

0
.0

5
6

.6
2

3
.3

0
.0

-
-

1
2

.9
8

7
.1

0
.0

-
-

1
0

.1
7

2
.9

1
6

.9
0

.0
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 
%

1
0

.1
7

.3
2

.3
1

9
.7

3
.7

1
0

.5
4

.3
0

.0
-

1
8

.6
2

.9
1

9
.7

0
.0

-
2

2
.7

4
.0

2
8

.5
6

.6
0

.0
-

3
9

.1
-

P
H

F
0

.9
0

7
0

.8
1

2
0

.8
4

5
0

.8
6

2
0

.7
9

9
0

.9
0

3
0

.7
2

8
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.8

5
4

0
.8

0
4

0
.9

2
8

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.9
4

0
0

.8
2

4
0

.9
1

9
0

.7
5

0
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.9

1
8

0
.9

7
3

L
ig

h
ts

3
0

3
2

2
3

6
9

5
9

5
1

1
3

3
2

1
1

2
8

0
-

5
6

2
8

9
5

9
1

0
-

6
8

0
1

1
3

8
4

7
1

9
9

0
-

1
1

5
9

2
9

9
6

%
 L

ig
h

ts
9

7
.1

9
9

.6
9

7
.2

9
8

.0
9

8
.3

9
8

.8
9

5
.5

-
-

9
7

.9
9

8
.9

9
7

.0
-

-
9

7
.3

9
2

.6
9

6
.4

9
7

.5
-

-
9

6
.2

9
7

.1

B
u

s
e

s
3

0
0

3
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

5
0

-
5

0
3

0
0

-
3

1
1

%
 B

u
s
e

s
1

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.5
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.8
-

-
0

.7
0

.0
0

.3
0

.0
-

-
0

.2
0

.4

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

3
1

1
5

1
3

2
0

-
6

1
4

0
-

5
1

1
5

2
0

-
1

8
3

4

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it
 T

ru
c
k
s

1
.0

0
.4

1
.4

0
.8

0
.9

0
.9

1
.5

-
-

1
.0

1
.1

0
.7

-
-

0
.7

0
.8

1
.7

1
.0

-
-

1
.5

1
.1

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

3
0

1
4

1
1

4
0

-
6

0
9

0
-

9
8

1
4

3
0

-
2

5
4

4

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

 T
ru

c
k
s

1
.0

0
.0

1
.4

0
.7

0
.9

0
.3

3
.0

-
-

1
.0

0
.0

1
.5

-
-

1
.3

6
.6

1
.6

1
.5

-
-

2
.1

1
.4

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

-
-

-
-

0
-

-
-

-
-

0
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

IL
+

3
1

+
w

it
h

+
I-

8
8

+
R

a
m

p
s

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
1

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

D
a

ta

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

I-
8

8
 R

a
m

p
s

A
c
c
e

s
s
 D

r
IL

 3
1

IL
 3

1

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

In
t.
 T

o
ta

l

6
:3

0
 A

M
5

5
0

1
1

6
0

0
1

7
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
4

1
1

1
7

0
0

0
2

5
8

0
7

8
1

2
4

0
0

2
0

2
6

3
1

6
:4

5
 A

M
7

0
0

1
2

5
0

0
1

9
5

1
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

6
1

2
4

4
0

0
2

4
4

0
9

0
1

3
7

0
0

2
2

7
6

6
7

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
1

2
5

0
2

4
1

0
0

3
6

6
1

0
0

0
0

1
2

5
7

2
4

1
4

0
0

5
0

2
0

1
6

8
2

6
1

0
0

4
2

9
1

2
9

8

7
:0

0
 A

M
7

7
0

1
1

4
0

0
1

9
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

9
8

6
2

0
0

1
9

7
0

8
6

1
4

5
0

0
2

3
1

6
1

9

7
:1

5
 A

M
7

9
0

1
3

1
0

0
2

1
0

0
1

1
0

0
2

1
0

6
1

1
3

0
0

0
2

1
9

1
1

0
6

1
5

1
0

0
2

5
8

6
8

9

7
:3

0
 A

M
6

8
0

1
4

3
1

0
2

1
2

1
0

1
0

0
2

1
5

0
1

2
6

1
0

0
2

7
7

0
1

4
0

1
4

6
0

0
2

8
6

7
7

7

7
:4

5
 A

M
9

7
0

1
4

2
0

0
2

3
9

0
2

1
0

0
3

1
3

5
1

3
7

3
0

0
2

7
5

0
1

1
6

1
4

2
0

0
2

5
8

7
7

5

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
3

2
1

0
5

3
0

1
0

8
5

2
1

3
3

0
0

7
5

0
0

4
6

2
6

0
0

9
6

8
1

4
4

8
5

8
4

0
0

1
0

3
3

2
8

6
0

8
:0

0
 A

M
5

2
0

1
4

3
1

0
1

9
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

7
1

1
6

3
0

0
2

3
6

0
1

2
2

1
2

7
0

0
2

4
9

6
8

1

8
:1

5
 A

M
6

4
1

1
0

1
0

0
1

6
6

2
1

0
0

1
3

1
0

8
1

0
2

2
0

0
2

1
2

0
8

4
1

3
0

0
0

2
1

4
5

9
5

8
:3

0
 A

M
5

7
1

1
0

5
0

0
1

6
3

3
0

1
0

0
4

9
8

9
8

4
0

0
2

0
0

1
1

0
0

1
1

4
0

0
2

1
5

5
8

2

8
:4

5
 A

M
6

3
0

9
9

0
0

1
6

2
1

0
0

0
0

1
9

2
8

7
3

0
0

1
8

2
0

1
0

0
9

4
0

0
1

9
4

5
3

9

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
2

3
6

2
4

4
8

1
0

6
8

7
6

1
1

0
1

8
4

1
5

4
0

3
1

2
0

0
8

3
0

1
4

0
6

4
6

5
0

0
8

7
2

2
3

9
7

**
* 

B
R

E
A

K
 *

**
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

3
:0

0
 P

M
6

2
0

1
0

6
0

0
1

6
8

4
1

1
0

0
6

1
2

2
8

9
0

1
0

2
1

2
0

1
5

2
1

1
0

0
0

2
6

2
6

4
8

3
:1

5
 P

M
7

7
0

1
4

2
0

0
2

1
9

1
0

1
0

2
2

1
0

1
1

1
0

1
0

0
2

1
2

2
1

6
3

1
0

9
0

0
2

7
4

7
0

7

3
:3

0
 P

M
8

7
0

1
0

9
0

0
1

9
6

4
0

2
0

0
6

1
2

2
1

1
7

1
0

0
2

4
0

1
1

8
8

1
1

4
0

0
3

0
3

7
4

5

3
:4

5
 P

M
1

0
1

0
1

6
4

0
0

2
6

5
2

0
0

0
1

2
1

1
6

8
9

2
0

0
2

0
7

0
1

5
1

9
9

0
0

2
5

0
7

2
4

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
3

2
7

0
5

2
1

0
0

8
4

8
1

1
1

4
0

3
1

6
4

6
1

4
0

5
4

1
0

8
7

1
3

6
5

4
4

3
2

0
0

1
0

8
9

2
8

2
4

4
:0

0
 P

M
9

9
0

1
3

8
1

0
2

3
8

2
0

1
0

1
3

1
2

0
1

2
8

3
0

0
2

5
1

0
1

6
1

1
1

7
0

0
2

7
8

7
7

0

4
:1

5
 P

M
1

2
6

0
1

4
5

0
0

2
7

1
0

1
1

0
2

2
1

3
2

1
0

5
1

1
0

2
3

9
1

1
4

0
1

0
1

0
0

2
4

2
7

5
4

4
:3

0
 P

M
9

7
0

1
4

7
0

0
2

4
4

2
0

1
0

0
3

1
2

9
1

3
2

1
0

0
2

6
2

1
1

7
1

1
0

4
0

0
2

7
6

7
8

5

4
:4

5
 P

M
1

2
9

0
1

7
3

1
0

3
0

3
1

0
1

0
0

2
1

2
3

1
2

4
0

0
0

2
4

7
0

1
5

3
1

0
6

0
0

2
5

9
8

1
1

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
4

5
1

0
6

0
3

2
0

1
0

5
6

5
1

4
0

3
1

0
5

0
4

4
8

9
5

1
0

9
9

9
2

6
2

5
4

2
8

0
0

1
0

5
5

3
1

2
0

5
:0

0
 P

M
1

1
0

0
1

5
1

0
0

2
6

1
1

1
0

0
1

2
1

2
2

1
2

9
2

0
0

2
5

3
1

1
4

9
1

0
1

0
0

2
5

1
7

6
7

5
:1

5
 P

M
1

1
4

0
1

4
4

0
0

2
5

8
3

1
1

0
1

5
1

3
6

1
1

7
2

0
0

2
5

5
0

1
3

3
1

0
3

0
0

2
3

6
7

5
4

5
:3

0
 P

M
1

0
1

0
1

8
0

0
0

2
8

1
0

0
0

0
1

0
1

0
8

1
2

8
1

0
0

2
3

7
1

1
1

3
9

8
0

0
2

1
2

7
3

0

5
:4

5
 P

M
1

2
4

0
1

0
8

0
0

2
3

2
0

0
2

0
1

2
6

4
1

0
1

4
0

0
1

6
9

0
1

5
0

9
3

0
0

2
4

3
6

4
6

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
4

4
9

0
5

8
3

0
0

1
0

3
2

4
2

3
0

4
9

4
3

0
4

7
5

9
0

0
9

1
4

2
5

4
5

3
9

5
0

0
9

4
2

2
8

9
7

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

1
9

0
9

2
2

9
2

6
4

0
4

8
4

1
2

8
8

1
5

0
1

1
5

1
2

5
6

7
2

4
7

5
4

0
2

0
5

0
8

4
9

2
8

4
6

2
5

6
5

0
0

5
4

2
0

1
5

3
9

6

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
3

9
.4

0
.0

6
0

.4
0

.1
-

-
5

4
.9

1
5

.7
2

9
.4

0
.0

-
-

5
0

.5
4

8
.7

0
.8

0
.0

-
-

0
.2

5
2

.5
4

7
.3

0
.0

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l 
%

1
2

.4
0

.0
1

9
.0

0
.0

-
3

1
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

-
0

.3
1

6
.7

1
6

.1
0

.3
0

.0
-

3
3

.0
0

.1
1

8
.5

1
6

.7
0

.0
-

3
5

.2
-

L
ig

h
ts

1
8

1
5

1
2

6
7

7
4

-
4

4
9

7
2

7
7

1
4

0
-

4
8

2
3

2
5

2
3

8
2

3
9

2
-

4
7

4
8

9
2

7
3

9
2

4
4

7
0

-
5

1
9

5
1

4
4

8
8

%
 L

ig
h

ts
9

5
.1

5
0

.0
9

1
.5

1
0

0
.0

-
9

2
.9

9
6

.4
8

7
.5

9
3

.3
-

-
9

4
.1

9
0

.6
9

6
.2

9
7

.5
1

0
0

.0
-

9
3

.4
1

0
0

.0
9

6
.2

9
5

.4
-

-
9

5
.8

9
4

.1

B
u

s
e

s
2

0
1

5
0

-
1

7
0

0
0

0
-

0
1

3
3

4
0

0
-

4
7

0
4

2
4

0
-

4
6

1
1

0



%
 B

u
s
e

s
0

.1
0

.0
0

.5
0

.0
-

0
.4

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.5

1
.4

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.9
0

.0
1

.5
0

.2
-

-
0

.8
0

.7

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

5
3

1
8

6
0

-
1

4
0

1
1

1
0

-
3

9
7

3
6

0
0

-
1

3
3

0
4

7
5

0
0

-
9

7
3

7
3

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it

T
ru

c
k
s

2
.8

5
0

.0
2

.9
0

.0
-

2
.9

3
.6

1
2

.5
6

.7
-

-
5

.9
3

.8
1

.5
0

.0
0

.0
-

2
.6

0
.0

1
.7

1
.9

-
-

1
.8

2
.4

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

3
9

0
1

4
8

0
-

1
8

7
0

0
0

0
-

0
1

3
2

2
3

1
0

-
1

5
6

0
1

8
6

4
0

-
8

2
4

2
5

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

T
ru

c
k
s

2
.0

0
.0

5
.1

0
.0

-
3

.9
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
5

.1
0

.9
2

.5
0

.0
-

3
.1

0
.0

0
.6

2
.5

-
-

1
.5

2
.8

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
1

1
-

-
-

-
-

0
-

-
-

-
-

0
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

IL
+

3
1

+
w

it
h

+
I-

8
8

+
R

a
m

p
s

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
3

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
7

:1
5

 A
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

I-
8

8
 R

a
m

p
s

A
c
c
e

s
s
 D

r
IL

 3
1

IL
 3

1

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

In
t.
 T

o
ta

l

7
:1

5
 A

M
7

9
0

1
3

1
0

0
2

1
0

0
1

1
0

0
2

1
0

6
1

1
3

0
0

0
2

1
9

1
1

0
6

1
5

1
0

0
2

5
8

6
8

9

7
:3

0
 A

M
6

8
0

1
4

3
1

0
2

1
2

1
0

1
0

0
2

1
5

0
1

2
6

1
0

0
2

7
7

0
1

4
0

1
4

6
0

0
2

8
6

7
7

7

7
:4

5
 A

M
9

7
0

1
4

2
0

0
2

3
9

0
2

1
0

0
3

1
3

5
1

3
7

3
0

0
2

7
5

0
1

1
6

1
4

2
0

0
2

5
8

7
7

5

8
:0

0
 A

M
5

2
0

1
4

3
1

0
1

9
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

7
1

1
6

3
0

0
2

3
6

0
1

2
2

1
2

7
0

0
2

4
9

6
8

1

T
o

ta
l

2
9

6
0

5
5

9
2

0
8

5
7

1
3

3
0

0
7

5
0

8
4

9
2

7
0

0
1

0
0

7
1

4
8

4
5

6
6

0
0

1
0

5
1

2
9

2
2

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
3

4
.5

0
.0

6
5

.2
0

.2
-

-
1

4
.3

4
2

.9
4

2
.9

0
.0

-
-

5
0

.4
4

8
.9

0
.7

0
.0

-
-

0
.1

4
6

.1
5

3
.9

0
.0

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l 
%

1
0

.1
0

.0
1

9
.1

0
.1

-
2

9
.3

0
.0

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

-
0

.2
1

7
.4

1
6

.8
0

.2
0

.0
-

3
4

.5
0

.0
1

6
.6

1
9

.4
0

.0
-

3
6

.0
-

P
H

F
0

.7
6

3
0

.0
0

0
0

.9
7

7
0

.5
0

0
-

0
.8

9
6

0
.2

5
0

0
.3

7
5

0
.7

5
0

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.5
8

3
0

.8
4

7
0

.8
9

8
0

.5
8

3
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.9

0
9

0
.2

5
0

0
.8

6
4

0
.9

3
7

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.9
1

9
0

.9
4

0

L
ig

h
ts

2
7

5
0

5
1

0
2

-
7

8
7

1
3

2
0

-
6

4
3

9
4

6
7

6
0

-
9

1
2

1
4

5
7

5
4

5
0

-
1

0
0

3
2

7
0

8

%
 L

ig
h

ts
9

2
.9

-
9

1
.2

1
0

0
.0

-
9

1
.8

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

6
6

.7
-

-
8

5
.7

8
6

.4
9

4
.9

8
5

.7
-

-
9

0
.6

1
0

0
.0

9
4

.4
9

6
.3

-
-

9
5

.4
9

2
.7

B
u

s
e

s
0

0
3

0
-

3
0

0
0

0
-

0
6

1
0

0
0

-
1

6
0

9
1

0
-

1
0

2
9

%
 B

u
s
e

s
0

.0
-

0
.5

0
.0

-
0

.4
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
1

.2
2

.0
0

.0
-

-
1

.6
0

.0
1

.9
0

.2
-

-
1

.0
1

.0

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

1
3

0
1

6
0

-
2

9
0

0
1

0
-

1
3

2
6

0
0

-
3

8
0

1
5

1
0

0
-

2
5

9
3

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it

T
ru

c
k
s

4
.4

-
2

.9
0

.0
-

3
.4

0
.0

0
.0

3
3

.3
-

-
1

4
.3

6
.3

1
.2

0
.0

-
-

3
.8

0
.0

3
.1

1
.8

-
-

2
.4

3
.2

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

8
0

3
0

0
-

3
8

0
0

0
0

-
0

3
1

9
1

0
-

4
1

0
3

1
0

0
-

1
3

9
2

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

T
ru

c
k
s

2
.7

-
5

.4
0

.0
-

4
.4

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

6
.1

1
.8

1
4

.3
-

-
4

.1
0

.0
0

.6
1

.8
-

-
1

.2
3

.1

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
R

o
a

d
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

IL
+

3
1

+
w

it
h

+
I-

8
8

+
R

a
m

p
s

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
4

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
4

:1
5

 P
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

I-
8

8
 R

a
m

p
s

A
c
c
e

s
s
 D

r
IL

 3
1

IL
 3

1

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

In
t.
 T

o
ta

l

4
:1

5
 P

M
1

2
6

0
1

4
5

0
0

2
7

1
0

1
1

0
2

2
1

3
2

1
0

5
1

1
0

2
3

9
1

1
4

0
1

0
1

0
0

2
4

2
7

5
4

4
:3

0
 P

M
9

7
0

1
4

7
0

0
2

4
4

2
0

1
0

0
3

1
2

9
1

3
2

1
0

0
2

6
2

1
1

7
1

1
0

4
0

0
2

7
6

7
8

5

4
:4

5
 P

M
1

2
9

0
1

7
3

1
0

3
0

3
1

0
1

0
0

2
1

2
3

1
2

4
0

0
0

2
4

7
0

1
5

3
1

0
6

0
0

2
5

9
8

1
1

5
:0

0
 P

M
1

1
0

0
1

5
1

0
0

2
6

1
1

1
0

0
1

2
1

2
2

1
2

9
2

0
0

2
5

3
1

1
4

9
1

0
1

0
0

2
5

1
7

6
7

T
o

ta
l

4
6

2
0

6
1

6
1

0
1

0
7

9
4

2
3

0
3

9
5

0
6

4
9

0
4

1
0

1
0

0
1

3
6

1
3

4
1

2
0

0
1

0
2

8
3

1
1

7

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
4

2
.8

0
.0

5
7

.1
0

.1
-

-
4

4
.4

2
2

.2
3

3
.3

0
.0

-
-

5
0

.5
4

9
.0

0
.4

0
.1

-
-

0
.3

5
9

.6
4

0
.1

0
.0

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l 
%

1
4

.8
0

.0
1

9
.8

0
.0

-
3

4
.6

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.0

-
0

.3
1

6
.2

1
5

.7
0

.1
0

.0
-

3
2

.1
0

.1
1

9
.7

1
3

.2
0

.0
-

3
3

.0
-

P
H

F
0

.8
9

5
0

.0
0

0
0

.8
9

0
0

.2
5

0
-

0
.8

9
0

0
.5

0
0

0
.5

0
0

0
.7

5
0

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.7
5

0
0

.9
5

8
0

.9
2

8
0

.5
0

0
0

.2
5

0
-

0
.9

5
5

0
.7

5
0

0
.8

9
6

0
.9

7
2

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.9
3

1
0

.9
6

1

L
ig

h
ts

4
5

6
0

5
7

2
1

-
1

0
2

9
4

1
3

0
-

8
4

7
9

4
7

8
4

1
-

9
6

2
3

6
0

5
3

9
8

0
-

1
0

0
6

3
0

0
5

%
 L

ig
h

ts
9

8
.7

-
9

2
.9

1
0

0
.0

-
9

5
.4

1
0

0
.0

5
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
-

-
8

8
.9

9
4

.7
9

7
.6

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

-
9

6
.1

1
0

0
.0

9
8

.7
9

6
.6

-
-

9
7

.9
9

6
.4

B
u

s
e

s
0

0
2

0
-

2
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

4
0

0
-

4
0

3
1

0
-

4
1

0

%
 B

u
s
e

s
0

.0
-

0
.3

0
.0

-
0

.2
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.8
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.4

0
.0

0
.5

0
.2

-
-

0
.4

0
.3

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

4
0

1
5

0
-

1
9

0
1

0
0

-
1

1
2

6
0

0
-

1
8

0
5

4
0

-
9

4
7

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it

T
ru

c
k
s

0
.9

-
2

.4
0

.0
-

1
.8

0
.0

5
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
1

1
.1

2
.4

1
.2

0
.0

0
.0

-
1

.8
0

.0
0

.8
1

.0
-

-
0

.9
1

.5

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

2
0

2
7

0
-

2
9

0
0

0
0

-
0

1
5

2
0

0
-

1
7

0
0

9
0

-
9

5
5

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

T
ru

c
k
s

0
.4

-
4

.4
0

.0
-

2
.7

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

3
.0

0
.4

0
.0

0
.0

-
1

.7
0

.0
0

.0
2

.2
-

-
0

.9
1

.8

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
R

o
a

d
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
3

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-



Ti
m

e 
Pe

rio
d

Cl
as

s.
HL

L
T

R
U

I
O

L
T

BR
R

U
I

O
L

BL
T

R
U

I
O

L
T

R
HR

U
I

O
HL

BL
BR

HR
U

I
O

To
ta

l
ed

es
tr

ia
To

ta
l

Pe
ak

 1
Li

gh
ts

0
17

0
14

0
31

11
1

1
0

1
0

3
10

6
30

91
0

3
9

95
8

96
0

7
92

6
4

22
2

96
1

93
1

1
0

10
0

0
11

52
19

64
EB

1
1

Sp
ec

ifi
ed

 P
er

io
d

%
0%

77
%

0%
70

%
0%

74
%

92
%

10
0%

10
0%

0%
10

0%
0%

10
0%

91
%

10
0%

10
0%

91
%

10
0%

10
0%

92
%

93
%

88
%

94
%

80
%

88
%

10
0%

93
%

91
%

10
0%

0%
63

%
0%

0%
65

%
95

%
92

%
10

0%

7:
15

 A
M

 - 
8:

15
 A

M
Bu

se
s

0
2

0
0

0
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
0

0
14

11
0

11
0

0
0

11
16

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
27

W
B

0
0

O
ne

 H
ou

r P
ea

k
%

0%
9%

0%
0%

0%
5%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

1%
0%

0%
1%

1%
0%

1%
0%

0%
0%

1%
2%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
1%

0%

7:
15

 A
M

 - 
8:

15
 A

M
ng

le
-U

ni
t T

ru
c

0
0

0
5

0
5

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

36
0

0
36

31
1

21
1

2
0

25
36

0
0

5
0

0
5

2
71

N
B

0
0

%
0%

0%
0%

25
%

0%
12

%
8%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

9%
0%

0%
4%

0%
0%

3%
3%

13
%

2%
20

%
8%

0%
2%

4%
0%

0%
31

%
0%

0%
29

%
4%

3%
0%

rt
ic

ul
at

ed
 T

ru
c

0
3

0
1

0
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

36
0

0
36

33
0

31
0

1
0

32
39

0
0

1
0

0
1

1
73

SB
0

0
%

0%
14

%
0%

5%
0%

10
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

4%
0%

0%
3%

3%
0%

3%
0%

4%
0%

3%
4%

0%
0%

6%
0%

0%
6%

2%
3%

0%

ic
yc

le
s o

n 
Ro

a
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
SE

B
0

0
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%

To
ta

l
0

22
0

20
0

42
12

1
1

0
1

0
3

11
6

30
99

6
3

9
10

44
10

35
8

98
9

5
25

2
10

29
10

22
1

0
16

0
0

17
55

21
35

1
1

PH
F

0
0.

61
0

0.
71

0
0.

66
0.

6
0.

25
0.

25
0

0.
25

0
0.

38
0.

69
0.

5
0.

94
0.

92
0.

38
0.

45
0.

93
0.

95
0.

67
0.

94
0.

62
0.

69
0.

5
0.

93
0.

93
0.

25
0

0.
67

0
0

0.
71

0.
92

0.
96

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 %
2%

1%
0%

1%
49

%
48

%
48

%
48

%
1%

3%

Pe
ak

 2
Li

gh
ts

1
19

0
30

0
50

39
4

0
1

1
0

6
14

26
7

94
6

5
3

98
7

11
91

9
11

19
10

10
2

11
50

99
1

23
0

35
3

0
61

19
22

54
EB

0
0

Sp
ec

ifi
ed

 P
er

io
d

%
10

0%
95

%
0%

10
0%

0%
98

%
10

0%
10

0%
0%

10
0%

10
0%

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
88

%
95

%
10

0%
10

0%
95

%
96

%
10

0%
96

%
10

0%
77

%
10

0%
96

%
95

%
96

%
0%

97
%

10
0%

0%
97

%
83

%
96

%
0%

4:
15

 P
M

 - 
5:

15
 P

M
Bu

se
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
0

0
11

5
0

5
0

0
0

5
11

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
B

10
10

O
ne

 H
ou

r P
ea

k
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

1%
0%

0%
1%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
1%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
1%

10
0%

4:
15

 P
M

 - 
5:

15
 P

M
ng

le
-U

ni
t T

ru
c

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

17
0

0
18

20
0

19
0

2
0

21
19

1
0

1
0

0
2

3
42

N
B

0
0

%
0%

5%
0%

0%
0%

2%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

13
%

2%
0%

0%
2%

2%
0%

2%
0%

15
%

0%
2%

2%
4%

0%
3%

0%
0%

3%
13

%
2%

0%

rt
ic

ul
at

ed
 T

ru
c

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

18
0

0
18

25
0

25
0

1
0

26
18

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
44

SB
2

2
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

2%
0%

0%
2%

2%
0%

2%
0%

8%
0%

2%
2%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

4%
2%

10
0%

ic
yc

le
s o

n 
Ro

a
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
SE

B
5

5
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

10
0%

To
ta

l
1

20
0

30
0

51
39

4
0

1
1

0
6

14
26

8
99

2
5

3
10

34
12

41
9

11
68

10
13

2
12

02
10

39
24

0
36

3
0

63
23

23
56

17
17

PH
F

0.
25

0.
83

0
0.

36
0

0.
46

0.
75

0.
5

0
0.

25
0.

25
0

0.
75

0.
58

0.
81

0.
67

0.
96

0.
42

0.
75

0.
97

0.
95

0.
45

0.
92

0.
62

0.
65

0.
25

0.
92

0.
98

0.
55

0
0.

43
0.

38
0

0.
49

0.
72

0.
98

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 %
2%

2%
0%

1%
44

%
53

%
51

%
44

%
3%

1%

Si
te

 C
od

e

Re
po

rt
 S

um
m

ar
y

Ea
st

bo
un

d
W

es
tb

ou
nd

N
or

th
bo

un
d

So
ut

hb
ou

nd
So

ut
he

as
tb

ou
nd

Cr
os

sw
al

k

St
ud

y 
N

am
e

IL
 3

1 
w

ith
 S

m
ok

et
re

e 
Pl

az
a 

St
ar

t D
at

e
Tu

es
da

y,
 A

pr
il 

05
, 2

02
2 

 6
:0

0 
AM

En
d 

D
at

e
Tu

es
da

y,
 A

pr
il 

05
, 2

02
2 

 6
:0

0 
PM



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
u

lli
v
a

n
 R

d
 w

it
h

 H
ig

h
la

n
d

 A
v
e

R
o

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
t

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
1

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

D
a

ta

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
u

lli
v
a

n
 R

d
S

u
lli

v
a

n
 R

d
H

ig
h

la
n

d
 A

v
e

A
c
c
e

s
s
 R

d

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

In
t.
 T

o
ta

l

6
:3

0
 A

M
0

9
6

1
3

0
0

1
0

9
2

6
7

8
0

0
0

1
0

4
1

5
0

5
2

0
0

6
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
8

0

6
:4

5
 A

M
0

7
3

2
3

0
0

9
6

4
2

8
5

0
0

0
1

2
7

2
5

0
4

4
0

0
6

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

9
2

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
0

1
6

9
3

6
0

0
2

0
5

6
8

1
6

3
0

0
0

2
3

1
4

0
0

9
6

0
0

1
3

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

7
2

7
:0

0
 A

M
0

8
5

1
7

0
0

1
0

2
3

7
5

8
0

0
0

9
5

4
0

6
7

0
0

7
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
6

8

7
:1

5
 A

M
0

8
2

2
0

0
0

1
0

2
4

7
7

2
0

0
0

1
1

9
1

7
0

5
5

0
0

7
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
9

3

7
:3

0
 A

M
0

1
0

5
2

0
0

0
1

2
5

4
7

9
2

0
0

0
1

3
9

1
3

0
8

6
0

0
9

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
3

6
3

7
:4

5
 A

M
0

1
2

9
2

9
0

0
1

5
8

5
6

1
0

3
0

1
0

1
6

0
2

1
0

6
0

0
0

8
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
9

9

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
0

4
0

1
8

6
0

0
4

8
7

1
8

7
3

2
5

0
1

0
5

1
3

5
5

0
2

6
8

0
0

3
2

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

3
2

3

8
:0

0
 A

M
0

9
7

3
0

0
0

1
2

7
4

4
6

7
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

9
0

6
0

0
0

7
9

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
1

7

8
:1

5
 A

M
0

6
6

1
9

0
0

8
5

4
1

6
1

0
0

0
1

0
2

1
0

0
3

9
0

0
4

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

3
6

8
:3

0
 A

M
0

8
4

2
2

0
0

1
0

6
3

8
5

1
0

0
0

8
9

1
7

0
5

1
0

0
6

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

6
3

8
:4

5
 A

M
0

7
7

1
4

0
0

9
1

2
7

5
7

0
1

0
8

5
2

0
0

4
1

0
0

6
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
3

7

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
0

3
2

4
8

5
0

0
4

0
9

1
5

0
2

3
6

0
1

0
3

8
7

6
6

0
1

9
1

0
0

2
5

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
5

3

**
* 

B
R

E
A

K
 *

**
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

3
:0

0
 P

M
1

1
2

5
2

2
0

0
1

4
8

4
3

1
2

8
0

0
0

1
7

1
4

1
1

4
5

0
0

8
7

2
2

2
0

0
6

4
1

2

3
:1

5
 P

M
1

9
6

2
8

0
0

1
2

5
5

6
1

0
5

0
1

0
1

6
2

3
7

1
5

2
2

0
9

2
0

1
1

0
0

2
3

8
1

3
:3

0
 P

M
1

8
9

1
9

0
0

1
0

9
5

1
1

2
9

5
1

0
1

8
6

1
8

1
5

4
0

0
7

3
2

1
0

0
0

3
3

7
1

3
:4

5
 P

M
0

7
3

2
6

1
0

1
0

0
4

7
1

3
0

3
0

0
1

8
0

2
2

3
5

5
0

0
8

0
3

1
1

0
0

5
3

6
5

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
3

3
8

3
9

5
1

0
4

8
2

1
9

7
4

9
2

8
2

0
6

9
9

1
1

8
6

2
0

6
2

0
3

3
2

7
5

4
0

0
1

6
1

5
2

9

4
:0

0
 P

M
1

8
7

2
3

0
0

1
1

1
4

9
1

1
8

2
0

0
1

6
9

2
4

1
4

9
0

0
7

4
2

3
0

0
0

5
3

5
9

4
:1

5
 P

M
0

7
8

2
0

0
0

9
8

4
3

1
3

4
1

0
0

1
7

8
2

2
0

6
6

0
0

8
8

4
0

2
0

0
6

3
7

0

4
:3

0
 P

M
3

7
7

1
3

0
0

9
3

3
5

1
5

9
5

0
0

1
9

9
3

3
0

6
5

0
0

9
8

0
1

0
0

0
1

3
9

1

4
:4

5
 P

M
1

8
0

1
8

1
0

1
0

0
4

4
1

2
4

2
0

0
1

7
0

2
5

0
5

0
0

0
7

5
2

1
1

0
0

4
3

4
9

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
5

3
2

2
7

4
1

0
4

0
2

1
7

1
5

3
5

1
0

0
0

7
1

6
1

0
4

1
2

3
0

0
0

3
3

5
8

5
3

0
0

1
6

1
4

6
9

5
:0

0
 P

M
0

9
5

1
7

0
0

1
1

2
5

8
1

2
1

1
0

0
1

8
0

2
9

0
4

9
0

0
7

8
0

2
2

0
0

4
3

7
4

5
:1

5
 P

M
0

6
6

1
7

0
0

8
3

4
6

1
2

7
0

0
0

1
7

3
1

9
0

4
6

0
0

6
5

0
1

1
0

0
2

3
2

3

5
:3

0
 P

M
0

7
3

1
6

0
0

8
9

4
8

1
2

2
0

0
0

1
7

0
1

9
0

2
5

0
0

4
4

1
0

0
0

0
1

3
0

4

5
:4

5
 P

M
0

7
5

1
6

0
0

9
1

4
5

1
2

2
0

0
0

1
6

7
2

2
0

3
0

0
0

5
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
1

0

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
0

3
0

9
6

6
0

0
3

7
5

1
9

7
4

9
2

1
0

0
6

9
0

8
9

0
1

5
0

0
0

2
3

9
1

3
3

0
0

7
1

3
1

1

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

8
1

9
0

8
4

4
2

2
0

2
3

6
0

9
7

0
2

2
4

3
1

9
4

0
3

2
3

6
4

7
2

7
1

1
4

1
2

0
1

6
2

2
1

6
1

3
1

0
0

0
3

9
7

2
5

7

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
0

.3
8

0
.8

1
8

.7
0

.1
-

-
3

0
.0

6
9

.3
0

.6
0

.1
-

-
2

9
.1

0
.4

7
0

.3
0

.1
-

-
4

1
.0

3
3

.3
2

5
.6

0
.0

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l 
%

0
.1

2
6

.3
6

.1
0

.0
-

3
2

.5
1

3
.4

3
0

.9
0

.3
0

.1
-

4
4

.6
6

.5
0

.1
1

5
.7

0
.0

-
2

2
.4

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.0

-
0

.5
-

L
ig

h
ts

8
1

8
3

9
4

2
7

2
-

2
2

7
6

9
3

6
2

1
7

4
1

9
4

-
3

1
3

3
4

6
0

7
1

0
9

6
2

-
1

5
6

5
1

6
1

3
1

0
0

-
3

9
7

0
1

3

%
 L

ig
h

ts
1

0
0

.0
9

6
.4

9
6

.6
1

0
0

.0
-

9
6

.4
9

6
.5

9
6

.9
1

0
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
-

9
6

.8
9

7
.5

1
0

0
.0

9
6

.1
1

0
0

.0
-

9
6

.5
1

0
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
-

-
1

0
0

.0
9

6
.6

B
u

s
e

s
0

1
2

6
0

-
1

8
1

0
1

2
0

0
-

2
2

9
0

1
6

0
-

2
5

0
0

0
0

-
0

6
5



%
 B

u
s
e

s
0

.0
0

.6
1

.4
0

.0
-

0
.8

1
.0

0
.5

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.7
1

.9
0

.0
1

.4
0

.0
-

1
.5

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.9

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
2

2
3

0
-

2
5

1
7

2
2

0
0

-
3

9
2

0
2

5
0

-
2

7
0

0
0

0
-

0
9

1

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it

T
ru

c
k
s

0
.0

1
.2

0
.7

0
.0

-
1

.1
1

.8
1

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

1
.2

0
.4

0
.0

2
.2

0
.0

-
1

.7
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
1

.3

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
3

4
6

0
-

4
0

7
3

4
0

0
-

4
1

1
0

4
0

-
5

0
0

0
0

-
0

8
6

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

T
ru

c
k
s

0
.0

1
.8

1
.4

0
.0

-
1

.7
0

.7
1

.5
0

.0
0

.0
-

1
.3

0
.2

0
.0

0
.4

0
.0

-
0

.3
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
1

.2

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

1
0

0
-

1
0

1
0

0
-

1
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
2

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.1
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
u

lli
v
a

n
 R

d
 w

it
h

 H
ig

h
la

n
d

 A
v
e

R
o

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
t

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
3

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
7

:1
5

 A
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
u

lli
v
a

n
 R

d
S

u
lli

v
a

n
 R

d
H

ig
h

la
n

d
 A

v
e

A
c
c
e

s
s
 R

d

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

In
t.
 T

o
ta

l

7
:1

5
 A

M
0

8
2

2
0

0
0

1
0

2
4

7
7

2
0

0
0

1
1

9
1

7
0

5
5

0
0

7
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
9

3

7
:3

0
 A

M
0

1
0

5
2

0
0

0
1

2
5

4
7

9
2

0
0

0
1

3
9

1
3

0
8

6
0

0
9

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
3

6
3

7
:4

5
 A

M
0

1
2

9
2

9
0

0
1

5
8

5
6

1
0

3
0

1
0

1
6

0
2

1
0

6
0

0
0

8
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
9

9

8
:0

0
 A

M
0

9
7

3
0

0
0

1
2

7
4

4
6

7
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

9
0

6
0

0
0

7
9

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
1

7

T
o

ta
l

0
4

1
3

9
9

0
0

5
1

2
1

9
4

3
3

4
0

1
0

5
2

9
7

0
0

2
6

1
0

0
3

3
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
3

7
2

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
0

.0
8

0
.7

1
9

.3
0

.0
-

-
3

6
.7

6
3

.1
0

.0
0

.2
-

-
2

1
.1

0
.0

7
8

.9
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 
%

0
.0

3
0

.1
7

.2
0

.0
-

3
7

.3
1

4
.1

2
4

.3
0

.0
0

.1
-

3
8

.6
5

.1
0

.0
1

9
.0

0
.0

-
2

4
.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
-

P
H

F
0

.0
0

0
0

.8
0

0
0

.8
2

5
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.8

1
0

0
.8

6
6

0
.8

1
1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

5
0

-
0

.8
2

7
0

.8
3

3
0

.0
0

0
0

.7
5

9
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.8

3
6

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.0
0

0
0

.8
6

0

L
ig

h
ts

0
4

0
1

9
6

0
-

4
9

7
1

8
7

3
1

6
0

1
-

5
0

4
6

8
0

2
4

8
0

-
3

1
6

0
0

0
0

-
0

1
3

1
7

%
 L

ig
h

ts
-

9
7

.1
9

7
.0

-
-

9
7

.1
9

6
.4

9
4

.6
-

1
0

0
.0

-
9

5
.3

9
7

.1
-

9
5

.0
-

-
9

5
.5

-
-

-
-

-
-

9
6

.0

B
u

s
e

s
0

4
2

0
-

6
1

5
0

0
-

6
2

0
2

0
-

4
0

0
0

0
-

0
1

6

%
 B

u
s
e

s
-

1
.0

2
.0

-
-

1
.2

0
.5

1
.5

-
0

.0
-

1
.1

2
.9

-
0

.8
-

-
1

.2
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

.2

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
3

1
0

-
4

5
4

0
0

-
9

0
0

9
0

-
9

0
0

0
0

-
0

2
2

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it

T
ru

c
k
s

-
0

.7
1

.0
-

-
0

.8
2

.6
1

.2
-

0
.0

-
1

.7
0

.0
-

3
.4

-
-

2
.7

-
-

-
-

-
-

1
.6

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
5

0
0

-
5

1
9

0
0

-
1

0
0

0
2

0
-

2
0

0
0

0
-

0
1

7

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

T
ru

c
k
s

-
1

.2
0

.0
-

-
1

.0
0

.5
2

.7
-

0
.0

-
1

.9
0

.0
-

0
.8

-
-

0
.6

-
-

-
-

-
-

1
.2

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
R

o
a

d
-

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
-

-
-

-
-

-
0

.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
u

lli
v
a

n
 R

d
 w

it
h

 H
ig

h
la

n
d

 A
v
e

R
o

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
t

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
4

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
4

:1
5

 P
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
u

lli
v
a

n
 R

d
S

u
lli

v
a

n
 R

d
H

ig
h

la
n

d
 A

v
e

A
c
c
e

s
s
 R

d

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
.

T
o

ta
l

In
t.
 T

o
ta

l

4
:1

5
 P

M
0

7
8

2
0

0
0

9
8

4
3

1
3

4
1

0
0

1
7

8
2

2
0

6
6

0
0

8
8

4
0

2
0

0
6

3
7

0

4
:3

0
 P

M
3

7
7

1
3

0
0

9
3

3
5

1
5

9
5

0
0

1
9

9
3

3
0

6
5

0
0

9
8

0
1

0
0

0
1

3
9

1

4
:4

5
 P

M
1

8
0

1
8

1
0

1
0

0
4

4
1

2
4

2
0

0
1

7
0

2
5

0
5

0
0

0
7

5
2

1
1

0
0

4
3

4
9

5
:0

0
 P

M
0

9
5

1
7

0
0

1
1

2
5

8
1

2
1

1
0

0
1

8
0

2
9

0
4

9
0

0
7

8
0

2
2

0
0

4
3

7
4

T
o

ta
l

4
3

3
0

6
8

1
0

4
0

3
1

8
0

5
3

8
9

0
0

7
2

7
1

0
9

0
2

3
0

0
0

3
3

9
6

4
5

0
0

1
5

1
4

8
4

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
1

.0
8

1
.9

1
6

.9
0

.2
-

-
2

4
.8

7
4

.0
1

.2
0

.0
-

-
3

2
.2

0
.0

6
7

.8
0

.0
-

-
4

0
.0

2
6

.7
3

3
.3

0
.0

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l 
%

0
.3

2
2

.2
4

.6
0

.1
-

2
7

.2
1

2
.1

3
6

.3
0

.6
0

.0
-

4
9

.0
7

.3
0

.0
1

5
.5

0
.0

-
2

2
.8

0
.4

0
.3

0
.3

0
.0

-
1

.0
-

P
H

F
0

.3
3

3
0

.8
6

8
0

.8
5

0
0

.2
5

0
-

0
.9

0
0

0
.7

7
6

0
.8

4
6

0
.4

5
0

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.9
1

3
0

.8
2

6
0

.0
0

0
0

.8
7

1
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.8

6
5

0
.3

7
5

0
.5

0
0

0
.6

2
5

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.6
2

5
0

.9
4

9

L
ig

h
ts

4
3

2
3

6
6

1
-

3
9

4
1

7
5

5
2

7
9

0
-

7
1

1
1

0
7

0
2

2
8

0
-

3
3

5
6

4
5

0
-

1
5

1
4

5
5

%
 L

ig
h

ts
1

0
0

.0
9

7
.9

9
7

.1
1

0
0

.0
-

9
7

.8
9

7
.2

9
8

.0
1

0
0

.0
-

-
9

7
.8

9
8

.2
-

9
9

.1
-

-
9

8
.8

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

-
-

1
0

0
.0

9
8

.0

B
u

s
e

s
0

0
2

0
-

2
1

0
0

0
-

1
2

0
0

0
-

2
0

0
0

0
-

0
5

%
 B

u
s
e

s
0

.0
0

.0
2

.9
0

.0
-

0
.5

0
.6

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.1

1
.8

-
0

.0
-

-
0

.6
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.3

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
4

0
0

-
4

3
6

0
0

-
9

0
0

2
0

-
2

0
0

0
0

-
0

1
5

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it

T
ru

c
k
s

0
.0

1
.2

0
.0

0
.0

-
1

.0
1

.7
1

.1
0

.0
-

-
1

.2
0

.0
-

0
.9

-
-

0
.6

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

1
.0

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
3

0
0

-
3

1
5

0
0

-
6

0
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
0

-
0

9

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

T
ru

c
k
s

0
.0

0
.9

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.7
0

.6
0

.9
0

.0
-

-
0

.8
0

.0
-

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.6

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

 w
it
h

 S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
a

c
c
e

s
s
 D

r 
T

M
C

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
1

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

D
a

ta

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 D

ri
v
e

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

S
o

u
th

b
o

u
n

d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
In

t.
 T

o
ta

l

6
:3

0
 A

M
1

4
0

0
5

9
1

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
0

1
1

6

6
:4

5
 A

M
0

4
0

0
4

1
1

1
0

0
1

2
2

1
0

0
3

1
9

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
1

8
0

0
9

2
0

2
0

0
2

2
3

1
0

0
4

3
5

7
:0

0
 A

M
1

3
0

0
4

1
2

1
0

2
1

3
3

0
0

1
3

2
0

7
:1

5
 A

M
1

1
2

0
0

1
3

1
3

0
0

0
1

3
3

0
0

0
3

2
9

7
:3

0
 A

M
0

5
0

0
5

9
0

0
0

9
2

0
0

0
2

1
6

7
:4

5
 A

M
0

5
0

0
5

1
6

1
0

1
1

7
1

0
0

0
1

2
3

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
2

2
5

0
0

2
7

5
0

2
0

3
5

2
9

0
0

1
9

8
8

8
:0

0
 A

M
0

7
0

0
7

1
1

0
0

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
8

8
:1

5
 A

M
0

7
0

0
7

2
2

1
0

0
2

3
0

2
0

0
2

3
2

8
:3

0
 A

M
0

1
1

0
0

1
1

9
1

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
0

1
2

2

8
:4

5
 A

M
1

4
0

0
5

6
2

0
0

8
2

0
0

0
2

1
5

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
1

2
9

0
0

3
0

4
8

4
0

0
5

2
3

2
0

0
5

8
7

**
* 

B
R

E
A

K
 *

**
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

3
:0

0
 P

M
0

1
4

0
0

1
4

5
2

0
1

7
4

0
0

0
4

2
5

3
:1

5
 P

M
0

1
4

0
0

1
4

9
5

0
0

1
4

1
3

0
0

4
3

2

3
:3

0
 P

M
1

1
4

0
0

1
5

7
2

0
0

9
2

1
0

0
3

2
7

3
:4

5
 P

M
0

8
0

0
8

5
1

0
0

6
1

1
0

0
2

1
6

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
1

5
0

0
0

5
1

2
6

1
0

0
1

3
6

8
5

0
0

1
3

1
0

0

4
:0

0
 P

M
0

1
8

0
0

1
8

6
1

0
1

7
1

0
0

0
1

2
6

4
:1

5
 P

M
0

1
3

0
0

1
3

2
1

0
0

3
0

0
0

0
0

1
6

4
:3

0
 P

M
0

1
1

0
0

1
1

7
1

0
0

8
1

0
0

0
1

2
0

4
:4

5
 P

M
0

2
2

0
0

2
2

6
0

0
0

6
1

0
0

0
1

2
9

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
0

6
4

0
0

6
4

2
1

3
0

1
2

4
3

0
0

0
3

9
1

5
:0

0
 P

M
0

1
8

0
0

1
8

3
3

0
2

6
2

0
0

0
2

2
6

5
:1

5
 P

M
1

5
0

0
6

1
2

0
1

3
2

1
0

0
3

1
2

5
:3

0
 P

M
0

1
0

0
1

4
3

0
1

7
3

0
0

0
3

1
1

5
:4

5
 P

M
1

5
0

0
6

3
2

0
0

5
0

1
0

0
1

1
2

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
2

2
9

0
0

3
1

1
1

1
0

0
4

2
1

7
2

0
0

9
6

1

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

7
2

0
5

0
0

2
1

2
1

7
6

3
1

0
9

2
0

7
3

3
1

0
0

1
4

3
4

6
2

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
3

.3
9

6
.7

0
.0

-
-

8
5

.0
1

5
.0

0
.0

-
-

7
6

.7
2

3
.3

0
.0

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l 
%

1
.5

4
4

.4
0

.0
-

4
5

.9
3

8
.1

6
.7

0
.0

-
4

4
.8

7
.1

2
.2

0
.0

-
9

.3
-

L
ig

h
ts

7
1

8
6

0
-

1
9

3
1

5
9

3
1

0
-

1
9

0
3

3
1

0
0

-
4

3
4

2
6

%
 L

ig
h

ts
1

0
0

.0
9

0
.7

-
-

9
1

.0
9

0
.3

1
0

0
.0

-
-

9
1

.8
1

0
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
-

-
1

0
0

.0
9

2
.2

B
u

s
e

s
0

0
0

-
0

1
0

0
-

1
0

0
0

-
0

1

%
 B

u
s
e

s
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.6
0

.0
-

-
0

.5
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.2



S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
1

1
0

-
1

1
7

0
0

-
7

0
0

0
-

0
1

8

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
.0

5
.4

-
-

5
.2

4
.0

0
.0

-
-

3
.4

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

3
.9

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
8

0
-

8
9

0
0

-
9

0
0

0
-

0
1

7

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

 T
ru

c
k
s

0
.0

3
.9

-
-

3
.8

5
.1

0
.0

-
-

4
.3

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

3
.7

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

0
-

-
-

-
9

-
-

-
-

1
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
-

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
-

-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

 w
it
h

 S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
a

c
c
e

s
s
 D

r 
T

M
C

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
3

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
7

:1
5

 A
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 D

ri
v
e

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

S
o

u
th

b
o

u
n

d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
In

t.
 T

o
ta

l

7
:1

5
 A

M
1

1
2

0
0

1
3

1
3

0
0

0
1

3
3

0
0

0
3

2
9

7
:3

0
 A

M
0

5
0

0
5

9
0

0
0

9
2

0
0

0
2

1
6

7
:4

5
 A

M
0

5
0

0
5

1
6

1
0

1
1

7
1

0
0

0
1

2
3

8
:0

0
 A

M
0

7
0

0
7

1
1

0
0

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
8

T
o

ta
l

1
2

9
0

0
3

0
4

9
1

0
1

5
0

6
0

0
0

6
8

6

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
3

.3
9

6
.7

0
.0

-
-

9
8

.0
2

.0
0

.0
-

-
1

0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 
%

1
.2

3
3

.7
0

.0
-

3
4

.9
5

7
.0

1
.2

0
.0

-
5

8
.1

7
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
7

.0
-

P
H

F
0

.2
5

0
0

.6
0

4
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.5

7
7

0
.7

6
6

0
.2

5
0

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.7
3

5
0

.5
0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.5

0
0

0
.7

4
1

L
ig

h
ts

1
2

0
0

-
2

1
4

6
1

0
-

4
7

6
0

0
-

6
7

4

%
 L

ig
h

ts
1

0
0

.0
6

9
.0

-
-

7
0

.0
9

3
.9

1
0

0
.0

-
-

9
4

.0
1

0
0

.0
-

-
-

1
0

0
.0

8
6

.0

B
u

s
e

s
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

u
s
e

s
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
6

0
-

6
2

0
0

-
2

0
0

0
-

0
8

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
.0

2
0

.7
-

-
2

0
.0

4
.1

0
.0

-
-

4
.0

0
.0

-
-

-
0

.0
9

.3

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
3

0
-

3
1

0
0

-
1

0
0

0
-

0
4

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

 T
ru

c
k
s

0
.0

1
0

.3
-

-
1

0
.0

2
.0

0
.0

-
-

2
.0

0
.0

-
-

-
0

.0
4

.7

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

0
-

-
-

-
1

-
-

-
-

0
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
-

-
-

-
-

-
-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

 w
it
h

 S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
a

c
c
e

s
s
 D

r 
T

M
C

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
4

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
4

:1
5

 P
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 D

ri
v
e

E
a

s
tb

o
u

n
d

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

S
o

u
th

b
o

u
n

d

L
e

ft
T

h
ru

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
In

t.
 T

o
ta

l

4
:1

5
 P

M
0

1
3

0
0

1
3

2
1

0
0

3
0

0
0

0
0

1
6

4
:3

0
 P

M
0

1
1

0
0

1
1

7
1

0
0

8
1

0
0

0
1

2
0

4
:4

5
 P

M
0

2
2

0
0

2
2

6
0

0
0

6
1

0
0

0
1

2
9

5
:0

0
 P

M
0

1
8

0
0

1
8

3
3

0
2

6
2

0
0

0
2

2
6

T
o

ta
l

0
6

4
0

0
6

4
1

8
5

0
2

2
3

4
0

0
0

4
9

1

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
7

8
.3

2
1

.7
0

.0
-

-
1

0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 
%

0
.0

7
0

.3
0

.0
-

7
0

.3
1

9
.8

5
.5

0
.0

-
2

5
.3

4
.4

0
.0

0
.0

-
4

.4
-

P
H

F
0

.0
0

0
0

.7
2

7
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.7

2
7

0
.6

4
3

0
.4

1
7

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.7
1

9
0

.5
0

0
0

.0
0

0
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.5

0
0

0
.7

8
4

L
ig

h
ts

0
6

2
0

-
6

2
1

4
5

0
-

1
9

4
0

0
-

4
8

5

%
 L

ig
h

ts
-

9
6

.9
-

-
9

6
.9

7
7

.8
1

0
0

.0
-

-
8

2
.6

1
0

0
.0

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
9

3
.4

B
u

s
e

s
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

u
s
e

s
-

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

-
0

.0
0

.0

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
2

0
-

2
3

0
0

-
3

0
0

0
-

0
5

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it
 T

ru
c
k
s

-
3

.1
-

-
3

.1
1

6
.7

0
.0

-
-

1
3

.0
0

.0
-

-
-

0
.0

5
.5

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
0

0
-

0
1

0
0

-
1

0
0

0
-

0
1

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

 T
ru

c
k
s

-
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
5

.6
0

.0
-

-
4

.3
0

.0
-

-
-

0
.0

1
.1

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
-

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

-
0

.0
0

.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

0
-

-
-

-
2

-
-

-
-

0
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

0
0

.0
-

-
-

-
-

-
-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 L

n
 w

it
h

 E
v
e

rg
re

e
n

D
ri

v
e

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
1

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

D
a

ta

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

E
v
e

rg
re

e
n

 D
r

E
v
e

rg
re

e
n

 D
r

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
R

ig
h

t
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

T
h

ru
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
In

t.
 T

o
ta

l

6
:3

0
 A

M
2

2
0

0
4

2
6

0
0

8
1

2
0

0
3

1
5

6
:4

5
 A

M
5

6
0

0
1

1
1

0
2

1
0

1
3

0
0

0
0

0
2

4

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
7

8
0

0
1

5
1

2
8

1
0

2
1

1
2

0
0

3
3

9

7
:0

0
 A

M
0

4
0

0
4

2
3

0
0

5
1

7
0

0
8

1
7

7
:1

5
 A

M
2

2
0

0
4

7
8

1
0

1
6

1
3

0
0

4
2

4

7
:3

0
 A

M
2

7
0

0
9

7
6

0
0

1
3

1
0

0
0

1
2

3

7
:4

5
 A

M
6

3
0

0
9

5
7

0
0

1
2

2
0

0
0

2
2

3

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
1

0
1

6
0

0
2

6
2

1
2

4
1

0
4

6
5

1
0

0
0

1
5

8
7

8
:0

0
 A

M
2

1
0

0
3

0
6

0
0

6
7

1
0

0
0

1
7

2
6

8
:1

5
 A

M
3

1
0

0
4

2
1

0
0

3
1

5
0

0
6

1
3

8
:3

0
 A

M
4

0
1

0
5

2
2

1
0

5
5

3
0

0
8

1
8

8
:4

5
 A

M
5

0
0

0
5

2
3

0
0

5
4

3
0

0
7

1
7

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
1

4
2

1
0

1
7

6
1

2
1

0
1

9
1

7
2

1
0

0
3

8
7

4

**
* 

B
R

E
A

K
 *

**
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

3
:0

0
 P

M
2

0
0

0
2

1
0

0
0

1
7

9
0

0
1

6
1

9

3
:1

5
 P

M
6

2
0

0
8

5
1

0
0

6
5

6
0

0
1

1
2

5

3
:3

0
 P

M
9

3
0

1
1

2
8

3
0

0
1

1
2

3
0

0
5

2
8

3
:4

5
 P

M
4

1
0

0
5

1
1

6
0

0
1

7
0

2
0

0
2

2
4

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
2

1
6

0
1

2
7

2
5

1
0

0
0

3
5

1
4

2
0

0
0

3
4

9
6

4
:0

0
 P

M
7

0
0

0
7

1
1

3
0

5
1

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
4

4

4
:1

5
 P

M
6

0
0

0
6

1
3

0
0

4
4

5
0

0
9

1
9

4
:3

0
 P

M
4

0
0

0
4

1
5

0
0

6
2

2
0

0
4

1
4

4
:4

5
 P

M
2

0
1

0
3

0
1

0
0

1
1

3
0

0
4

8

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
1

9
0

1
0

2
0

3
1

0
3

0
1

6
1

7
3

2
0

0
4

9
8

5

5
:0

0
 P

M
1

2
2

1
0

1
5

0
3

0
0

3
3

1
0

0
4

2
2

5
:1

5
 P

M
6

0
0

0
6

1
3

0
0

4
2

1
0

0
3

1
3

5
:3

0
 P

M
2

0
0

0
2

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

3

5
:4

5
 P

M
4

0
0

0
4

1
5

0
0

6
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

H
o

u
rl

y
 T

o
ta

l
2

4
2

1
0

2
7

2
1

1
0

0
1

3
6

2
0

0
8

4
8

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

9
5

3
4

3
1

1
3

2
6

9
7

5
6

0
1

5
0

6
0

8
7

0
0

1
4

7
4

2
9

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
7

2
.0

2
5

.8
2

.3
-

-
4

6
.0

5
0

.0
4

.0
-

-
4

0
.8

5
9

.2
0

.0
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 
%

2
2

.1
7

.9
0

.7
-

3
0

.8
1

6
.1

1
7

.5
1

.4
-

3
5

.0
1

4
.0

2
0

.3
0

.0
-

3
4

.3
-

L
ig

h
ts

8
9

2
7

3
-

1
1

9
6

0
7

4
6

-
1

4
0

4
8

7
8

0
-

1
2

6
3

8
5

%
 L

ig
h

ts
9

3
.7

7
9

.4
1

0
0

.0
-

9
0

.2
8

7
.0

9
8

.7
1

0
0

.0
-

9
3

.3
8

0
.0

8
9

.7
-

-
8

5
.7

8
9

.7

B
u

s
e

s
1

1
0

-
2

0
0

0
-

0
1

0
0

-
1

3

%
 B

u
s
e

s
1

.1
2

.9
0

.0
-

1
.5

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
1

.7
0

.0
-

-
0

.7
0

.7



S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

3
1

0
-

4
2

1
0

-
3

4
2

0
-

6
1

3

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it
 T

ru
c
k
s

3
.2

2
.9

0
.0

-
3

.0
2

.9
1

.3
0

.0
-

2
.0

6
.7

2
.3

-
-

4
.1

3
.0

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

2
5

0
-

7
7

0
0

-
7

7
7

0
-

1
4

2
8

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

 T
ru

c
k
s

2
.1

1
4

.7
0

.0
-

5
.3

1
0

.1
0

.0
0

.0
-

4
.7

1
1

.7
8

.0
-

-
9

.5
6

.5

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

1
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

0
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

1
0

0
.0

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 L

n
 w

it
h

 E
v
e

rg
re

e
n

D
ri

v
e

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
3

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
7

:1
5

 A
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

E
v
e

rg
re

e
n

 D
r

E
v
e

rg
re

e
n

 D
r

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
R

ig
h

t
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

T
h

ru
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
In

t.
 T

o
ta

l

7
:1

5
 A

M
2

2
0

0
4

7
8

1
0

1
6

1
3

0
0

4
2

4

7
:3

0
 A

M
2

7
0

0
9

7
6

0
0

1
3

1
0

0
0

1
2

3

7
:4

5
 A

M
6

3
0

0
9

5
7

0
0

1
2

2
0

0
0

2
2

3

8
:0

0
 A

M
2

1
0

0
3

0
6

0
0

6
7

1
0

0
0

1
7

2
6

T
o

ta
l

1
2

1
3

0
0

2
5

1
9

2
7

1
0

4
7

1
1

1
3

0
0

2
4

9
6

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
4

8
.0

5
2

.0
0

.0
-

-
4

0
.4

5
7

.4
2

.1
-

-
4

5
.8

5
4

.2
0

.0
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 
%

1
2

.5
1

3
.5

0
.0

-
2

6
.0

1
9

.8
2

8
.1

1
.0

-
4

9
.0

1
1

.5
1

3
.5

0
.0

-
2

5
.0

-

P
H

F
0

.5
0

0
0

.4
6

4
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.6

9
4

0
.6

7
9

0
.8

4
4

0
.2

5
0

-
0

.7
3

4
0

.3
9

3
0

.3
2

5
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.3

5
3

0
.9

2
3

L
ig

h
ts

1
2

1
0

0
-

2
2

1
7

2
7

1
-

4
5

7
1

2
0

-
1

9
8

6

%
 L

ig
h

ts
1

0
0

.0
7

6
.9

-
-

8
8

.0
8

9
.5

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

-
9

5
.7

6
3

.6
9

2
.3

-
-

7
9

.2
8

9
.6

B
u

s
e

s
0

1
0

-
1

0
0

0
-

0
1

0
0

-
1

2

%
 B

u
s
e

s
0

.0
7

.7
-

-
4

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

9
.1

0
.0

-
-

4
.2

2
.1

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
1

0
-

1
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
1

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
.0

7
.7

-
-

4
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
1

.0

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
1

0
-

1
2

0
0

-
2

3
1

0
-

4
7

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

 T
ru

c
k
s

0
.0

7
.7

-
-

4
.0

1
0

.5
0

.0
0

.0
-

4
.3

2
7

.3
7

.7
-

-
1

6
.7

7
.3

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

0
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

0
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-



 

K
e

n
ig

 L
in

d
g

re
n

 O
'H

a
ra

 A
b

o
o

n
a

, 
In

c
.

9
5

7
5

 W
. 

H
ig

g
in

s
 R

d
.,

 S
u

it
e

 4
0

0

R
o

s
e

m
o

n
t,

 I
lli

n
o

is
, 

U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
  

6
0

0
1

8
(8

4
7

)5
1

8
-9

9
9

0
 k

p
a

c
h

o
w

ic
z
@

k
lo

a
in

c
.c

o
m

C
o

u
n

t 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 L

n
 w

it
h

 E
v
e

rg
re

e
n

D
ri

v
e

S
it
e

 C
o

d
e

:
S

ta
rt

 D
a

te
: 

0
4

/0
5

/2
0

2
2

P
a

g
e

 N
o

: 
4

T
u

rn
in

g
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
e

a
k
 H

o
u

r 
D

a
ta

 (
4

:1
5

 P
M

)

S
ta

rt
 T

im
e

S
m

o
k
e

tr
e

e
 P

la
z
a

E
v
e

rg
re

e
n

 D
r

E
v
e

rg
re

e
n

 D
r

W
e

s
tb

o
u

n
d

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
S

o
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

L
e

ft
R

ig
h

t
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
T

h
ru

R
ig

h
t

U
-T

u
rn

P
e

d
s

A
p

p
. 
T

o
ta

l
L

e
ft

T
h

ru
U

-T
u

rn
P

e
d

s
A

p
p

. 
T

o
ta

l
In

t.
 T

o
ta

l

4
:1

5
 P

M
6

0
0

0
6

1
3

0
0

4
4

5
0

0
9

1
9

4
:3

0
 P

M
4

0
0

0
4

1
5

0
0

6
2

2
0

0
4

1
4

4
:4

5
 P

M
2

0
1

0
3

0
1

0
0

1
1

3
0

0
4

8

5
:0

0
 P

M
1

2
2

1
0

1
5

0
3

0
0

3
3

1
0

0
4

2
2

T
o

ta
l

2
4

2
2

0
2

8
2

1
2

0
0

1
4

1
0

1
1

0
0

2
1

6
3

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 %
8

5
.7

7
.1

7
.1

-
-

1
4

.3
8

5
.7

0
.0

-
-

4
7

.6
5

2
.4

0
.0

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l 
%

3
8

.1
3

.2
3

.2
-

4
4

.4
3

.2
1

9
.0

0
.0

-
2

2
.2

1
5

.9
1

7
.5

0
.0

-
3

3
.3

-

P
H

F
0

.5
0

0
0

.2
5

0
0

.5
0

0
-

0
.4

6
7

0
.5

0
0

0
.6

0
0

0
.0

0
0

-
0

.5
8

3
0

.6
2

5
0

.5
5

0
0

.0
0

0
-

0
.5

8
3

0
.7

1
6

L
ig

h
ts

2
3

1
2

-
2

6
0

1
2

0
-

1
2

8
1

0
0

-
1

8
5

6

%
 L

ig
h

ts
9

5
.8

5
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
-

9
2

.9
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
-

-
8

5
.7

8
0

.0
9

0
.9

-
-

8
5

.7
8

8
.9

B
u

s
e

s
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

u
s
e

s
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

S
in

g
le

-U
n

it
 T

ru
c
k
s

1
0

0
-

1
0

0
0

-
0

2
1

0
-

3
4

%
 S

in
g

le
-U

n
it
 T

ru
c
k
s

4
.2

0
.0

0
.0

-
3

.6
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
2

0
.0

9
.1

-
-

1
4

.3
6

.3

A
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 T

ru
c
k
s

0
1

0
-

1
2

0
0

-
2

0
0

0
-

0
3

%
 A

rt
ic

u
la

te
d

 T
ru

c
k
s

0
.0

5
0

.0
0

.0
-

3
.6

1
0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

1
4

.3
0

.0
0

.0
-

-
0

.0
4

.8

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
-

0
0

0
0

-
0

0

%
 B

ic
y
c
le

s
 o

n
 R

o
a

d
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

-
-

0
.0

0
.0

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

0
-

-
-

-
0

-
-

-
-

0
-

-

%
 P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-



Site Plan  



PROPOSED BUILDING A

263,358 SF
FF=692.00

PROPOSED BUILDING B

165,568 SF
FF=692.00

18.5'
26.0'

18.5'
9'

280.0'
55.0'

105.9'
55.0'

70.0'
18.5'

26.0'
18.5'

9.0'
320.0'

60.0'

11'

806.0'26.0' 18.5' 9' 9' 18.5' 26.0'

R
26'

R
26'

30.0' 30.0'

372.0'

R
5'

37.3'

572.0'26.0' 18.5' 9' 18.5' 26.0'

42.0'

R
5'

R
26'

R
5'

R
5'

R
5'

26.0' 26.0'

332.0'

16.0'

16.2'

R
26'

R
26'

R
26'

128.2'

36.4'

39.5'

36.0'R
45'

R
45'

R
45'

R
52'

9'

42.0'

205.0'

R
52'

R
52'

5.7'

R
45'

R
10'

8'

70.0'
60.0'

R
26'

R
52'

8'

R
10'

112.0'

73.0'

88.5'

123.1'

126.3'

89.0'

67.2'

180.3'63.5'

57.9'

88.7'

88.5'

66.4'

253.5'

253.7'

140.0'

37.0'
15.0'
6.0'

15.0'
41.2'

R
45'

R
45'36.0'

R
35'

12.0'

300'
TAPER

13.0' 13.0'

30'
110'

TAPER
225'

STO
R

AG
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                          1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                             PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SULLIVAN ROAD - 1 OF 2 SITE PLAN JOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/28/2022

N
O

R
T

H

SCALE: 1"=150'

SITE DATA

SITE AREA: ±1,281,906 S.F. (29.428 AC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMOKE TREE PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY & SIDEWALK EASEMENT PER DOC. 2011K068111

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT PER DOC. 2011K068111

AutoCAD SHX Text
SULLIVAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. 1653661

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. 1127479

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'x40' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. 2014K014227

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'x60' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT PER DOC. 2014K014227

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' COMED & GAS EASEMENT PER DOC. 918478

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. 2013K052826

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE DITCH AS OF 12-30-2021 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
29 EXTERIOR DOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
42 EXTERIOR DOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/28/2022 11:38 AM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\MASTER\SITE6 04-25-22.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\MASTER\SITE6 04-25-22.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\MASTER\SITE6 04-25-22.dwg



20
5.

0'
14

0.
0'

37.0'
15.0'
6.0'

15.0'

41.2'

12
.0

'

300'
TAPER

13
.0

'
13

.0
'

30'110'
TAPER

225'
STORAGE

SULLIVAN ROAD - 2 OF 2 WEST ENTRANCE IMPROVEMENTS DETAILJOB NO. 2335.00-IL 04/28/2022

NORTH

SCALE: 1"=50'

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                          1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                             PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

SITE DATA

SITE AREA: ±1,281,906 S.F. (29.428 AC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SULLIVAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/28/2022 11:39 AM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\MASTER\SITE6 04-25-22.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\MASTER\SITE6 04-25-22.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\MASTER\SITE6 04-25-22.dwg



PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                          1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                             PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

WB-65 TURNING EXHIBIT - 1 OF 4 ENTERING SMOKETREE PLAZA (RIGHT)JOB NO. 2335.00-IL

SCALE: 1"=30'

04/28/22

NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/28/2022 11:40 AM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max 68.5° Horiz

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max 10° Vert

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WB-65 - Interstate Semi-Trailer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Length

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Body Height

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.052ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Min Body Ground Clearance

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.334ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max Track Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lock-to-lock time

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.00s

AutoCAD SHX Text
Curb to Curb Turning Radius

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.000ft



PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                          1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                             PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

WB-65 TURNING EXHIBIT - 2 OF 4 ENTERING SMOKETREE PLAZA (LEFT) JOB NO. 2335.00-IL04/28/22

NORTH

SCALE: 1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/28/2022 11:41 AM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max 68.5° Horiz

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max 10° Vert

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WB-65 - Interstate Semi-Trailer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Length

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Body Height

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.052ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Min Body Ground Clearance

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.334ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max Track Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lock-to-lock time

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.00s

AutoCAD SHX Text
Curb to Curb Turning Radius

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.000ft



PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                          1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                             PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

WB-65 TURNING EXHIBIT - 3 OF 4 EXITING SMOKETREE PLAZA (RIGHT) JOB NO. 2335.00-IL04/28/22

NORTH

SCALE: 1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/28/2022 11:41 AM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max 68.5° Horiz

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max 10° Vert

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WB-65 - Interstate Semi-Trailer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Length

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Body Height

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.052ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Min Body Ground Clearance

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.334ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max Track Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lock-to-lock time

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.00s

AutoCAD SHX Text
Curb to Curb Turning Radius

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.000ft



PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                          1051 E. MAIN STREET | SUITE 217 | EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM | CHICAGO@PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                             PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER

WB-65 TURNING EXHIBIT - 4 OF 4 EXITING SMOKETREE PLAZA (LEFT) JOB NO. 2335.00-IL04/28/22

NORTH

SCALE: 1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/28/2022 11:41 AM - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwg - Z:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwgZ:\Projects\2021\2335.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\2335.00-IL AutoTurn Exhibit 3.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max 68.5° Horiz

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max 10° Vert

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WB-65 - Interstate Semi-Trailer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Length

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overall Body Height

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.052ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Min Body Ground Clearance

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.334ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max Track Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.500ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lock-to-lock time

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.00s

AutoCAD SHX Text
Curb to Curb Turning Radius

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.000ft



CMAP 2050 Projections Letter  



 
April 18, 2022 

Kelly Pachowicz 

Consultant 

Kenig, Lindgren, O’Hara and Aboona, Inc. 

9575 West Higgins Road 

Suite 400 

Rosemont, IL 60048 

 

Subject:  Sullivan Road east of Highland Avenue Development 

  IDOT 

 

Dear Ms. Pachowicz:  

 

In response to a request made on your behalf and dated April 18, 2022, we have 

developed year 2050 average daily traffic (ADT) projections for the subject location.    

 
ROAD SEGMENT Current ADT Year 2050 ADT 

Lincolnway St (IL 31) south of I-88 21,600 31,600 

I-88 On-Ramps, @ Lincolnway St 10,900 15,900 

I-88 Off-Ramps, @ Lincolnway St 10,400 15,200 

Sullivan Rd east of Lincolnway St 11,700 17,100 

Sullivan Rd west of Lincolnway St 13,400 19,200 

Highland Ave south of Sullivan Rd 6,150 8,900 

Evergreen Dr north of Sullivan Rd 950 1,400 

 

Traffic projections are developed using existing ADT data provided in the request letter 

and the results from the December 2021 CMAP Travel Demand Analysis. The regional 

travel model uses CMAP 2050 socioeconomic projections and assumes the 

implementation of the ON TO 2050 Comprehensive Regional Plan for the Northeastern 

Illinois area.  The provision of this data in support of your request does not constitute a 

CMAP endorsement of the proposed development or any subsequent developments. 
 

If you have any questions, please call me at (312) 386-8806. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Jose Rodriguez, PTP, AICP 

Senior Planner, Research & Analysis 
 

cc: Rios (IDOT)    

2022_ForecastTraffic\NorthAurora\ka-12-22\ka-12-22.docx 



Level of Service Criteria  



LEVEL OF SERVICE CRITERIA 
Signalized Intersections 

 
Level of 
Service 

 
 

Interpretation 

Average Control 
Delay  

(seconds per vehicle) 
A 
 
 
 

Favorable progression.  Most vehicles arrive during the 
green indication and travel through the intersection without 
stopping. 

≤10 

B 
 
 

Good progression, with more vehicles stopping than for 
Level of Service A. 

>10 - 20 

C 
 
 
 

Individual cycle failures (i.e., one or more queued vehicles 
are not able to depart as a result of insufficient capacity 
during the cycle) may begin to appear.  Number of vehicles 
stopping is significant, although many vehicles still pass 
through the intersection without stopping. 
 

>20 - 35 

D 
 
 
 

The volume-to-capacity ratio is high and either progression 
is ineffective or the cycle length is too long.  Many vehicles 
stop and individual cycle failures are noticeable. 
 

>35 - 55 

E Progression is unfavorable.  The volume-to-capacity ratio 
is high and the cycle length is long.  Individual cycle 
failures are frequent. 
 

>55 - 80 

F The volume-to-capacity ratio is very high, progression is 
very poor, and the cycle length is long.  Most cycles fail to 
clear the queue. 

>80.0 

Unsignalized Intersections 
Level of Service Average Total Delay (SEC/VEH) 

A      0 - 10 

B > 10 - 15 

C > 15 - 25 

D > 25 - 35 

E > 35 - 50 

F > 50 
Source:  Highway Capacity Manual, 2010. 


	2022.05.03 Plan Commission Agenda
	2022.03.01 Draft Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
	Staff Report 22-03
	Special Use Application - Phelan Dev Co Park 88 North Aurora
	Map Amendment Application - Phelan Dev Co Park 88 North Aurora
	IDNR Letter
	Park 88 Preliminary Engineering Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Site Plan


	Park 88 Preliminary Engineering Utility Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Utility Plan


	Park 88 Preliminary Engineering Grading Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Grading Plan


	Preliminary Landscape Plans 4.25.22
	Sheets and Views
	L-1 CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN OVERVIEW
	L-2 CONCEPT LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
	L-3 CONCEPT LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
	L-4 CONCEPT LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
	L-5 CONCEPT LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
	L-6 CONCEPT LANDSCAPE NOTES & DETAILS


	Building B Elevations 4-8-22
	Building A Elevations 4-8-22
	Monument Sign Exhibits 4.27.22
	ALTA SURVEY
	Sheets and Views
	ALTA


	Final Plat of Subdivision
	Sheets and Views
	2335.00 SUBDIVISION-1
	2335.00 SUBDIVISION-2


	Traffic Impact Study
	1. Introduction
	2. Existing Conditions
	Site Location
	Existing Roadway System Characteristics
	Existing Traffic Volumes
	Crash Data

	3. Traffic Characteristics of the Proposed Development
	Proposed Site and Development Plan
	Directional Distribution
	Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

	4. Projected Traffic Conditions
	Development Traffic Assignment
	Background (No-Build) Traffic Conditions
	Total Projected Traffic Volumes

	5. Traffic Analysis and Recommendations
	Traffic Analyses
	Discussion and Recommendations
	IL 31 with Sullivan Road
	IL 31 with I-88 Ramps
	IL 31 with Lovedale Lane/Cinemark Access Drive
	Sullivan Road with Highland Avenue
	Smoketree Plaza with Cinemark Access Drive
	Smoketree Lane with Evergreen Drive/Styrofoam Recycling Access Drive
	Sullivan Road with Proposed Access Drive
	Smoketree Lane with Rodeway Inn Access Drive/Proposed Access Drive


	6. Conclusion
	Appendix 04-28-2022.pdf
	(01) Traffic Count Summary Sheets.pdf
	(01) IL+31+with+Sullivan+Road__935441_04-05-2022
	(02) IL+31+with+I-88+Ramps__935439_04-05-2022
	(03) IL_31_with_Smoketree_Plaza__935440_04-05-2022
	(04_05_2022) Summary

	(04) Sullivan_Rd_with_Highland_Ave_Roundabout_935442_04-05-2022
	(06) Smoketree_Plaza_with_Smoketree_access_Dr_TMC_935446_04-05-2022
	(07) Smoketree_Ln_with_Evergreen_Drive__935445_04-05-2022


	2335.00-IL EXHIBIT 04-28-22.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	11x17







